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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+t-A=1t—HLHFE

For the year ended 31 December

“E-N\F ZT-NEF ZEF-FF —T-—F Z®BC-C

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
FETT FE=7T FEx TEx FEx
us$:000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$:000

E45 RESULTS
LON Revenue 56,872 54,257 54,386 54,180 65,558
EH Gross profit 30,271 33,329 35,179 34,409 44,295
BATSHAT A Profit before income tax 2,090 18,642 91,402 2,404 9,915
15 %5 X2 Income tax expense (1,930) (293) (3,197) (1,501) (1,318)
F 175 A Profit for the year 160 18,349 88,205 903 8,597

R+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F ZE-NF ZT-TF —_FT-_—F ZEZC
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
FET FE FEr FET FEx
US$'000 USs$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$°000
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

4K B Total assets 201,913 183,959 252,778 172,312 183,958
wmE s Total liabilities (113,462) (82,584) (55,496) (55,711) (62,008)
BEFE Net assets 88,451 101,375 197,282 116,601 121,950
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Financial Highlights

BE+t-A=1T—HLHEE

For the year ended 31 December

—2== —ET_—F 25
2022 2021 Change
E¥&E(FER) : Results (US$°000):
g A Revenue 65,558 54,180 21.0%
E Gross profit 44,295 34,409 28.7%
RN Profit from operations 14,158 5,558 154.7%
B P 45 75 A& Profit before income tax 9,915 2,404 312.4%
KA EEE ANEAERT Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 8,597 903 852.0%
BRgED Profitability:
EF = Gross profit margin 67.6% 63.5% 4.1%
4 R 2 Net profit margin 13.1% 1.7% 11.4%
BRERNEF (FE) Basic earnings per share (US cents) 2.12 0.23 1.89
R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= —E - —F B
2022 2021 Change
BEMRR(FER) : Financial Position (US$000):
BEE Total assets 183,958 172,312 6.8%
RRFHEE ANELERE Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 121,950 116,601 4.6%
waEE Total liabilities 62,008 55,711 11.3%
R4 RIBITLEH Cash and bank balances 76,305 48,489 57.4%
REBESMR Liquidity:
MBI R (£5) Current ratio (times) 2.2 2.1 0.1
B AR R Net debt-to-equity ratio* TEA N/A TEANA  FER NA

* FREERLR=(BR

- Re RRITER) BRR

* Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity

HEBEERER DA
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Financial Highlights

Revenue

[ RON
Revenue

L)
(US$ million)

21.0%

2021 2022

. WA _E F+21.0%

o Revenue increased by 21.0%

2 HEBUA
Segment Revenue
@ B&E @ XFEM @ REER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products Healthcare products
(E&%T) (B&=T) (B&%T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
23.8% 63.6
51.4 l . 72 29
0.2 L 25.4%
- '
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022

2 B F
Segment Profit

@ E#HE @ =FEMm 0 REER
Pharmaceuticals Cosmetic products Healthcare products
(B8=1T) (BE=T) (BB=T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
39.9% |Kadd
17.6 '
107.1% 49.5%
08 ¥ o1 A > oo
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
o J
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Profit for the year and Net profit margin

@ FRiEF ® MAFRE
Profit for the year Net profit margin
(BB*xT) %)
(US$ million)

13.1%

2021 2022

Total assets and Net assets
@ FRBEE @ TBEE @ FHEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(B@ExT) (B&EFxT) (B&@%T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2021

2022

BA A

B2 7

=
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MBREE
Financial Highlights

F W 7 _EF+852.0%

AR EFH11.4%

Profit for the year increased by 852.0%
Net profit margin increased by 11.4%

WEE FT16.8%

FEE FF46%

Total assets increased by 6.8%
Net assets increased by 4.6%

% B R 2 & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 to all shareholders.

Review of 2022

The Group has steadily developed its pharmaceutical business
in 2022 in accordance with its established strategies, such as
continuously achieving both market and product coverages in
terms of sales activities, along with cost reductions and efficiency
enhancement in supply and production. The Group also planned
to grow its product portfolio by ways of strengthening research
and development, resuming production of existing products, and
bringing in new products. Given all these efforts, we hope to lay a
solid foundation for the Group’s development in the coming years.

In 2022, these efforts were beginning to reflect in the growth
in sales and performance which showed recovery growth. The
Group recorded a total revenue of approximately US$65.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 21.0% over last year,
mainly due to the contribution of the Group's leading products,
Pafulin and Sicorten Plus. The Group recorded an operating profit
of approximately US$14.2 million in 2022, representing an increase
of 154.7% over last year. Such increase was mainly attributed to
higher revenue and improved gross profit margin as a result of cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement. The Group recorded a net
profit of approximately US$8.6 million in 2022, making an increase
of approximately 852.0%, compared to last year's modest profit of
approximately US$0.9 million.

I.  Pharmaceutical business strategy: full market
and product coverage in sales activities,
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
in production line, and product portfolio
expansion
To strengthen two coverages in sales activities
- Full market coverage

1. Hospital sales channel: our self-run hospital
team continued to strengthen the work and
collaboration with the medical marketing
department during the year to enhance academic
promotion. We also speed up our research on the
application of new indications of Pafulin based
on rheumatology, and commenced the exchange
and sharing of experience among related divisions,
such as dermatology and stomatology, as well
as multi-treatment areas, with the aim to extend
our brand influence in different divisions of the
developed hospitals.
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Chairman’s Statement

Meanwhile, the Group was committed to develop
its low-tier sales network in accordance with
the stratified care policy. Our primary goal was
to reach the secondary or grass-roots hospitals,
with an emphasis on the development of
medical alliances and county hospitals (county
cooperation), and particularly, our main focus
was on hospitals located in more populous and
developed counties.

2. Commercial distribution channel: with enhanced
product pricing management, we were able to
increase the number of hospitals that purchased
our medicine in terms of commercial distribution
by partnering with distributors who have the
resources and comprehensive networks to
maximise the influence of Lansen products.

3. Semi-self-run team in grass-roots areas:
semi-self-run team carried out refined semi-self-run
promotion for all products in remote areas and
areas not covered by the self-run hospital team,
to expand the coverage and sales of grass-roots
terminals, and enhance our product promotion
at grass-roots level by partnering with more
organisations.

4. OTC retail channel: in terms of the distribution and
expansion of retail channels, the OTC retail team
has started to experiment with the deployment
of major OTC chain channels and promoted the
expansion of OTC's broader market coverage
during the year.

In 2022, the Group’s target hospitals above the
secondary level that purchased our medicine increased
by approximately 3.3% to 2,597 from 2,514 in 2021,
while grass-roots hospitals that purchased our medicine
increased by approximately 9.0% to 1,552 from 1,424
in 2021.

=Rz B R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 7
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- Full product coverage

The Group’'s core products, Pafulin and Sicorten
Plus, served as the stepping stone for us to promote
other products of the Group to different speciality
divisions, including medicine products with independent
production approvals which the Group plans to resume
production, resulting in a rise in sales and forming a
marketable product mix. In 2022, some hospitals have
already increased the number of the Group’s product
categories.

To strive for cost reduction and efficiency enhancement
in the production line

The Group optimised the supply and production chain, and
gradually facilitated the construction of the supply chain for
key raw materials, with the implementation of cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement through multiple channels
and projects. We also further strengthened the safety and
sustainability of the supply of key raw materials by increasing
inventories at a safe and reasonable level, while improving the
economic control of procurement. The production chain used
energy-saving equipment and technology applications, and
process optimisation to improve its cost-effectiveness. During
the year, these efforts enabled us to reduce production costs
and ensure product quality.

To strengthen product research and development,
accelerate production resumption and introduce
products with market value to expand product portfolio
The Group continued with its research and development
efforts on Pafulin, including research on the mechanism of
action and new indications. At the same time, the Group
facilitated the technological improvement and resumed
production of more than 20 medicine products with
independent production approvals, and achieved our goal
to resume production of Chanfukang Keli and Notoginseng
capsules during the year. The Group also actively sought
to introduce products with market value to strengthen its
product portfolio.

Healthcare business strategy: to develop the
plant extract business and healthcare product
business in both directions through the
development platform of Natural Dailyhealth

With respect to the healthcare business, the Group continued
to take Natural Dailyhealth Holdings Limited (“Natural
Dailyhealth”), its associate, as a platform for business
development.
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Chairman’s Statement

Our development strategy for the plant extract business
included: (i) strengthening the professional construction
and management of our sales team, expanding our market
development channels, and continuously improving our sales
team’s ability to explore opportunities; and at the same time,
we continued to enhance the market recognition and brand
influence of our plant extract products by implementing the
strategy of developing high-quality products; (ii) increasing
Natural Dailyhealth’s bargaining power and improving the
cost-performance ratio of our raw material procurement by
sourcing from the source while building inventories at a safe
level for key raw materials; (iii) optimising our manufacturing
process and cost control capabilities to reduce costs and
enhance efficiency.

However, we have faced difficulties in sourcing raw materials
for our plant extract business of Natural Dailyhealth this year,
and our export business has also been affected due to the
international situation, changing market and other factors.
For example, the Russo-Ukrainian War has disrupted the
supply in Ukraine, a major production area for lingonberry
raw materials, while New Zealand, a major production area
for blackcurrant, has also reduced production due to climatic
factors, and the procurement prospects of the U.S. buyers
have been affected by economic and tariff policy adjustments.
However, due to the expansion of our domestic plant extract
business strategy, the increase in domestic sales has reduced
the impact of these negative factors on Natural Dailyhealth’s
revenue and profit.

With respect to the healthcare product business, we aimed
to develop a product matrix with core strength as main
milestones and establish a production base in Hong Kong
to build a “Made in Hong Kong” brand, which is positioned
as providing high-quality healthcare products. Our current
focus is on developing, manufacturing and registering (filing)
featured products in the Mainland China and Hong Kong.
We will not launch our healthcare products under Natural
Dailyhealth to the market until a sufficient number of
featured products and brands are in place.

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited g
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lll. Others: to discontinue the investment of new
resources in the cosmetic business
With respect to the cosmetic business, the Group decided to
discontinue its investment of new resources during the year
after reviewing the development strategy and effectiveness
in the past few years, while the Company’s resources would
instead be focused on its pharmaceutical and healthcare
business development. We would only consider reinvestment
in the cosmetic business when we have worked out a clear
sales strategy with quality products and a professional team
to be presented at the right moment.

Outlook for 2023

As a crucial year in the post-pandemic era in China, the year
2023 becomes an important window of opportunity to reshape
the pharmaceutical and healthcare industries and upgrade our
businesses through transformation. Looking ahead to 2023, the
Group will continue to adhere to its established development
strategies for its pharmaceutical and healthcare business.

Proactively following the direction of the national policy on tiered
diagnosis and treatment, the Group will continue to increase
its efforts on total market and product coverage, reduce costs
and enhance efficiency, and at the same time, actively introduce
new products through production resumption, research and
development or acquisition and merger to strengthen its product
portfolio and build a premium brand to ensure continuous stable
growth of the Group’s business.

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately US$65.6
million in 2022 (2021: US$54.2 million), representing an increase
of approximately 21.0% over the last year and, after excluding
the effect of the depreciation of RMB against USD, an increase by
26.8% from last year. Such increase was mainly due to the increase
in sales volume of the Group’s core products, Pafulin and Sicorten
Plus, as compared to last year. The Group's profit from operations
in 2022 was approximately US$14.2 million (2021: US$5.6 million),
representing an increase of approximately 154.7% from last year,
the increase in profit from operation was mainly attributable to
the increase in revenue as mentioned above which resulted in a
corresponding increase in gross profit. Net profit for the Group
in 2022 was approximately US$8.6 million, making an increase
of approximately 852.0%, compared to last year’s modest profit
of approximately US$0.9 million, which was mainly due to the
increase in profit from operations.

In 2022, revenue of the pharmaceutical segment amounted to
approximately US$63.6 million (2021: approximately US$51.4
million), representing an increase of approximately 23.8% from
2021 and, after excluding the effect of the depreciation of RMB
against USD, an increase of approximately 29.7% from last year;
gross profit amounted to approximately US$43.8 million (2021:
approximately US$33.7 million), representing an increase of
approximately 29.7% from 2021; and segment profit amounted
to approximately US$24.7 million (2021: approximately US$17.6
million), representing an increase of approximately 39.9% from
2021. The increase in profit of the pharmaceutical segment was
mainly due to the increased sales volume of Pafulin and Sicorten
Plus for the year as compared with last year.

In 2022, revenue of the cosmetic product segment amounted
to approximately US$0.1 million (2021: approximately US$0.2
million), representing a decrease of 72.2% from 2021; gross profit
amounted to approximately US$61,000 (2021: approximately
US$0.1 million); and segment profit amounted to approximately
US$58,000 (2021: segment loss of approximately US$0.8 million).
The revenue for the year was mainly derived from handling the
historical inventory for which provisions had been made.

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 11
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The Group utilises Natural Dailyhealth as a platform for developing
its healthcare business. In 2022, revenue from the healthcare
business other than Natural Dailyhealth amounted to approximately
US$1.9 million (2021: approximately US$2.6 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 25.4% from 2021; gross profit
amounted to approximately US$0.4 million (2021: approximately
US$0.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately 21.9%
from 2021; and segment profit amounted to approximately US$0.1
million (2021: approximately US$0.2 million). The operating results
of the healthcare business are reflected in the Group’s share of
profit or loss of Natural Dailyhealth, an associate of the Group.
During the year, Natural Dailyhealth saw an increase in sales of
some of its plant extract products but gross profit decreased due to
international conditions and market changes. The Group’s share of
loss from Natural Dailyhealth for 2022 was approximately US$0.9
million (2021: approximately US$0.9 million).

Pharmaceutical segment

In 2022, the State officially released the ”14th Five-Year National
Health Plan”, the basic principles of which stated that the State
persisted in focusing on the grass-roots, promoting resources
reaching grass-roots and close coordination between different
levels to improve the ability of the grass-roots to prevent and treat
diseases as well as managing their health. The State stratified care
structure is gradually being established, and these policies have
demonstrated the importance of penetrating into low-tier market to
increase hospital coverage, especially for chronic diseases. In 2022,
the Group developed its pharmaceutical business in accordance
with its established strategy, with a focus on sales in terms of
market channels and wide coverage of products; cost control in
terms of optimising the supply and production chain to achieve
cost reduction and efficiency; and product portfolio expansion
strategy in terms of strengthening research and development,
resuming production of existing products as well as seeking new
product introductions. We addressed the challenges posed by the
changing market environment by optimising these three areas.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To strengthen the full market and product sales coverage

The Group has expanded its sales scale and extended its brand by
strengthening the sales model of full market channels and product
coverage. The Group required its marketing team to carry out
academic professional promotion in the graded hospitals, with
in-depth coverage at the grass-roots level, conduct targeted agent
recruitment in remote areas, as well as finding suitable institutions
for commerce and OTC retail channel sales, and using the core
products to drive the sales of the Group's other products to
develop a marketable product mix.

Full market coverage

(i)

HEES

The self-run hospital team, based on rheumatology,
commenced the exchange and sharing of experience among
related divisions, such as dermatology and stomatology,
as well as multi-treatment areas, with the aim to enter
different departments of the developed hospitals to increase
the brand influence of the products. During the year, the
hospital team strengthened its collaboration with the medical
marketing department to propose the therapeutic theory
of preventive treatment and encourage early screening for
rheumatic diseases so as to promote the use of Pafulin
for the early treatment of rheumatic immune diseases, as
well as to accelerate research on the application of Pafulin
for new indications. With a more rapid growth pace of
Sicorten Plus, the self-run hospital team has been engaged
in intensive hospital development and marketing activities in
the dermatology field, strengthening the influence of Sicorten
Plus as a premium dermatology product across the country.

Meanwhile, the Group was committed to developing its
low-tier sales network according to stratified care policy. As
patients with chronic diseases are often being directed to
grass-roots hospitals and community medical institutions in
the country’s stratified care system, the team accelerated
its development in medical alliances and county hospitals
(county cooperation) to expand the coverage of its sales
network. Targeting at hospitals located in more populous
and developed counties, the Group accelerated coverage
enhancement and new customer development, as well as
academic output and education for doctors of grass-roots
hospitals to promote the Group's core products and increase
its market share.
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(i) With enhanced product pricing management, we were able to
increase the number of hospitals that purchased our medicine
in terms of commercial distribution channel by partnering
with distributors who have the resources and comprehensive
networks to maximise the influence of Lansen products.
Professional sales support, including training and promotion,
will be provided to distributors to help them understand the
Group's products and markets and to improve sales efficiency
and customer satisfaction.

(iii)  Semi-self-run team carried out refined semi-self-run
promotion for all products in remote areas, aiming to cover
areas not covered by the self-run hospital team, expand the
coverage of grass-roots terminals by adding partners who are
familiar with the sales market in those areas and enhance
our product promotion in grass-roots level to enhance
brand awareness of the Group’s products at the grass-roots
terminals.

(iv) In terms of the distribution and expansion of retail channels,
the OTC retail team has started to experiment with the
deployment of major OTC chain channels and promoted the
expansion of OTC's broader market coverage during the year
and also planned to launch pilot product of OTC other than
Pafulin in provinces with good OTC development, such as
Sicorten Plus, Yahao and Qixuekang, etc. The Company would
establish cooperation with the leading e-commerce channel
customers under the premise of good price control.

By enhancing the full market channel coverage, the Group’s target
hospitals above the secondary level that purchased our medicine
increased by approximately 3.3% to 2,597 in 2022 from 2,514
in 2021, while grass-roots target hospitals that purchased our
medicine increased by approximately 9.0% in 2022 to 1,552 from
1,424 in 2021.

Full product coverage

The Group’s core products, Pafulin and Sicorten Plus, served as
the stepping stone for us to promote other products of the Group
to different speciality divisions, including medicine products with
independent production approvals which the Group planned to
resume production, allowing the Group’s products to meet the
needs of different people and diseases in multi-treatment areas.
In 2022, some hospitals have already increased the number of the
Group's product categories.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To strive for cost reduction and efficiency enhancement in
the production line

The Group strived for cost reduction and efficiency enhancement in
the production line, through optimising the supply and production
chain, and gradually facilitated the construction of the supply chain
for key raw materials, with the implementation of cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement through multiple channels and
projects. Specific measures included:

(i)  Launched the construction of the supply chain of white
peony, a key raw material for Pafulin, and continuously
optimised the procurement model to increase the Group's
procurement leadership by improving the tendering system
and introducing more supply competition; strengthened
the safety of the supply of key raw materials by increasing
inventories at a safe and reasonable level, while procuring
white peony with high cost-performance ratio;

(i)  The production chain used energy-saving equipment and
technology applications to cope with rising energy prices.
During the year, the Group implemented photovoltaic power
generation and introduced high performance production
equipment to improve energy efficiency;

(iii)  Lean scheduling and stronger synergy of production and sales
operations to rationalise staff planning and reduce overheads
in line with the production process at the sales end and to
implement refined operational control,

(iv) Strengthened quality management throughout the full
process to safeguard the quality of production, reinforced
the Company’s ability to ensure compliance with regulations
and product quality assurance, and further enhanced the
awareness and ability of all staff to ensure quality through
measures such as the ISO9001 quality management system
certification and the launch of a series of quality-themed
activities;

(v) In respect of safety and environment: through 1SO14001 and
ISO45001 environmental management system certification,
implementing measures such as energy saving and emission
reduction, optimisation of waste disposal, continuously
promote safety standardisation and lean operation of green
factories.

These efforts reduced production costs during the year while
ensuring product quality, reducing the pressure on gross profit
margin due to rising raw material and energy prices and improving
the sustainability of the business.

PAAE BB AR G R A A Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 15



EEENWR DN

Management Discussion and Analysis

EmmEmE mMREERSIEATSE
ENERPRERAS

AEBE-FSBEMETR  AZEKRAD
[ )2 R B2 57 B8 bR BRI - pNoR A L E SR A
AMBNBEEBRRAENZE FERENUEK
MEBEZTHENMAR ZTERMEEZR
BHEFHEMAREN BERASRINLES
FEAHR At 351 EE An T 3 o

AEBEMEHEE _THREFRFETEEHRX
BERORRMEETF YRFRTKTE
BEEN ZLtBEFEMNEERR %
MRS MTER EBENABBNMAEZHEF
BRESEMEEMRGHNESTERELER
BR - - =—FRIKBEBTKREELD -

AEBTBEEHESREIABMSEENE RN
BILERMAS  HEBEBMREIAETISE
B MEEBENARBREMNER KAaKRED
BTAMERTHEERENERR EH
BRERRR - ME MR E DG EESRS
AHRAE  MESIABREZXZHAFEY
MmBEAFAFRANER

AEEALFEBNRIE  MREEKSIE
BEmGEENER BRENZECEMER
KEPRERNEmMBRE

IB Annual Report 2022 4

To strengthen product research and development, accelerate
production resumption and introduce products with market
value to expand its product portfolio

The Group further optimised the research and development
direction to consolidate the mature rheumatology and dermatology
therapeutic areas, to strengthen the research on new standards,
new indications and new drugs for the core product Pafulin total
glucosides of white peony capsules, to gradually expand and enrich
other therapeutic areas such as pediatrics and gynecology, to
implement the white peony series and gradually extend it to the
research and development of other series of product.

The Group facilitated the technological improvement and resumed
production of more than 20 medicine products with independent
production approvals, and achieved our goal to resume production
of Chanfukang Keli and Notoginseng capsules during the year.
Significant progress has also been made in the study of resumption
of production for Cough syrup, Ganda Pian, Yinbaiganyan Keli and
Huperzine-A Capsules, which will be completed and launched in
2023 and beyond.

The Group also actively sought to introduce products with market
value to strengthen its product portfolio. We expected to enrich the
Group’s product lines by accelerating the introduction of suitable
products with market value, great market potential and in line with
the overall strategy of penetrating into lower-tier terminal market.
We focused on the introduction of research and development
products in the rheumatology, dermatology and maternal and
child product lines, and at the same time, the Group will research
on introducing products for the development of advantageous
business therapeutic areas and high-burden disease treatment
areas.

The Group aimed to build and improve its product matrix to match
market demand and corporate development by strengthening
research and development, accelerating production resumption and
introducing products with market value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Healthcare segment

In 2022, the Group continued to use Natural Dailyhealth as a
healthcare business development platform to develop its plant
extract business and healthcare product business.

The plant extract business operation faced challenges. The
procurement of raw materials from overseas and our export
business were affected by the international situation and market
changes (e.g. the Russo-Ukrainian War has disrupted the supply
in Ukraine, a major production area for lingonberry raw materials,
while New Zealand, a major production area for blackcurrant,
has also reduced production due to climatic factors, and the
procurement prospects of the U.S. buyers have been affected
by economic and tariff policy adjustments). Natural Dailyhealth
adopted the following measures:

(i)  Product and client expansion: strengthening the professional
construction and management of our sales team, expanding
our market development channels, and continuously
improving our sales team’s ability to explore opportunities;
developing medicinal and edible plant extract products
with company characteristics, and continuing to enhance
the market recognition and brand influence of Natural
Dailyhealth’s plant extract products by implementing the
strategy of developing high-quality products;

(i)  Procurement optimisation: in order to boost the
bargaining power of Natural Dailyhealth and improve the
cost-performance ratio of raw material procurement, the
Group would source its procurement from the source and
consider bringing in more suppliers. Meanwhile, we would
strengthen the construction of reasonable inventory at a safe
level of key raw materials;

(iii)  Production technology optimisation: optimising manufacturing
and cost control capabilities to achieve cost reduction and
efficiency while Natural Dailyhealth would also make full
use of the opportunity of transforming and upgrading
from a traditional plant extract factory to a company with
qualification for drug manufacturing to improve our processes
and apply new technologies and equipment.

Such measures mitigated the negative impact of changes in
international situation and markets on revenue and profit.
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The healthcare product business currently focused on developing,
manufacturing and registering (filing) featured products in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, to develop a product matrix with
core strength, continue to build a brand positioned as providing
high-quality healthcare products through establishing a production
base in Hong Kong to build a “Made in Hong Kong” brand. We
will not launch our healthcare products to the market until a
sufficient number of featured products and brands are in place.

Cosmetic segment

The Group’s sales during the year were mainly through agency
network sales to handle the historical inventory for which
provisions had been made. The Group decided to continue to halt
its investment of new resources in the cosmetic business during the
year after reviewing the development strategy and effectiveness in
the past few years. Until opportunities arise and the Group has a
well-defined marketing strategy in place as well as right products to
market and with a professional team, the Group would not make
any new investment in the cosmetic business, while the Company’s
resources would instead be focused on its pharmaceutical and
healthcare business development. The Group made a provision for
impairment of its investment in an associate, Tianjin Robustnique
Biotechnology Co., Limited, for the year, which was approximately
US$0.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$65.6 million
(2021: approximately US$54.2 million) for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing an increase of 21.0% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
pharmaceuticals amounted to approximately US$63.6 million (2021:
approximately US$51.4 million), representing an increase of 23.8%
over last year. Revenue from cosmetic products amounted to
approximately US$0.1 million (2021: approximately US$0.2 million),
representing a decrease of 72.2% over last year. Revenue from
healthcare products amounted to approximately US$1.9 million
(2021: approximately US$2.6 million), representing a decrease of
25.4% over last year.

The Group's self-owned specialty pharmaceutical products (Pafulin
and Sicorten Plus), recorded a revenue of approximately US$56.8
million (2021: approximately US$46.8 million) representing an
increase of 21.3% over last year.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a
gross profit of approximately US$44.3 million (2021: approximately
US$34.4 million), representing an increase of 28.7% over last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the overall gross profit
margin was 67.6% (2021: 63.5%), representing an increase of
4.1% over last year.

The increase in overall gross profit margin as compared to last year
was mainly because of the improvement of gross profit margin of
pharmaceutical products as a result of cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement.

Other income

Other income amounted to approximately US$1.2 million (2021:
approximately US$0.7 million) for the year ended 31 December
2022, representing an increase of 65.2% over last year, which
was mainly because the government grants received in 2022
increased by approximately US$0.3 million compared to last year.
Government grants received by the Group primarily came from the
local government of Mainland China as recognition of the Group’s
efforts in developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.
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Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group increased by 12.0% to approximately
US$19.5 million from approximately US$17.4 million last year. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the proportion of the selling
and distribution expenses of the Group to the total revenue of
the Group decreased by 2.4% to 29.7% from 32.1% last year.
The decrease was mainly because of the decrease in sales and
distribution activities in 2022.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of pharmaceuticals products are the
key factors in maintaining the Group’s leading market position.
The Group endeavoured to enhance market recognition of its
pharmaceutical products and has actively launched educational
activities. By organising academic conferences across China,
doctors and users were able to have a better understanding of the
pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of these products.

Administrative expenses and research and development costs
For the year ended 31 December 2022, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately US$9.6 million (2021: approximately
US$9.5 million), representing an increase of 1.0% over last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the proportion of the
administrative expenses of the Group to the total revenue of the
Group decreased by 2.9% to 14.7% from 17.6% last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, research and development
costs amounted to approximately US$2.1 million (2021:
approximately US$2.7 million), representing a decrease of 20.6%
over last year. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
proportion of the research and development costs of the Group to
the total revenue of the Group decreased by 1.7% to 3.3% from
5.0% last year.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, finance costs of the Group
increased by approximately US$1.4 million. This was mainly due to
the net exchange loss approximately US$1.8 million recorded for
the year.

Share of post-tax result of associates

Share of post-tax losses of associates for the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately US$0.9 million (2021
approximately US$1.0 million).
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Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah")
has obtained the certification as a high-technology enterprise and
enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15%. According to the
Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “EIT Law") of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the implementation rules of the EIT Law,
except for Ningbo Liwah, the enterprise income tax rate for the
Group’s other PRC subsidiaries was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately US$8.6 million,
representing an increase by approximately US$7.7 million from
approximately US$0.9 million last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary
shares. The Group primarily finances its working capital and other
capital requirements by net cash generated from operating activities
and resorts to external financing including bank borrowings from
time to time when the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet
capital requirements. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company completed placing of new shares under general
mandate. On 7 April 2022, the Company and the placees entered
into the subscription agreements, pursuant to which the placees
conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Company conditionally
agreed to allot and issue a total of 49,520,000 ordinary shares at a
placing price of HK$1.20 per placing share.

The placing of 49,520,000 shares was completed on 20 April 2022.
The net proceeds after deducting the related expenses amounted
to approximately HK$59,154,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$7,618,000) (“Net Proceeds”). Accordingly, the Company’s share
capital increased by approximately US$495,000 and the remaining
balance of the Net Proceeds of approximately US$7,123,000 was
credited to the share premium account. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 7 April 2022 and 20 April
2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Net Proceeds were utilised
approximately US$5.6 million. The intended use of the remaining
balance of the Net Proceeds remains unchanged, for (i) potential
future acquisitions or projects; and (ii) replenishment of working
capital and general corporate purposes to support the Company’s
strategy. There is no specific timeline for the use of the remaining
balance of the Net Proceeds as this is subject to the availability
of suitable investment opportunities, the pace of the Company’s
business development, and the economic and market conditions of
the pharmaceutical industry in China. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company has not identified any specific target for acquisitions or
projects and it will continue to identify such opportunities.

As at 31 December 2022, net current assets and current ratio of
the Group were approximately US$72.5 million (2021: US$61.1
million) and 2.2 (2021: 2.1) respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately US$51.3 million (2021: approximately
US$32.5 million). As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
pledged bank deposits of approximately US$9.8 million (2021
approximately US$15.9 million) to secure banking facilities of
the Group and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary. As at
31 December 2022, the Group had restricted bank deposits of
approximately US$15.2 million (2021: Nil), which is the cash
deposits received from Cathay International Holdings Limited
("CIH") placed in designated bank accounts as security under a
counter-guarantee provided by CIH to the Group pursuant to a
cross guarantee agreement.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately US$18.2 million (2021: approximately US$24.7
million).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group was in a net cash
and bank balance position.

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign
currency risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in
the respective functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group
currently does not have any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management would closely monitor foreign exchange
exposure and consider hedging foreign currency exposure when
necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain bank deposits and bills receivables
in an aggregate carrying amount of approximately US$25.3 million
(2021: approximately US$35.2 million) were pledged to secure
banking facilities of the Group and bank borrowings of a fellow
subsidiary.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximately US$0.1 million (2021:
approximately US$0.2 million).

Financial guarantee issued

The Group has issued guarantees to banks in respect of borrowings
made by Jilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology Company Limited
("Jilin Haizi"), a fellow subsidiary of the Group. Under the
guarantee, the Group is liable for a maximum of RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$18,666,000) (2021:
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$20,390,000))
borrowings drawn by Jilin Haizi from the banks. As at 31 December
2022, the maximum liability of the Group under the guarantee
issued represents the amount drawn down by Jilin Haizi of
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately US$14,358,000)
(2021: RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$20,390,000)). During the year ended 31 December 2022,
provision for financial guarantee contract of approximately US$0.5
million (2021: approximately US$0.5 million) was reversed.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Material acquisitions and disposals

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of any
subsidiaries and associates of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Human resources

The Group had 626 employees as at 31 December 2022 with
employee costs of approximately US$19.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Staff remuneration of the Group is
determined with reference to individual performance, professional
qualifications, experience in the industry and relevant market
trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close reference
to the relevant labour market and economic condition. The Group
provides career advancement training in the form of internal
courses and workshops for the staff and encourages them to
participate in training programmes related to the Group’s business.
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Our mission

Introduction

To comply with the requirements set out in “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group herein
reports the environmental, social and governance report (the "ESG
Report”) for the year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022,
to report practices, performance and development of the Group
in environmental management, corporate social responsibility and
governance in 2022 to our shareholders, employees, customers and
consumers, suppliers and other stakeholders.

The Group continues to compile the report on a consistent basis
to allow for meaningful comparisons across time. The scope of
this report has no major change from previous years. Unless
specifically stated otherwise, the scope of this report includes
data and activities from operations over which we have full
management control, including our headquarters in Hong Kong,
our manufacturing facilities in Mainland China.

Strategy and Management of Environmental,
Social and Governance Matters

The Group is gradually incorporating the sustainable development
strategy into its overall development strategy system as it continues
to grow and expand.
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Our vision

Provide customers with quality products and services
to improve people’s health and quality of life, while
maximising the investment return to shareholders and
satisfying the personal development needs of the staff.

To develop and promote the distinctive products of
pharmaceutical and healthcare, and promote the
continuous and steady growth of its business through
merger and acquisition, integration, international
cooperation, and continuous innovation, and realise
the win-win value of shareholders, customers, and
employees. At the same time, to promote standardised
ESG management to ensure the healthy and sustainable
development of the Company.
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Board Statement

The Group considers sustainable development as a strategic
approach to create long-term business value. The Board is
responsible for ensuring the Group stays on track and in
balance with the three sustainability dimensions of economic,
environmental, and social impacts at all times. To effectively
manage the business of each operating unit, the Group integrates
sustainable development into our business strategies and our
corporate governance structure. As the highest governing
authority in the Group, the Board has ultimate responsibility for
all sustainability-related matters, focusing on providing vision and
strategic direction for our sustainability activities and formulating
corresponding business strategies and policies. The Board also
regularly reviews the Group’s sustainability risks and opportunities,
performance and progress. With the support from the functional
departments such as Pharmaceutical Department, Operation
Department, Human Resources Department, Comprehensive
Management Department and Administration Department, the
Group has completed ESG-related tasks to fulfil the requirements
of the Listing Rules, and has established a dedicated ESG working
group in 2022, so as to improve the sustainability governance
structure.

This year, the Group has disclosed social-related key performance
indicators (KPIs) as required by the Listing Rules. We have also
conducted a climate risk assessment to identify physical and
transition risks associated with the Group to understand the
potential climate change impact on our business. In addition, our
employees’ health and safety are always our top priority.
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THpEsHE Participation of stakeholders

BENELEEZRMEMEBENE (BEBIFR  Stakeholder engagement is the process through which we stay
THESKE KREE ZTEPREEESE  f  connected with all stakeholders, including the governmental
JERG - B - #® - AL  HEEteAR)  and industrial regulators, investors, customers and consumers,
REHEHNBRE - RMMEE FTEEBMER  suppliers, employees, the community, industry peers, media and
ARZEERME T FEZRERKAER - the general public. We believe that the effective engagement of
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Stakeholders
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Governmental and industrial regulators

REE

Investors

BEFEHEE
Customers and consumers

HERS
Suppliers

i
H

Employees

@
Community
e
Industry peers

REELEQR

Media and general public

all stakeholders is integral to the development of our sustainability
strategy and is also a prerequisite for our long-term sustainable
growth.

A summary of the stakeholder groups and the communication
channels are listed in the following table.

RBEMENBEELN

Methods of communication with stakeholders

BF2E8ER  FHBFEEB BITERIE
Government visits, supporting government projects and industry
collaboration

EF5g FOEE RN BB - @ 4 B
Board of directors, information disclosure, conference exchange,
ordinary visits, website, mail, telephone

B  MERLETE  BFPRY - EEEF
Academic seminars, new product launching conferences, customer
service, telephone consultations

HEMEESE  REBEKD - FEE
Supplier management system, procurement tender mechanism,
annual evaluation

ITg BIRKEKARES ZHEUEI Z2EE XBEH @RE
B TEHER

Trade union, employee congress, multi-type training, safety
management, cultural and sports activities, health examination,
paid annual leave

NEED
Community activities

ITEARE  1TEWmEBHEGSH
Trade organisations, forums, and conferences

EEIRE - BEIEEEA - HEBELH - A
Information disclosure, public opinion monitoring, media
communication mechanism, website
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EEINFEHEWITEEBUEMEE - B3  Considering stakeholders’ responses on the relevance in the
B 28T HA R &£ B LEMABEAIEE - (€ K& industry’s context, we have identified 28 ESG issues related to the
EREBE WEBEMEMEAR HF147%  Group's operations. 14 topics are prioritised as highly material

as shown in the materiality matrix. This report focuses on the
discussion of the Group’s management approach, policies, and
performance about the highly material topics.
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Lansen Pharmaceutical Materiality Matrix 2022
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Climate Change
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Environment

To ensure that our approach to environmental management and
initiatives to enhance our environmental performance can be
carried out effectively and consistently throughout the Group, we
have established environmental targets on various environmental
aspects for the factory operations, including targets to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, energy consumption and waste
management.

In accordance with the requirements of the “Measures for the
Evaluation of Star Green Factories in Ningbo (Provisional)”, the
Group strengthened the establishment of green manufacturing
system over the weakness, and continued to strengthen the works
of land use intensity, harmlessness of raw materials, production
cleanliness, waste resourcefulness and low-carbon energy, so
as to make up for the shortcomings and further improve the
level of green manufacturing. After the procedures of project
submission, preliminary review and recommendation of territorial
streets and parks, expert evaluation and list announcement, we,
as an enterprise that has passed the clean production review and
acceptance and municipal water-saving demonstration in the past
three years, were included in the list of the First Three-star Green
Factories in Haishu District, and were also included in the positive
list of enterprises of Ningbo ecological environment supervision and
law enforcement.

Policies, Laws, and Regulations Concerning the Industry

To demonstrate that we are committed to the continuous
improvement on environmental protection, the Group continues
to monitor environmental compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, which primarily include:

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

° Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes of the PRC

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

The Law on the Prevention and Control of Noise Pollution of
the PRC

o Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards (National
standards)

. Air Pollutant Emission Standards for Boilers (National
standards)
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3 Contingency Plans for Environmental Emergencies (filed to
Ningbo Environmental Protection Bureau)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Promoting Clean
Production

Energy Consumption

The Group supports the principle of green manufacturing. By
merging the idea of low-carbon operation into our production
process, we aim to reduce energy usage for manufacturing
purposes. The Environmental Protection and Energy Management
Office has been making significant achievements in helping
the Group to minimise its energy consumption through the
implementation of energy-saving and management projects. By
strictly monitoring the energy consumption and emission data, the
Environmental Protection and Energy Management Office ensures
our resources are well utilised at the operational level and avoid the
violation of emission standards under relevant laws and regulations.

The Group has been monitoring energy consumption in our factory
operations in accordance with the Renewable Energy Law of the
PRC, Energy Conservation Law of the PRC and the Requirement for
Metrology Management of Energy Consumption in Organisations
Using Energy in Zhejiang Province, and reference to the targets of
relevant laws and regulations as the Group’s emission standards.

To optimise our energy resources, we have further improved our
production process and technologies. By switching to LED lighting,
installing steam timers, adopting variable frequency control for
large equipment, and implementing residual heat recovery for boiler
water, we aim to reduce our energy consumption. The Group has
also automatised the air conditioning and boiler system. It not only
minimises the negative impacts of excess heat, noise, and vibration,
but also makes significant improvements in energy conservation.
This year, the Group has been studying the feasibility of solar panel
installation, to further reduce energy consumption in our factories.
In addition, the Group has recorded the daily electricity usage to
monitor the consumption patterns on our production floors. By
collecting the daily data, we could then identify the key areas and
plan for more detailed energy-saving projects, as well as optimise
our energy resources through different manufacturing processes.
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In addition, the Group actively responded to the national energy
development goal of “carbon peak by 2030 and carbon neutral
by 2060”. On hot summer days, we optimised our production
and cooperated with relevant departments to reduce energy
consumption without causing product inventories, thus responded
to the government’s call for “electricity for the people” in a timely
manner.

The Storage and Transportation Department of Gaogiao plant
adopts green energy means of transport. Subject to the guarantee
of safety and load capacity, the forklifts that originally needed to
use fuel are replaced by rechargeable forklifts. The electric forklift
is driven by electricity, which has the advantages of no pollution,
low noise, easy operation, energy saving and high efficiency
compared with the internal combustion forklift, and also improves
the comfort and safety of the operators.

We have formulated the Management Rules on the Use of Air
Conditioners during daily working. Before the holidays, the Safety
and Environment Department and administrative staff are supposed
to conduct unified inspections, switch off the power of infrequently
used appliances, actively remind all employees to switch off
electrical appliances, shut down monitors while away for a long
time, etc. We also advocate employees to print on both sides of
paper, adjust the size of paper printed in the warehouse and other
details to raise everyone’s awareness of energy saving.

We encourage employees to participate in the design of
energy-saving programmes and continuously raise their awareness
of protecting valuable resources by formulating internal
regulations such as the Management Regulations on Advocating
Frugal Operations and the Management Measures Files on Cost
Reduction and Efficiency Improvement Projects for Middle and
Lower Level Employees. During the reporting period, we have
made contributions to labour, energy consumption, material scrap
and other things through various cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement projects such as production line optimisation, the
addition of automated production lines, independent verification
of certain equipment, and the establishment of special projects for
stand-alone product.
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Total Electricity Consumption

HEE (TRRF)
Electricity Consumption (kWh)

6,197,932 6,558,379

5.8%

2021 2022

RARRABFER

Total Natural Gas Consumption

BEMRAREER
Electricity Consumption Per Revenue

FHEE(TRR)/

WA (F£7T)

Electricity Consumption (kWh)/
Revenue (US$'000)

114.40
100.04

12.6%

2021 2022

BENRARARHER

Natural Gas Consumption Per Revenue

RAREREE (IBELFK)
Natural Gas Consumption (Nm?)

155,268
133,035

14.3%

2021 2022

-

Total Steam Consumption

RINFHFER /

WA (FZETT)

Natural Gas Consumption /
Revenue (US$'000)

2.87
29.3% 2.03
2021 2022

BENRAZRTVHER

Steam Consumption Per Revenue

FAEFEE ()
Steam Consumption (Tonnes)

31,602
27,318
III 157% III
2021 2022

A EEE (E)/

WA (FZ=TT)

Steam Consumption (Tonnes)/
Revenue (US$'000)

2021 2022
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*  Total Direct Energy Consumption . Direct Energy Consumption Per Revenue
HiIZREEE (H5%) BEEEREREE(HE)/
Direct Energy Consumption (GJ) WA (F=TT)

Direct Energy Consumption (GJ)/
Revenue (US$'000)

5,886 0.11
4,849 0.07
17.6%
>
2021 2022 2021 2022
- J - /
BiEEERERE BEMBABEEREERE
Total Indirect Energy Consumption S Indirect Energy Consumption Per Revenue
MEEREREE (F55) R ERE ()
Indirect Energy Consumption (GJ) BA(F3TT) ,
Indirect Energy Consumption (GJ)/
Revenue (US$'000)
114,463
100,849 186 175
0,
13.5% 5\9‘6
v
2021 2022 2021 2022
- J - /
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Climate Change

The Group understands that climate change poses a fundamental
threat to places, species, and people’s livelihoods. As an
environmentally conscious and sustainable company, we are
committed to contributing to GHG reduction and aligning our
sustainable growth with the national and international climate
change agenda.

For physical risks, we acknowledge that extreme weather caused
by climate change could affect our business in various ways. To
minimise the potential environmental impacts arising from our daily
operation and address the climate change challenges, the Group
engaged a third party to conduct a climate risk assessment which
identified the key risks associated with the Group. Heavy rainfall,
flooding and typhoon are identified as the key risks that could
possibly affect business operations.

As a result, the Group has developed our Climate Change Strategy
to prepare for downside risk and ensure our business strategies
are not only following the longer-term trajectory of climate change
but also sufficiently flexible to respond to the inevitable changes
in the business environment. As part of our Climate Change
Strategy, we have developed the Emergency Plan for Typhoon and
Flood Prevention and the Emergency Response Guide for Typhoon
and Flood Prevention, which set out the emergency response
procedures to protect the safety of our staff. The Group has also
set up a Typhoon and Flood Prevention Emergency Task Force to
carry out annual training and drills for staff to strengthen their
emergency response capabilities and enhance their awareness and
knowledge of the plan.

For transition risks, to meet the national carbon neutrality target
by 2060, it is expected that the People’s Republic of China
will implement stricter policies and regulations to control GHG
emissions. Therefore, it might impact the business operation and
bring uncertainty in terms of GHG emissions. We continuously
review our approach to climate change to enhance our resilience in
response to the associated risks and opportunities.
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GHG and Air Emissions

In relation to the reduction of our carbon footprint, the Group has
been strictly complying with environmental laws such as the Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC, the Cleaner Production Promotion
Law of the PRC and the Work Plan for Controlling Greenhouse
Gas Emission during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period and will follow
national strategic goals on developing province-wide pilot plan
to promote photovoltaics development by studying the feasibility
of solar panel installation. In addition, the Group also references
to the targets of relevant regulations as the Group’s emission
standards.

The Group believes that a collaborative effort by all business
units is needed to reduce GHG emissions. In connection with
management, we ensure all our factories have complied with
the requirements of local environmental bureaus to continue to
enhance the GHG and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
reduction measures. For example, we have switched the fuel for
the spray drying equipment from diesel to natural gas to minimise
GHG emissions, and the material control department has also
eliminated fuel-powered forklifts and replaced them with green
energy rechargeable forklifts. Subject to the guarantee of safety
and load capacity, the rechargeable forklifts have the advantages
including no exhaust emission, low noise, easy operation, energy
saving and high efficiency, and also improves the comfort and
safety of the operators. To meet the annual performance targets,
internal audits are conducted annually to improve the effectiveness
of several facilities, such as organic waste gas recovery equipment
and exhaust gas absorption devices.

BA A BE B iR A PR A & Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 35



RiR HEREBRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BEREETH RMEEAKTHT EEH
EHARABPEREELEGBRERELN
TRER -RANCLKKZBEE UEE
WMAOBRMES LI AEBEEEFE L
=T HIEFANFRE TETEILETEH
FZ B ROR D TR R B B AIVOCSE
PREERERI AR - AT Qo TT T B E
WHEZEEZMERBEEE - R BERIEM

. BERBAKNE (BE1%2)

Total GHG Emissions (Scopes 1 and 2)
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GHG Emissions
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Regarding waste gas treatment, we reduce the production of
industrial waste gas in raw materials storage and transportation
through centralised storage and transmission pipeline. Furthermore,
several devices have been installed to minimise waste gas
generation. In addition, the Group has engaged an independent
third party to develop a detailed annual work plan and conduct
regular audits. It effectively reduces the emission of industrial waste
gas and monitors the effectiveness of VOCs emission reduction
measures. We have sealed the open sink, and added exhaust gas
absorption devices to the ethanol tank to reduce emissions.
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GHG Emissions Per Revenue

N

BEREERE

(=S tmEE )/ WA(FETL)
GHG Emissions

(Tonnes CO,e)/Revenue (US$'000)
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The Group understands the importance of sustainable use of
natural resources and therefore tries its best to reduce resource
consumption and continue to explore the cost of the production
process and the recycling and reuse of semi-finished tailings,
packaging materials, condensate, etc.

Water Management

Clean water is a valuable resource, which the Group is committed
to conserving. None of our factories is operating in the
water-stressed regions. To control water pollution, we continuously
reinforce wastewater treatment by strictly following local
government requirements, carrying out measurements of required
items to meet the sewage discharge standards.
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The Group has been monitoring water consumption in accordance
with the Water Law of the PRC and the Regulations of Zhejiang
Province on the Management of Water Resources to conserve
water resources and reference to the targets of relevant laws and
regulations as the Group’s water management standards.

As for sewage treatment, we have installed a dedicated sewage
treatment facility to separate rainwater and sewage. It ensures that
our wastewater management complies with the national standards.
The Group has not only assigned staff to record the daily water
usage, but also upgraded the water-saving cooling towers and
minimised water leakage during the production process to reduce
water consumption in the production lines. In addition, we reused
the purified and concentrated water to increase our water recycling
rate.

Upon investigation, we found that the steam condensate generated
from workshop production basically entered into the rainwater
pipe network of the plant and eventually entered into the sewage
treatment tank. In order to save water resources, we conducted
special analysis on the recycling and reuse of condensate, and
invited professionals from various departments to actively seek
implementation programmes to reuse the collected condensate in
compliance with regulations.

' SEARARAR

Total Water Consumption

FKE (1)

Water Consumption (Tonnes)

78,647 83,300

5.9%

2021 2022

Water Consumption Per Revenue
FEKE (W) WA (FZETT)

Water Consumption (Tonnes)/
Revenue (US$'000)

1.45

2021 2022
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Waste Management
The Group will explore the recycling of Chinese medicine dregs for
animal breeding, in order to improve the reuse of waste.

The Group aims to operate our factories with maximum resources
efficiency by minimising the materials used throughout the
manufacturing process and increasing the recycling rate. We keep
track of the materials that we use, aiming to minimise unnecessary
waste of materials.

To alleviate the pressure of general solid wastes disposal on the
environment, the Group has also partnered with waste recycling
companies to further sort solid waste and complete resource reuse.

We actively explored methods to increase the value-in-use of waste.
With the joint efforts of several departments, we opened up the
recycling pipeline of the livestock industry in Ningbo and provided
Chinese herbal medicine residues to various enterprises that are
in cooperation with us, such as breeding industry and fertiliser
producers, and switched from originally outsourced disposal to
sales disposal, which generated additional income. During the
reporting period, we disposed of a total of approximately 4,029
tonnes, generating additional income of approximately RMB35,000.
In the meantime, the sales department also found counterparts to
recycle the impurity removal fluid of white peony and successfully
opened up the sales channel, which not only saved the disposal
cost and reduced environmental pollution, but also actively
provided us with new revenue. During the reporting period, we
disposed of a total of approximately 89 tonnes, generating income
of approximately RMB193,000. The production sludge is recycled
by Ningbo Greenland Biomass Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (%
AR MB LM ERERMAE AR QA for its research on organic
agricultural nutrient fluid, and jointly committed to promoting
green production and reducing sludge disposal costs at the same
time.

We have effectively sorted all kinds of waste generated in
production and office, and formulated the Waste Sorting
Management System to control, and effectively and harmlessly
disposed of the sorted waste, and the sorting methods and disposal
methods are in compliance with the requirements of relevant laws
and regulations of the country. We conduct real-time monitoring
of COD emission for workshop discharge and ensure that the
discharge meets the national requirements after pre-treatment
of sewage. At the same time, we analyse the data against the
products to ensure that the wastewater discharge meets the
requirements.
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(BIRIEREMZIEE)RAETEIEZE/ - #Z The National Hazardous Waste List clarifies new management
MBI HEREZEETEHER A&  requirements such as informatisation of management,
ErRNMEREEVEENEZ M - HMIM/E  standardisation of identification signs, and standardisation of
BRREINSBEEONZEEHREETCREEY - storage, the Group understands the importance of hazardous waste
WRHEEM T HEBEEEEYEIEAEAEM - management. It is critical to ensure that we have the highest degree
KPR LERAMEE AUNEIEELE 8 of safety in treating hazardous waste, as well as complying with
BoHE O RENMNGHEBREPHEEEZEY  the local industrial solid waste disposal legislation. We have also set
MfE - RPO B AEBEETRE P& KEE  up a dedicated warehouse to manage the hazardous waste issues

ZWMEAE °

from production, transportation, storage, handling, and filing. We

have renovated the warehouse to prevent the leakage of hazardous
wastes into the river.

BERRYELAE

Total Non-hazardous Waste Generation

BEMRARERRYELR

Non-hazardous Waste Generated Per Revenue

mEEEYELS (W)
Non-hazardous Waste
Generation (Tonnes)

6,433

4,763

35.1%

2021 2022

ERERYELAR

Total Hazardous Waste Generation

BEEEEMELS (M)
WA (F3%7T)

Non-hazardous Waste (Tonnes)/
Revenue (US$'000)

0.098

0.088
11.4%
»
2021 2022
N J

U SERWARREENELR

Hazardous Waste Generated Per Revenue

fERREEELS (M)
Hazardous Waste
Generation (Tonnes)

44.7% 21
.—
2021 2022

fEREEEES (B8)/
WA (FET)

Hazardous Waste (Tonnes)/
Revenue (US$'000)

0.00070
54.3%
~Ah  0.00032
2021 2022
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Total Packaging Materials Consumption

Raw Materials Management

Raw materials used by the Group for production primarily include
Chinese herbal medicines and various extracts. During the
extraction process, it may cause a minor impact on the environment
and natural resources. The Group actively fulfils its social
responsibilities and always aims to maintain the balance between
business development and environmental protection. We only
source the raw materials responsibly to minimise environmental
impacts. In addition, the Group has set up an assessment standard
to avoid the excessive use of packaging materials. To cope with
the demand of the market, for products that revamp packaging,
we also calculated the production program in a refined way, so
as to replace the old packaging materials with the new packaging
materials with minimum loss.

For our cooperative suppliers, we have signed the Green
Environment Agreement with our partners, calling on our friendly
partners to use green energy for production and proactively control
the generation of hazardous waste and harmful gases in the
process of production. We have also included green factories into
our supplier selection index and would give priority to cooperation
with companies with advanced environmental awareness under the
same conditions.

BENBABEMELEER
Packaging Materials Consumption Per Revenue

BEMEERES (1)
Packaging Materials
Consumption (Tonnes)

652
18.7%

2021

2022

BEMEDEREE (18)/

WA (FZETT)

Packaging Materials

Consumption (Tonnes)/Revenue (US$'000)

0.0120

325% 0.0081

>

2021 2022
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Employees

Corporate Culture

The Group aims to continue its business in prescription drugs
for autoimmune rheumatic diseases and become the number
one brand for basic medication in this field. At the same time,
we are actively expanding into the fields of cosmetic products,
healthcare products, and precision medication, striving to become
an outstanding diversified company in the health industry.
Professionalism, internationalisation, continuous innovation, and
vitality are our corporate culture and hope to bring happiness and
healthier life to our customers. The Group encourages teamwork,
clearly defines individual obligations, builds up responsibility, and
upholds pragmatic, open, and shared values. We hope to provide
high-quality products for customers, create high-quality life for
employees, achieve high-quality investment for shareholders and
contribute to society with a high-quality corporate responsibility.
The Group inherits and introduces innovations in traditional
medicine theory to develop and lead the future healthcare business.

Employee Guidelines

On the principle of respect and fairness, the Group is committed to
creating a harmonious and healthy working environment, and a fair
and developmental workplace atmosphere. The above principles
are followed in the provision of employment opportunities, salaries,
training, performance evaluation, promotion, etc. The Group has
never discriminated on the grounds of gender, age, ethnicity,
religion, culture, and educational background. The Group is
committed to equal opportunities for all employees, protecting
their legitimate rights. On the other hand, our Group’s employment
policy strictly adheres to current laws and regulations regarding
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, break time, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
child labour, forced labour, and other benefits.
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Labour contracts of the Group are based on the Labour Law
promulgated by the State and relevant local labour laws and
regulations. Contracts are legally binding as soon as they are
signed. The staff recruitment process of the Group strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC. The laws and
regulations that the Group mainly abides by include:

. The Labour Law of the PRC
. The Labour Contract Law of the PRC
. The Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors

o Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour
(State Council Order No. 364)

o Special Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers in
Zhejiang Province

In 2022, the Group did not violate any of the above laws and
regulations.

Employment Policy

The Group attracts outstanding talents to join by the Recruitment
Management System and provides various career development
opportunities for internal staff, to contribute to the development
of the Group. We pay attention to and understand the career
development and specialities of each employee, assign the most
suitable talents to appropriate positions, and care for them to
achieve the goal of joint development.

We implement scientific performance and development
management for every employee. We effectively link the strategic
objectives of the Group with individual and team objectives,
manage quantitatively and ensure the career development and
growth of employees while achieving the performance target.
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The Group makes annual salary adjustments for employees based
on comprehensive performance, current salary, market salary
level, business environment, and inflation rate to ensure that
the Company’s overall compensation remains competitive in the
market. By the provisions of the State, the Group pays endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing
provident fund for employees. We sign written labour contracts
with all employees regardless of nationality, religious belief and
gender.

The Group is dedicated to recruiting, motivating and retaining
outstanding employees. Our organisational development and
human capital management focus on providing employees with a
comprehensive training system, reasonable performance evaluation
and formulating scientific career development channels while
paying attention to employee recognition and incentives. Therefore,
employees can be motivated to learn and improve over time, and
thus achieve the long-term goal of enhancing employees’ abilities.

Every little step we have made owes greatly to the contribution of
our employees. Therefore, as the business grows, we would also
like to share our fruitful success with them and make sure we are
doing it fairly and reasonably.

Working Hours

To protect employees’ rights to work and rest and achieve work-life
balance, working hours for all employees comply with the Labour
Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC. The
working hours of employees in the administrative and management
functions are 40 hours per week. Whereas workers at production
sites work in shifts and salespeople follow the flexible working hour
system. In any case, where overtime working is required, overtime
payment will be awarded to employees under the relevant labour
laws and regulations. Furthermore, rest days and public holidays
are consistent with the Labour Law of the PRC.
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Staff Structure

The Group embraces diversity. We hire employees of different
genders, ages, skills, educational background, working experience,
and other career qualities to achieve optimum structure and
balance. When hiring talent, we follow the principle of “fairness,
equality, competition, and merit” from the perspective of the
“Recruitment Management System” to avoid discrimination based

on religion, race, or gender.
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52%
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Staff Health and Safety

Employees are crucial to the Group. Hence, we always put the
health and safety of employees in the first place. We protect our
employees using the principle of “Safety in Production” and are
dedicated to providing a safe, healthy, and guaranteed working
environment. Our production workshops are all equipped with dust
and noise cancellation, and dehumidification machines. Besides,
special equipment that might cause injuries would only be used
by authorised personnel, and periodic maintenance and annual
check-up are being conducted. The Group also placed warning
signs and identification labels for dangerous goods at eye-catching
places and formulated contingency plans for workplaces where
fatal accidents may occur. Additionally, we also provide appliances
for labour protection to workers at production sites to minimise
the risk of injury. Meanwhile, we hold annual fire drills with fire
evacuation, self-rescue, first aid, escape, and others. to strengthen
employees’ safety and self-protection awareness to avoid accidents.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our Group has already followed
the requirements and guidance on the prevention and control
of COVID diseases in Ningbo. By combining with the actual
operational situation of the Group, we have formulated a
temporary control measure for employees to follow to ensure their
safety.

We have also established a “Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Leading Group for Novel Coronavirus Prevention and Control”
and have formulated the following important epidemic control
measures:

. Arrange for some of the employees to work from home

o Require employees to check their temperatures, wear masks,
and present their Health Code and Travel Card

o Strengthen disinfection and canteen hygiene management
within the company

o Keep in close contact with the local government and keep
abreast of the latest news
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The Group established the Employee Health Management
Procedures and the Hygiene and Personal Health Condition
Management Procedures. We organise annual general health
examinations for employees. For those who are engaged in
hazardous occupations, we strictly follow the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention of Occupational Diseases and relevant labour laws
and reduce the incidence rate of occupational diseases through
regular health checks and recuperation. This year, a total of 109
employees have completed the occupational disease health check
and evaluation based on the results on whether the employees
meet the job requirements and make reasonable job transfer
arrangements for employees who may have potential risks on the
job.

The Group is devoted to providing a warm and comfortable office
environment for our employees. We do our best to improve the
working environment and facilities; and we encourage a smoke-free
office, which forbids employees to smoke in the factory area.
Besides, we equipped the workplaces with respective canteens that
provide a variety of nutritional meals.

Rights and Benefits of Employees

While creating economic benefits, we also actively protect
employees’ rights and enhance their welfare to increase their
sense of belonging and cohesiveness. Both the Group and the
labour union provide rich and heart-warming gifts on traditional
festivals, sending holiday care and blessings to every employee.
All employees enjoy paid leaves. Other than statutory holidays,
bonuses, allowances, subsidies, and welfare are also given to all
employees according to relevant laws and regulations. In addition
to basic medical insurance for all employees, we also provide
commercial insurance for accidental disability, public transportation
etc. and unionised mutual aid hospitalisation insurance for critical
illness and health insurance for female employees. In addition, we
also provide a certain proportion of medical expense reimbursement
to reduce employees’ financial burden. During the reporting period,
our Group visited employees who were suffering from illness with
consolation money and items.

To protect the legitimate rights and interests of all employees and
provide an open communication channel, we have established
a labour union and a workers’ representative assembly by the
laws. Additionally, through the office automation platform (the
“OA Platform”), corporate email, internal publication, billboard,
questionnaire, etc., we can deliver the latest news to our
employees and actively listen to their opinions and suggestions. We
would also respond and take corresponding improvement measures
to issues that are highly concerning to protect employees’ interests.
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To enrich the amateur life of employees, the Group has established
badminton associations, football associations, basketball
associations and reading camp, and provided basketball courts,
badminton halls, and other sports venues and entertainment
facilities for employees. Besides, we also organise amateur team
competitions with sister companies, business partners, and
communities irregularly. Moreover, we publish our internal monthly
magazine, “New Lansen” and operate a Wechat public account
called “Gather at Lansen” to enrich employees’ cultural life.
During the reporting period, our Group organised staff sports day,
basketball competitions, badminton competitions, hiking, learning
and reading books together and festival celebrations, etc. to help
our employees release their stress and, at the same time, provide
an opportunity for self-expression and communication.

Staff Training and Development

The Group prioritises talent development and we aim to provide
a common platform for the development of the organisation and
our employees. This year, the Group continued to carry forward
an all-rounded training system and has achieved a satisfactory
result. Given the pandemic, the Group has put great efforts into
improving its online training system for new employees in 2022,
and 25 Lansen new employees of the New Elite Class were trained
online for 6 days. The new employees’ live training camp was
carried out on Lansen’s live platform and WeChat group, and the
learning method of “direct learning + community operation” was
adopted to ensure the learning results. 43 trainees within 3 years
of employment were selected by High Calibre Class to join in the
cloud-based “7-day immersion” learning. The staff training centre
held 7 offline training sessions for the management staff of the
Company, including topic sharing such as career shaping, new era
belongs to those who work hard, PDCA management, upward
management, team building and psychology.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group views supplier selection as one of our core
responsibilities. We actively engage with suppliers, distributors,
and customers to develop close collaborations. In order to prevent
procurement risks, reduce operation cost and enhance the quality
of our products, we have established an effective Supply Chain
Management System for procurement, storage, logistics, and sales
and dispatching processes. With an effective management system
in place, our reputation and brand image can be further enhanced
which will benefit our business development in the long run.

Supply Chain Management System

The Group operates across the scopes of pharmaceuticals and
medical devices with all valid business licences and permits granted
by relevant government regulatory authorities. To improve overall
operational efficiency in the supply chain and reinforce the
standardisation of its management system, designated procedures
are established for each product based on their sales expectations,
and the Quality Control Department monitors the operations of
suppliers, distributors, and customers.

The Group strictly follows all relevant regulations and guidelines in
terms of Supply Chain Management and continuously improves the
existing system. We have formulated the Suppliers and Products
Selection and Management System, the Newly operated Suppliers
Selection and Management System, the New Product Selection and
Management System, the Procurement Management System, and
the Return and Exchange Management System in compliance with
all related laws and regulations, which include:

° Drug Administration Law of the PRC

o Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products

° Pharmacopoeia of the PRC

° Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products

o Regulation on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

° Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices
° Food Safety Law of the PRC

° Regulation on the Supervision and Administration of
Cosmetics
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Compliance Checking System of Suppliers

For the selection of a new supplier, the Supply Chain Management
Department and Quality Control Department are responsible for
the overall qualification reviewing of the supplier. Once approved,
the new supplier will be categorised as newly cooperated suppliers
and subsequent purchases will be arranged by the Supply Chain
Management Department. Meanwhile, the validity period of their
licences will be monitored by our Good Manufacturing Practices in
drug production (GMP)/Good Supply Practices in drug distribution
(GSP) information management system. Our system alerts related
personnel when the licence gets closer to its expiry date. The
licences will be frozen if the suppliers have not received a licence
renewal. Procurement requests will be not processed until the
required information is updated. During the selection of suppliers,
in scenarios where the conditions are the same, we will prioritise
suppliers who adopt sustainable products and services in their
operations while it will also be a crucial criterion during the annual
supplier assessment.

In terms of existing suppliers, the Quality Control Department
and the Supply Chain Management Department conduct supplier
quality reviews at least once a year, establish supplier quality
review files, and determine the retention or cancellation of
supplier qualifications in accordance with the Standard Operating
Procedures for Supplier Selection and Evaluation, in order to
compile the Qualified Suppliers List and constantly improve it based
on the current situation.

Apart from suppliers, an annual quality appraisal is conducted on
all products the Group has. To ensure the quality and safety of
our products, we pay close attention to the quality requirements
released by the national regulatory department. Meanwhile, we
have signed the Quality Assurance Agreement with pharmaceutical
suppliers, other related product suppliers as well as service
companies. We also conduct an annual assessment on the quality
control systems of our suppliers, distributors, and customers for
them to understand our requirements of product quality and their
responsibilities in case of any quality incidents. For the suppliers
who cannot pass the assessment or have been identified with
serious quality issues in their production, prompt action will be
taken including suspending the supply and delivery to downstream
customers as well as freezing their qualification of procurement
and supply in the system.
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To ensure a smooth operation of our Supply Chain Management
System, the Group guarantees no fewer than two qualified
suppliers to ensure a stable supply of raw materials in the case of
an emergency. Regarding the procurement of key materials, we
adopt centralised bidding to manage the suppliers hierarchically
and ensure the quality has met the standards and requirements
of the Group. This allows us to allocate resources evenly and
reasonably as well as to optimise the operational efficiency in the
supply chain. To guarantee the efficient operation of the Supplier
Chain Management System, the Group enhanced the internal audit
of its supplier chain management since 2020 and addressed the
identified defects and omissions in daily management based on the
audit report. Although the Group has yet set up requirements or
mechanisms to identify environmental and social risks in our supply
chain, we proactively consider adopting relevant measures soon. To
monitor the compliance of our suppliers with national regulations
regarding environmental and social risks, we will consider
reinforcing a stricter assessment of our suppliers in terms of their
environmental and social performance where relevant terms will be
added into the supplier agreement. Meanwhile, we are planning
to conduct irregular inspections of our key suppliers to ensure that
they meet the Group’s requirements and expectations at all times.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group procured raw materials,
auxiliary materials, packaging materials and finished products
from 144 suppliers with the geographical distribution as shown in
the table below. Among them, 140 were raw materials suppliers,
2 were pharmaceutical suppliers, 2 were logistics providers. All
suppliers mentioned above have passed our supplier and product
qualification assessment and supplier quality management system
appraisal.

Zitt BB N EEEE

Number of suppliers by geographical location

@ ER
East China
FEh
Central China
® it

Northeast China

Ecte) #if

South China North China
o 7 [iip!d

Southwest China Northwest China
® 58  HERREM

Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau
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Product Quality

The Group strives to provide high-quality and reliable products and
services for our customers. Through continuously enhancing our
Quality Management System, we devote our efforts to ensure the
quality and safety of our products and to fulfilling our corporate
responsibility through the aspects of drug safety and responsible
marketing.

Policies, Laws, and Regulations Concerning the Industry

The Group mainly produces products including pharmaceutical
products, medical devices, and cosmetic products. The Group
strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations of the PRC
regarding product safety during our operation, which mainly
includes:

° Drug Administration Law of the PRC

° Rules for Implementation of Drug Administration Law of the
PRC

o Law of the PRC on Product Quality

. Good Manufacture Practice of Medical Products (China Food
and Drug Administration)

° Good Pharmacovigilance Practice
° Good Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products

° Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of Medical
Devices

o Good Supply Practice for Medical Devices

To safeguard the rights of our customers and enhance our
brand image, the Group advertise our products responsibly while
complying with all laws relating to products advertisement,
including the Drug Administration Law of the PRC, the
Advertisement Law of the PRC, the Good Supply Practice for
Pharmaceutical Products, the Regulations on the Supervision and
Administration of Medical Devices, and the Good Supply Practice
for Medical Devices to ensure the legality of advertising content.
We also strictly control the quality of products and services, and
formulate and implement the Drug Advertisement Regulations
and the Brand (Product) Information Communication Content
Management Regulations to further regulate our brand promotion
behaviour and effectively establish and maintain our product and
brand image, so as to prevent any situations of illegal advertising.
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Quality Management System

The Group highly values the quality and safety of its products.
We adhere to the principles of producing medicine cautiously to
provide safe and effective products for our customers. We strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, appoint relevant
personnel for quality control, and equip sufficient facilities and
computer systems to build a comprehensive management system.
To strengthen the quality management, we have clearly stated
the responsibility, requirements, and standard procedures of every
process of the product life cycle, which includes procurement,
product receiving, acceptance check, storage, retailing,
dispatchment, transportation and follow-up customer service.

The Group has always taken "quality-oriented, standardisation
first, continuous improvement, customer satisfaction” as its
quality approach. To ensure product stability throughout the
whole product life cycle, the Group established a comprehensive
Quality Risk Management System. We conduct quality risk
assessment throughout every stage including product research
and development, supplier selection, procurement process control,
acceptance and storage management, production, inspection,
and sales process. Quality control personnel have the discretion to
remove unqualified products identified during the manufacturing
process. It ensures our products are of good quality and align
with industrial standards. In 2022, the qualified rate of external
sampling of the Group’s products was 100%. Apart from this, the
Group conducts regular internal assessments and risk assessments
of the quality control system, to identify potential quality risks and
propose improvement plans. Meanwhile, we have established an
emergency plan in response to quality safety incidents. We regularly
organise professional staff from various internal departments to
conduct comprehensive self-inspection in various aspects such as
system management, quality control and on-site inspection.

Apart from the GMP quality system, we have set up a
pharmacovigilance system to carry out pharmacovigilance activities
in accordance with the Pharmacovigilance Quality Management
Regulation, the Drug Administration Law and other relevant
laws and regulations, and have conducted such training for all
employees to strengthen the GVP-related knowledge and concepts
in each department, reduce drug safety risks, so as to protect and
promote public health.
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The Group has obtained various international certifications to
enhance our Quality Management System, to align with global
standards and developments. This year, the Group has obtained the
following certifications:

BEHE
Issuing Agency
BREmEnEEERR

China Food and Drug Administration

BHAEMENLEH
Ministry of Food and Drug Safety

It REZREFRB AR A F(SHQC)
Beijing ShengHui Certification Service Co. Ltd (SHQC)

I REZRERBEHER A F(SHQC)
Beijing ShengHui Certification Service Co. Ltd (SHQC)

IEREZERFRE AR 2 RI(SHQC)
Beijing ShengHui Certification Service Co. Ltd (SHQC)

In order to better achieve the purpose of energy saving and
consumption reduction, cost optimisation, corporate image
improvement, quality management enhancement and customer
confidence enhancement, we have successively passed 1SO9001
Quality Management System Certification, 1ISO14001 Environmental
Management Systems Certification and 1SO45001 Occupational
Health & Safety Management System Certification, and we have
also optimised our internal management structure to obtain
advantages in the competition of product quality in the market
in the later period. While serving our existing customers well,
we strive for more development opportunities, and lay a solid
foundation for international economic cooperation and technology
exchanges.
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Quality Control in Operation

The Group has implemented a GMP management model for raw
material procurement, supplier management, and product sales,
and has adopted a strict inspection and acceptance system for the
processes of procurement, delivery and storage of raw materials.
Regular supplier audit is performed to ensure the reliability of the
source of raw materials. To ensure products fully meet the quality
requirements, the production process strictly abides by the GMP
standard management, and internal control standard management
is implemented. Meanwhile, the Group has formulated relevant
product recall procedures to make sure the products that have
safety defects and may endanger or adversely impact the users’
health can be recalled promptly. During the year, we organised a
recall drill and completed it successfully according to the process
of the management system. From simulated reporting to the final
simulated storage, all processes were completed in accordance with
the system and the required response time. Through this drill, we
have a deeper understanding of the product recall plan. Meanwhile,
we can ensure that the relevant departments can respond promptly
when the product recall is launched, and the product recall work
can be carried out in a planned and step-by-step manner.

In 2022, the Group did not recall any products due to product
quality.

Enquiry and Complaint Handling Concerning Product Quality
The Quality Management Department of the Group is responsible
for enquiries and complaints handling regarding product quality.
Consumers or downstream customers can make inquiries or
complaints by contacting the sales personnel or customer service.
The Quality Management Department will investigate and verify
the causes before getting back to the customers. In terms of
production issues, the Quality Management Department will
forward the issues to suppliers or manufacturing enterprises for
their inspection and reply. Preventive and follow-up measures will
be formulated for repetitive issues. This year, 30 complaints were
filed regarding products and service quality and the handling rate
was 100%.
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection

The Group sees intellectual property as an important asset of
our Company. We are determined to protect all knowledge and
interests relating to the Group. To ensure that our intellectual
properties are being safely protected, we have formed the
Intellectual Property Management System according to the Patent
Law of the PRC. All the pharmaceutical products we produce
and medical devices are with electronic monitoring codes and
anti-tampering codes for traceability which can be used to track
the products and prevent counterfeit products from using the
Company’s brand. Meanwhile, we actively register our trademarks
and brands for our new products to protect the interests of
stakeholders about the products. Through raising awareness of
intellectual property rights, the Group strongly encourages and
promotes innovation. This strengthens our competitiveness in the
market and achieves sustainable development in the long term.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group totally has 29 valid invention
patents, which play a pivotal role in core products such as Total
Glucosides of White Peony Capsules, Bazhen Keli and Dingpeng
Cream. We hosted the Seminar for Expert on Important R&D
Policies and Opportunities, and invited our own evaluation teachers
in R&D registration, authoritative institutions of important R&D
collaborators and experts and professors from Ningbo Research
Institute to attend seminars, which broadened our R&D ideas and
provided constructive guidance for our Chinese medicine R&D and
innovation.

In addition, we achieved a total of 8 R&D projects in 2022,
including the R&D goal of Banlangen Granule that is anti-epidemic
drug and resumed the production of Notoginseng capsules. Among
the products in the market, Total Glucosides of White Peony
Capsules, Bazhen Keli, Dingpeng Cream, Natural Plant Extract,
Qixuekang Oral Solution, Compound Glycyrrhiza Oral Solution and
Xiao'er Jianwei Tangjing were included in the 2022 Recommended
List of High-quality Products in Ningbo.
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Consumer Privacy Protection

The Group recognises the importance of privacy protection to
our brand image as well as to our customers. We constantly
improve our Information Safety Management System to ensure
the contacts, addresses, and other personal information of our
customers are being handled carefully. To show our commitment
to securing customer information, we have signed agreements
with all our partners and clients which have listed our privacy
policies. Meanwhile, our Information and Technology Department
is responsible for monitoring and managing the information of the
Group and customers to ensure the Group strictly complies with
the relevant laws and regulations. We have also upgraded the
antivirus software in our computer system and conducted regular
data backup. Besides, all employees who have access to sensitive
data and information are required to attend training on information
safety organised by the Information and Technology Department.
We strive to protect the sensitive data and information of our
customers and prevent illegal or unauthorised leakage.

Anti-Corruption

The Group upholds a high standard of business ethics and integrity
and commits to preventing bribes, commissions, rebates, illegal
political donations or other improper payments in any form.
We maintain zero-tolerance in handling all relevant situations.
All employees are required to avoid conflicts of interest by not
conducting any illegal financial activities or other illegal activities.
Employees must not abuse the Group's financial resources, assets,
or influence as it could tarnish the Group's reputation. Business
entertainment shall be legal, reasonable and in compliance with
the codes for customers and relevant departments. Any person
suspected of a crime to relevant departments will be reported by
the Group promptly.
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The Board has formed an Audit Committee that is fully responsible
for supervising the internal audit of the Group independently. An
Internal Audit Department has also been established to monitor the
reconciliation of books of accounts, the safety of assets, economic
benefits as well as other related economic activities and provides
risk alerts from the perspective of risk control, to effectively control
and lower operational risks. Corruption is considered as one of the
operational risks. By developing an Internal Supervision System,
the Group ensures the integrity and discipline of the staff and
prevents them from participating in unlawful acts. To stamp out
corruption and illegal activities which may have potential damages
to the interests of the Group, we strictly follow investigation
guidelines to handle violations of discipline and regulations and
take corresponding follow-up actions.

In this reporting period, we not only conducted regular inspections
on whether employees have fulfilled the Group’s anti-corruption
principles and regulations to ensure they complied with corporate
ethical standards, but also provided compliance training on product
knowledge and anti-bribery for 72 managerial staff and regional
managers to prevent unlawful business operations.

Due to our effective system of risk management and anti-corruption
policy, no major defects were identified during the reporting
period.
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HE[mE Social Welfare

EBAEAMNMLEAR KAEBENULZEAHRX  As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group actively contributes
EmRmEKLHmaEMtBEEL SR - BEE R to the communities in which it operates in various ways. As our
PEOELAEER  BRMEEMNH@F LA business continues to grow, our obligation becomes more critical.
MEA RETEE2EZEZESH A — AL Apart from participating in charity work as an obligation, we also
ST THEEAMEEEEREDTH —(ERE think it is a crucial stage of corporate development by all means.
B AEEDBEBSEEHENAIER  The Group has achieved a high level of integration of its operations
HEeBESERS  WHAIEESEM] ABE  with its social duties, and it actively promotes social welfare with
EhREE e s RSB E TEKM— the goal of “Taking Responsibility.” We encourage our staff to
BERAEHER UTEHEHERBEENIREZREREA  join us in caring for the community. We focus our community
IR TH M A RIS E B - investment in two major areas, including community care and

environmental protection.

1+ & &4 Social Data

TR CFRTI A

Number of volunteers in 2022 53
CECCERIRBEH

Number of voluntary hours in 2022 220 /B hours
R FRTREPRH

Number of volunteer leave days granted in 2022 15 X days
R _FAENFRNAB K BMEERE

Number of partnering NGOs and academic institutes in 2022 53
R _FEEBRREVENHA AR #19,0007T
Number of monetary donations and in-kind sponsorships in 2022 RMB19,000
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REMEBRE Performance Data Summary

BRIBERE

Environmental performance

By —E-—F —Z=--
Unit 2021 2022

BEIRAEF

Energy consumption

BN TR 6,197,932 6,558,379

Electricity kWh

RRE RS 7K 155,268 133,035

Natural gas Nm’

e 48 27,318 31,602

Steam Tonnes

4L vas 35,798 416

Diesel Litre

i 7t 23,375 16,637

Gasoline Litre

BEEREREREE = 5,886 4,849

Total direct energy consumption' GJ

MR RERE HE 100,849 114,463

Total indirect energy consumption GJ

REREFES HE 106,735 119,312

Total energy consumption GJ

BEMKRARRTE HE/TFET 2.0 1.8
Energy intensity per revenue GJ/US$'000

=R K

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

HEEREREH MR (BE)’ W _Etig 2 485 328

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tonnes CO,e
AR EREHR(8E2)’ M _SfbiE e 10,334 11,525
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)° tonnes CO,e

BERBEENE (BE1R2) WE—|ALREE 10,819 11,853

Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) tonnes CO,e

BEMRARERBEENRE Wo—EiEE TET 0.20 0.18

GHG emissions per revenue tonnes C0O,e/US$'000

1 ARFERAR - EH A /ThNEEEE8RRATRE 1 Energy conversion factors used for natural gas, diesel and gasoline are from
CDP BTt 80 - AR BRI BIKELE - CDP Technical Note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh.

2 BEERAEREHM(BEN) BRBER (BEXA 2 Direct GHG emission (Scope 1) is generated from fuel consumption, including
RSl ) FTEAL  IRBEREEREBENE natural gas, diesel and gasoline. The calculation is based on Guidelines on
BREIEEETE - Provincial Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventory.

3 MELEREHRR (BE) AENREAEE - 3 Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) is generated from electricity and steam. The
BENRB-_Z——EFEREEF -G/l FER calculation of electricity purchased is based on emission factor provided in CO,
AFAriRft O mE 718 - moNER RAZEE emission factor for China’s Regional Power grids in 2012 while the calculation
BALREFRARMNERTHE - of steam purchased is reference from Ningbo Jiufeng Thermal Power Company

Limited.
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BRIRKRB
Environmental performance

By —E-—F —E==

Unit 2021 2022
KERER
Water management
HBFEKE i 78,647 83,300
Total water consumption tonnes
BEMKRAFEKE WEFET 1.45 1.27
Water consumption per revenue tonnes/US$'000
R E 7 62,958 71,609
Total wastewater discharge tonnes
T B AW A BEKBER Wg,/FEIT 1.2 1.1
Wastewater discharge per revenue tonnes/US$'000
BEBEZEY
Non-hazardous waste
mEFEYELHLE" i 4,763 6,433
Total non-hazardous waste generation® tonnes
BEMBARSEREY Wi, FET 0.088 0.098
Non-hazardous waste per revenue tonnes/US$'000
e EEEY
Hazardous waste
EREEYBEE’ 73 38 21
Total hazardous waste’ tonnes
BEUKBAGBRERY Mg,/ FET 0.00070 0.00032
Hazardous waste per revenue tonnes/US$'000
aBEME
Packaging materials
BEMEEE 14 652 530
Total packaging materials® tonnes
BELRABEMEES Mg,/ FET 0.0120 0.0081
Total packaging materials per revenue tonnes/US$'000

4 BEBRRVEBE-RERY 5 BEERRLEL

S

5 EREEDSEAEE  HB ORMR - 8- B
FEE

6 BEMNEEER ESVA MAR ERE.
BRES

Non-hazardous waste includes general waste, solid dreg waste, liquid dreg

waste and biochemical sludge

Hazardous waste includes reagent bottles, reagents, activated carbon, resin,

wasted medicine, etc.

Packaging materials includes carton, product colour box, composite film,

product bottle, manual, etc.
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HERR
Social performance
By —E-—F —EBCF
Unit 2021 2022
BT
Employee profile’
BEAH A 591 626
Total workforce no. of people
BREREINESEY
Total workforce by gender
Eay A 318 327
Male no. of people
e AR 273 299
Female no. of people
REREEBINESLH
Total workforce by employment type
e A 591 623
Full-time no. of people
e sk AEL 0 3
Part-time no. of people
RERANEBINESRE
Total workforce by age group
30BR A T AE 137 138
30 or under no. of people
31£2405% AR 252 270
31-40 no. of people
412505% ABL 142 148
41 -50 no. of people
51%605% A# 55 66
51 -60 no. of people
607% LA = AEL 5 4
Above 60 no. of people
REBEESNESRY
Total workforce by geographic region
B A# 5 5
Hong Kong no. of people
B A 586 621
Mainland China no. of people

7 PRIR=—ZTE=Z—F+-_A=+—RBR=ZT==F 7
+ZA=+—AZHENES &K
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Workforce data recorded as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022

respectively
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HEXRRE
Social performance

By —E-—F —EBCF
Unit 2021 2022
1B 8% & =°
Employee turnover®
BERKE % 26.6 21.3
Employee turnover rate
BREBESHNEEREE
Employee turnover rate by gender
S % 324 26.6
Male
e % 19.8 15.4
Female
BRERANEBINEERER
Employee turnover rate by age group
308% kA T % 44.5 31.9
30 or under
31524057 % 27.4 21.5
31-40
41 ZE508% % 11.3 16.2
41 -50
512605 % 14.6 7.6
51 -60
6075 LA £ % 60.0 50.0
Above 60
RHBEIMNEERAER
Employee turnover rate by geographical region
B % 0.0 0.0
Hong Kong
A % 26.8 21.4
Mainland China

8 MEAE(REALI) = FERINEERELE 8
ZIERIH R BAAE X 100%

Turnover rate (in percentage) = Total number of turnover in the category/Total

number of employees in the category x 100%
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HERR
Social performance

By —E-—F —E==

Unit 2021 2022
BEREHEZE
Occupational health and safety
EITBAZ ABL 0 0
Total number of work-related fatalities’ no. of people
PRI T 7 % 0.0 0.0
Work-related fatalities rate
HIGEEITIERE H 211 80
Lost days due to work injury Days
2R B AE A
Development and training
BRUREINEEEEFH IR
Average training hours per employee by gender*"
B N 3.1 9.8
Male Hours
peglca AN 3.1 10.3
Female Hours
REEERESNERESTHYZ g "
Average training hours per employee by employee category™*"
mREIRE B 5.3 4.3
Senior Management Hours
PREERE N 4.9 7.3
Middle Management Hours
—REE N 2.6 10.8
General Employee Hours

9 RREFEEENAIRTHARRLEERRE 9

10 EBREEFHRIEH = ERRNEIERE 10

ZHERIREBAH
11 ZEEIRYIREE R "
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Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in both years was 0

category / Total workforce in the category
Full year total training hours was recorded

Average number of training hours per employee = Total training hours in the
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HERR
Social performance
B —E-—F —BC-CF
Unit 2021 2022
HEEER
Supply chain management
REBEEONHEREE
Number of suppliers by geographical location
A BB R = 1 1
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Macau Number
ER % 80 111
East China Number
% % 4 3
South China Number
ey % 2 8
North China Number
o % 11 12
Central China Number
il % 3 4
Southwest China Number
[iif14 % 1 3
Northwest China Number
it % 1 2
Northeast China Number
EmEE
Product responsibility
CPEICEXEMEHPRLEREREIEHET | % 0 0
AREHAD
Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
EmkRBGHRFEE | 21 30
Number of products and services related Number
complaints
RES
Anti-corruption
REEHAEBETASEESREYESREN |B 0 0
BSFARGHEE RFARER Number
Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
HERE
Community investment
PRES AR 100,000 19,000
Money contributed RMB
EIRBER B 420 220
Volunteering hours contributed Hours
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BMRT(RE 8 RERJE]SI) HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index
#3g|
TEHE EH —REERBERENIEE SEER fBE R
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
ARE
A. Environmental
B EA1SE R
Aspect A1 Emission
— R R 29-30
General Disclosure Environment
BARGEM | BEMWIEEE R AR R EUR - IRIE 35-36, 60
FEIZAT. The types of emissions and respective emissions data. ~EHBEBERE
KPI A1.1 Environment
Performance Data Summary
FAREN |BRERBLAHNRE (UWEEE) R (ER) BE - IRIR 35-36, 60
FEIZA1.2 | Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where | R IR EHIERH 2
KPI A1.2 appropriate, intensity. Environment
Performance Data Summary
FARE FTELEREEZEYRS (ABETE) X (ER)BE - RIR 38-39, 61
EEAT.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where |XRIREERKE
KPI A1.3 appropriate, intensity. Environment
Performance Data Summary
AR E N FMEABEEEYES (B8 R (IER) HRE - RIE 38-39, 61
EIEAT.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, REHERE
KPI A1.4 where appropriate, intensity. Environment
Performance Data Summary
B S AE AT LR EEERAEIELEERMERMNT [RE 35-36
FEREAT.S B o Environment
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
R G AE HMOEBREERBEREMN L REAMI LR [RE 38-39
EIEAT.6 BEEERAERELBZEMERMAILRE - Environment
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
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TEHER - EEH —REERBEEXER 2EER fHE BIR
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
BEA2ERE A
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
—RRIEER RIR 38-40
General Disclosure Environment
BRER |RERESNEREL SEERR(NE  KIOh) B [RR 32-33, 60
FEIZA2.1 EUTFEFESFE) REE - RINBBERHE
KPI' A2.1 Directed and/or indirect energy consumption (e.g. Environment

electricity, gas, or oil) by type in total (kWh in '000s) and | Performance Data Summary

intensity.
8 2 4R A BFEKEREE - RIR 36-37, 61
$E1ZA2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity. REHBEBERE
KPI' A2.2 Environment

Performance Data Summary

MREN |[HAFRIUYNERERAYRESERREINESEAFEME |RE 30-31
B/IZA2.3 | EXHY D BE - Environment
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.
BSEN | HASREVER KR LRI AERIEE - ARETZHAK [RE 36-37
BIZA24 | WMEHERAEIELBEMEEHLR - Environment
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.
BMERER |ARQFRSEMNSEE AN E) R (mEh) 5 | 8% 40 61
BIEA2S5 |EBMLE - RIRBIBERME
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in Environment

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Performance Data Summary

produced.
BEASRERRXARER
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
— B R RIR 36-40
General Disclosure Environment
BEEN |HAXBEZHHREIRAERNEAZERDRDNE |RE 36-40
FE1EA3.T BEBAZENTE - Environment
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
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TEHER - EEH —REERBEEXER 2EER fHE BR
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
EHEAIRIRE L
Aspect A4 Climate Change
— R FE R 34-36
General Disclosure Environment
BREN |(HADKRARSUBETAEETZENEARBKEBE |RE 34-36
RIZA4 " REHTE - Environment
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,

and the actions taken to manage them.

B.AtE
B. Social
EBRERZIER
Employment and Labour Practices
[E EB1{E &
Aspect B1 Employment
— MR BT 41-45
General Disclosure Employees
BREN (R EEED  FREFIRMEESNEERS - BT 44, 62
F51ZB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group | X EIERH 2
KPI B1.1 and geographical region. Employees
Performance Data Summary
BREN |ZMR - FREARNRMEINSNEERELE BT 45, 63
$51ZB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and KEAHERE
KPI B1.2 geographical region. Employees
Performance Data Summary
EEB2RERZE
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
— MR BT 46-47
General Disclosure Employees
BRER |BEMFT(EEERFE)SFEAITHRMABEL X - RRBEBHE 64
FE1ZB2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in Performance Data Summary
KPI B2.1 each of the past two years including the reporting year.
MgEN |BIEBXAXIEA%- REBBERE 64
f51ZB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary
KPI B2.2
BSEN  |(HAMRANBEREETER  ARBBERTRE BT 46-47
1515B2.3 BE - Employees
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures

adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
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TEHER - EEH —REERBEEXER 2EER fHE BIR
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
[EEB3% & R 1Z I
Aspect B3 Development and Training
— AR = 48
General Disclosure Employees
BEEN |RUEMNEREERFESHXIEERS L - BAME B M IE B 8 8UE 64
$512B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and WeEERTR - Bt R a8k
KPI B3.1 employee category. T 2FMEIIEE

Due to different data

collection methods for

workforce and trained

employees, only full year

training data was recorded
BRER  |RUEMNREESESES  SREETKIINFHRE - | RRBBEHE 64
FE1E2B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by |Performance Data Summary
KPI B3.2 gender and employee category.
[EEBA% T % B
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
— B BT 41-42
General Disclosure Employees
BSEAER | Rl BB EOINE AR R E T REGIST - BT 41-42
FE1ZB4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices |Employees
KPI B4.1 to avoid child and forced labour.
BARAR  |HEERERBAREREMBRMMKERN TR - BT 41-42
$51ZB4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Employees
KPI B4.2 when discovered.
EEEDS
Operating Practices
EEBSH M EE
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
—PRIREE HERER 49-51
General Disclosure Supply Chain Management
BEN |(RumEESNHERHRE - e 51, 65
$E1ZB5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. ~EHBEBERE
KPI B5.1 Supply Chain Management

Performance Data Summary
AN |(HOAERERHEERNED  mENTEBMEMNNME |HEEER 49-51
151%B5.2 FIEE  ARMEESMTRERTE- Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,

number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

TEHER - EEH —REERBEEXER 2EER fHE BIR
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
AN |(HAAERNMHEESERGHNIRE L EARNED - |[HEEER 49-51
#512B5.3 AT RER A - Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental

and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
AN |(HAEREHERREEZBREARERMRENEN - |[HEHEERE 49-51
#512B5.4 IARBBEITRER A - Supply Chain Management
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting

suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
[EEB6EMERE
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
— AR EmmE 52-55
General Disclosure Product Quality
BRAR |CEXCEXEQREBTARERFERAMARNKN |RREERE 65
FE15B6.1 BoOL e Performance Data Summary
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.
BREN |BEEERERERBOKRFHEENAREE L - EmmE 55, 65
$E1ZB6.2 Number of products and service related complaints REHBEBEREZE
KPI B6.2 received and how they are dealt with. Product Quality

Performance Data Summary

BRRAER | EREE R NESEREGREAED - FEmmE 56
}612B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product Quality
KPI B6.3 protecting intellectual property rights.
e |(HiBERTBRREMEMDUIZRF - EmmE 55
{61ZB6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Quality
KPI B6.4 procedures.
BREN |BAEBREZEANRBRELBEE UREBEATRER EQQ@ 57
FE1ZB6.5 Fik e Product Quality
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy

70 Annual Report 2022 4




R HERERERS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

TERER EEH —REBERBEEERER sEEHR B =P/
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Reference/Remarks Page
BHEB7IRES
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
— AR R&S 57-58
General Disclosure Anti-Corruption
8 H2 4 A RMERNEETASEREEREUEEANETFHFR |[RES 58, 65
¥51ZB7.1 RUOEE RFRER - RINBBERHE
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-Corruption

practices brought against the issuer or its employees Performance Data Summary

during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.
B8 H2 A PSR ERERERF URBBRTRERT L |[RES 57-58
}51ZB7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Anti-Corruption
KPI B7.2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
MgEN |(HimEEREIREORETE - RES 58
¥51EB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-Corruption
KPI B7.3 directors and staff.
HE
Community
[EEB8itEIRE
Aspect B8 Community Investment
—RWE Za-/N 59
General Disclosure Social Welfare
BRER | FIEREE - FAN=/N 59
FE1ZB8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Social Welfare
KPI B8.1
BRENR |[EHFHBRHAER- Fam= /N 59, 65
FE1ZB8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. KEABERE
KPI B8.2 Social Welfare

Performance Data Summary
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ERHTES

BRAO%4%E 615 BARAREBRATEEH
EETHRES BRIEEESETERABRA
25F K N _E—MELAEMAKRER
AT - BRAE AR EAIfa Wassermanniz (£ 48 48
BoREENUFNBELRBEBFMBEEDE
Tt —ETNENAE_E——F+—F
EFBEHEETPEDPLELE —TZT N
FEZZTTNFRNA MAERKR SRR AF
BLESETHEILE - — WL —FE-F
TFEHE PR EEHELR TR
Goh - FHRESESH DHRBIERE-
BEFREIE-BEER—NN=ZFERE

BHMAZNRBEEL (WMBL) B -

FHITES

REBEE 695 REARRIERTEEFR
F ¥ ° ftb th ACathay International Holdings
Limited ([CIH) WATTER - REER
CathayS E Bl 18 A - LB K M204& F 48 -
CathayE B F EEFEARANMBLE &
BE RAEEERILERAEZHEZHE -
MR —ANZFEERIERIERE I
EIREREMN REER—NANZFE
—NMNEFERRBABEBEEETSRITERA
B R—NANRFE-NN\NFEELE
MRV ECREES S ACBEY -
BE-—NANANFE REABB - LEQAERE
RERTREREE (RRRYEHEERBR
BERHFE) 77T ERBEBEKEERAA
FERR] ARBEREPELAAEFERER
B ERMRBMERRBIEERNR
MR mIREE - AT BEERTRE
NEETDEMEERAR - LBEB LK EPE
BRKEGKEBEERANIINTRES -
FEERBRTIEERTT -
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Executive managing Director

Mr. CHEN Li, age 61, is the executive managing Director and
Chief Executive officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has over 25
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen has been General Manager of Alfa
Wassermann China since July 2014. Mr. Chen worked for a
number of internationally renowned pharmaceutical companies in
the past. He was previously General Manager of China with Abbot
from June 2009 to November 2012 and Assistant Vice President
of Wyeth Pharmaceuticals Shanghai from 2004 to June 2009.
During the period from 1992 to 2004, Mr. Chen also worked in
GlaxoSmithKline, Hoechst China, Bayer China, BASF Knoll China
and Roussel China. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Medicine (Doctor of Internal Medicine) from Tongji Medical
University in 1983.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Zhen Tao, age 69, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. He is also executive Chairman of
Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH") and founder of the
Cathay Group, which has over 20 years’ history of business and
investment focused on the PRC. He was born and educated in
Beijing. He graduated from the Beijing University of Technology
in 1982. He also has a degree in Business Administration. Mr. Wu
acted as a senior executive in government scientific institutes in the
PRC from 1982 to 1985 and as managing director of two newly
established state owned financial institutions in the PRC from 1986
to 1989. Since 1988 Mr. Wu has, through companies, invested
in and developed the Landmark Hotel (now called Crowne Plaza
Hotel & Suites Landmark Shenzhen) in Shenzhen and established
the Cathay International Water Limited group of companies, which
made substantial investments in public utilities and infrastructure
in the PRC. Strategic shareholders were JP Morgan, Singapore
Technologies, UBS, Banco Santander and Nomura JAFCO, and this
business was once the largest foreign investor in water and waste
water treatment projects in the PRC with net assets of over US$1
billion.
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Ms. LIU Xuezi, age 46, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in
2002 and worked in the corporate development department and
asset management department, as vice president and co-head
of asset management department. She is currently vice president
and head of company secretarial centre of the Group. Ms. Liu has
over 14 years of experience in mergers and acquisitions and asset
management. Before joining Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-
Pacific region of a US network infrastructure company, responsible
for the start-up and expansion of the company’s business in Asia.
Ms. Liu graduated from the School of Economics of University of
San Francisco, majoring in business administration, in 1999.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 71, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our
Group on 9 April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in
external audit, IT audit, training, accounting and finance, company
secretarial and corporate administration, MIS management, internal
audit, information security, risk management and compliance.
Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in information technology
of CPA Australia. He is also a certified information systems auditor
with the Information Systems Audit and Control Association and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan is the
chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior advisor
of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August
2014. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code:
0164) on 18 August 2017 and Chairman of the Audit Committee
on 26 September 2017. He was also appointed as an independent
non-executive director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Sterling Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1825) on 21
September 2018. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance
Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991
to 1996 and his last position was general manager, compliance.
He was the head of internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group
Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head of compliance in Greater
China, managing director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
from 2001 to 2003, the group financial controller of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the director of Quality
Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group compliance
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited from
December 2006 to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. YEUNG Tak Bun, Allen, age 57, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Yeung joined our
Group on 6 October 2018. He served as the former Government
Chief Information Officer, responsible for formulation of policies
and strategies for Hong Kong’'s information industry in the
development of digital economy, e-government, cyber-security,
and formulation of the blueprint for developing Hong Kong
into the world’s leading smart city. He was the Chief Corporate
Development Officer at the Hong Kong Science and Technology
Parks Corporation, responsible for the development strategy of
the science park, nurturing and supporting bio-tech, green-tech, IT
and electronics enterprises. Mr. Yeung started his career in Silicon
Valley and had worked for several high-tech companies. Thereafter,
he held several senior management positions in multinational
corporations, Hong Kong listed companies and private equity funds,
with operations throughout Asia. Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of
Texas (Austin), a Master of Science in Electrical Engineering from
Purdue University, and an Executive MBA from the Kellogg School
of Management of the University of Northwestern in conjunction
with the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Ms. CHAN Ching Har, Eliza, age 66, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Ms. Chan joined our
Group on 10 February 2022. Ms. Chan is SBS, JP, LL.D. (Hon).
She holds the qualifications of Barrister & Solicitor of British
Columbia Supreme Court, Canada, Solicitor of the Supreme Court
of England and Wales and Solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. Ms. Chan is a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"),
a standing member of the CPPCC Tianjin Committee, Foreign
Economic Affairs Legal Counsel to the Tianjin Municipal People’s
Government, an arbitrator of China International Economic and
Trade and Arbitration Commission (CIETAC) and an Attesting
Officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. Ms. Chan
previously served as a member of the Selection Committee for
the selection of the First Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR, and
member of the Election Committee for the selections of the Chief
Executive of Hong Kong SAR and the Hong Kong SAR delegates
to the National People’s Congress. She was Chairman of Hong
Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association and now serves
as Permanent Honorary Chairman. She is Vice President of Hong
Kong Friendship Association and Honorary President of Hong Kong
China Chamber of Commerce. Ms. Chan also served at a number
of Hong Kong Government appointed positions, notably as a
member of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority, member of Hong
Kong Public Service Commission, member of the Hong Kong Board
of Education, member of Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment
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Authority, Chairman of Public Complaints Committee under
Hong Kong Hospital Authority, Chairman of Kowloon Hospital,
Chairman of Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Chairman of Tseung Kwan O
Hospital, member of the Governing Committee of Queen Elizabeth
Hospital, member of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, Chairman
of Pensions Appeal Panel, member of Administration Appeals
Board, adjudicator of Hong Kong Immigration Tribunal, member
of Disciplinary Panel of Institute of Accountants, Council member
of The University of Science & Technology and Board member of
Hong Kong Science and Technology Park Corporation. Ms. Chan is
senior consultant of Yang Chan & Jamison LLP and senior advisor
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. She was a former independent
non-executive director of CIH and a former non-executive director
of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 882). She
is currently an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications (HK) Limited, China Electronics Optics Valley
Union Holding Company Limited (stock code: 798) and Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1666).

Dr. Zhu Xun, age 64, is a native of Changchun City. Dr. Zhu is
an independent non-executive Director of our Company. From
1995 to 2000, he served as the vice principal of Norman Bethune
University of Medical Science. From 2000 to 2003, he served as
deputy secretary general of the Changchun Municipal People’s
Government and from 2004 to 2006, he served as special assistant
to the mayor of Changchun Municipal People’s Government. From
April 2003 to June 2020, he was a former director of certain
subsidiaries of CIH. Dr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. He is currently the Honorary Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Tongxieyi New Drugs Elite Club, the
Chief Strategy Officer of Pharmacodia Holding Ltd., the Honorary
Principal of Beike University, and Associate Editor of the magazine
Progress in Pharmaceutical Sciences. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 460), an independent director of Shenzhen
Chipscreen Biosciences Co., Ltd. (stock code on Shanghai Stock
Exchange STAR Market: 688321), a senior consultant of Changchun
GeneScience Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Ausa Pharmed
Co., Ltd..
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Senior Management

Mr. NAN Jianshe, age 57, is the head of business development of
the Group. Mr. Nan joined our company’s controlling shareholder
Cathay International Group in July 2007 as investment director of
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited, responsible for the
business development and investment of the Cathay International
Group. Mr. Nan has over 20 years of experience in investment
M&A. Before joining the Cathay International Group, Mr. Nan
worked as head of the securities department and/or investment
department in trust and investment companies, pharmaceutical/
bioengineering companies and petroleum/chemical/mining
companies from 1996 to 2005, and acted as the director of the
investment department at Shanghai Fosun Pharma (Group) Co.,
Ltd. from March 2006 to June 2007. Mr. Nan has qualifications
for Chinese securities brokerage and securities consulting. Mr. Nan
obtained a bachelor of engineering degree from Beijing Institute
of Technology in 1986 and a master’s degree in economics from
Fudan University in 1996.

Mr. LI Hua, age 38, is the head of the finance management
centre of the Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in August 2007 and
has held various positions including the supervisor of the finance
department, the manager of the finance department of Ningbo
Liwah, deputy operating director, the deputy head of finance
management centre and head of finance management centre of
the Group. Mr. Liis a Chinese Certified Public Accountant, China
Senior Accountant and holds a bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from Ningbo University.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 54, is the vice president of government
affairs. Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and has
over 30 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong
previously worked for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration,
Novartis, Bayer and Abbott. Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s
degree in analytical chemistry from Jiangxi University (now
Nanchang University) in 1989.

Mr. YAO Dezhong, age 41, is the head of the Group’s production
and operation management centre and the general manager of
Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Yao has over 18 years of experience in the
Chinese medicine industry. He joined our Group in December 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yao worked in Zhejiang Conba
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and served as R&D officer, technical
production manager, department head, executive general manager
of the plant extract division (international trade), deputy general
manager of the botanical division and executive general manager
of the Chinese medicine resources division. Mr. Yao obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in pharmaceutical engineering from Nanjing
University of Chinese Medicine in 2003 and a master’s degree in
pharmacy from Zhejiang University in 2014.
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Mr. XU Zaisu, age 56, is the general manager of Ningbo
Lansen Pharmaceutical Company Limited. Mr. Xu has 28 years of
experience in pharmaceutical marketing management. He joined
the Group in January 2022. He served as the general manager
of the general product centre of Weixinkang Medicine Co., Ltd.,
the deputy general manager of Chengdu Brilliant Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. and the assistant to the factory manager and the general
manager of the preparation company of Nanjing Pharmaceutical
Factory Co., Ltd. He has been engaged in the pharmaceutical
marketing management in the front line for a long time, and is
mainly responsible for the self-operation team, semi-self-run team,
government affairs and bidding, marketing department, promotion
department, operation management department and other
departments. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from Nanjing University in 1994 and completed his postgraduate
studies in finance and business administration at Hohai University
in 2001.
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The Board of Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 33
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” and “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 6 to 10, pages 11 to 24, pages 25 to 71 and pages 93 to
117 respectively.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 123 to 124.

On 24 March 2023, the Directors have resolved to declare an
interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 to the shareholders listed in the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on 14 April 2023
("Record Date”). The declared interim dividend will be satisfied
wholly in form of an allotment of shares to be credited as fully paid
up (“Interim Dividend Shares”) without offering any right to the
eligible shareholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash in lieu
of such allotment (“Share Dividend Scheme”).

The Share Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Interim Dividend Shares to be issued
under the Share Dividend Scheme. If the condition is not satisfied,
the Share Dividend Scheme will not become effective and the
Interim Dividend will not be paid whether in cash, in Interim
Dividend Shares or otherwise to any of the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
Record Date.
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The number of Interim Dividend Shares which an eligible
shareholder will receive in respect of the Interim Dividend that he/
she is entitled will be calculated as follows:

HK$0.05
(Interim Dividend per Share)
0.05% 7
(B HAE)
HK$1.406
(Average closing price per Share for the five consecutive
trading days commencing on 17 March 2023)

1.40658 7T
(B - =F=-At+tHREERAEXSHD
FRFEHRTE)

The number of the Interim Dividend Shares to be issued to each
eligible shareholder will be rounded down to the nearest whole
number. Fractional entitlements to the Interim Dividend Shares
will be disregarded as the Company considers that it is not cost
effective to do so after taking into account the amounts of
fractional entitlements in cash and the administrative expenses that
will be incurred, and the benefit thereof will be accrued to the
Company.

A circular which gives full details of the Share Dividend Scheme will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company as soon as practicable.
Subject to the fulfilment of all conditions of the Share Dividend
Scheme, it is expected that the Interim Dividend Shares will be
issued to the eligible shareholders and the share certificates for
the Interim Dividend Shares will be despatched to the eligible
shareholders on or around 28 April 2023.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 13
April 2023 to 14 April 2023, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a
shareholder to qualify for the interim dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Link Market
Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F, Central
Tower, 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 12 April 2023.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
The table below outlines details of the shares of the Company
purchased by the Company on the Stock Exchange on a monthly
basis during the year ended 31 December 2022. The total number
of shares purchased during the year ended 31 December 2022 was
18,478,000 shares.
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Highest Lowest Average Aggregate
Number of price paid price paid price paid amounts
shares per share per share per share paid
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Month R

June 2022 —EBE - FKA 6,400,000 1.62 1.39 1.57 10,062,570
September 2022 TE--FAA 441,000 1.30 1.16 1.27 558,280
October 2022 —E-_%+AH 7,620,000 1.60 1.33 1.56 11,909,900
November 2022 —E-_F+—A 3,005,000 1.50 1.46 1.49 4,470,590
December 2022 —E-—_%+—-H 1,012,000 1.50 1.45 1.49 1,502,910
18,478,000 28,504,250
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On 7 April 2022, the Company and the placees entered into
the subscription agreements, pursuant to which the placees
conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Company conditionally
agreed to allot and issue a total of 49,520,000 placing shares
at a placing price of HK$1.20 per placing share. The placing of
49,520,000 shares was completed on 20 April 2022. For details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Liquidity, financial resources
and capital structure” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to US$49,224,000. Details of the
movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 20.6% (2021:
24.5%) of the Group’s total sales and sales from the largest
customer included therein amounted to 7.2% (2021: 7.2%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 64.2% (2021: 58.9%)
of the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 23.9% (2021: 26.0%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Managing Director:
Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt

(resigned on 9 April 2022)
Ms. Liu Xuezi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(resigned on 10 February 2022)
Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza (appointed on 10 February 2022)
Dr. Zhu Xun (appointed on 23 September 2022)

In accordance with articles 108 and 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Chen Li, Ms. Liu Xuezi, Mr. Yeung Tak Bun,
Allen and Dr. Zhu Xun will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (“AGM") has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

REERT ERDNRERT
Exns &5 BHME EBERYE my BREZEDL
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interest shares held Total Company
REBLE RRETABAR Hth s 209,820,000 © 276,260,000 © 67.72%
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao FREXEA Other interest (1F%&) (%)
Founder of discretionary (Long position) (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
RIEEEER AR 66,440,000 ©
Interest of a controlled  Corporate interest (#78)
corporation (Long position)
RAEL EEEAA fEAER 136,000 0.03%
Dr. Zhu Xun Beneficial owner Personal interest (1F8)
(Long position)
B 5 - Note:

(@) 7209,820,000fx A AR B HITEBR 2 #Em - TIE
iBCathay International Holdings Limited® & A& 2
A 7] %66,440,0000% % #BCosmos Skyland Limited#¥F
B+ K% 4 Cathay International Holdings Limited
M#EFE100% R DS -
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(@) The interests in 209,820,000 issued ordinary shares of the Company were held
through companies wholly owned by Cathay International Holdings Limited and
66,440,000 issued ordinary shares owned by Cosmos Skyland Limited, in which
Mr. Wu indirectly held 100% shareholding interests.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2022 which was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, appointed as a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company on 30 March 2017, holds approximately
100% of Common Shares interests in Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH") as at 31 December 2022. Save as disclosed in
the transactions in relation to CIH under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” of this Annual Report, no transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.

BEEBRT EARAR BT

RRE® Wi &f EBRYE By RAzELW

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Total Company

BERERBELERHE (FE)ARAA 1 Biks 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
((BERERBE(RE)]) Beneficial interest (Fe) (fFe)

Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited ("CI Pharma China")

BRERRELNRMREZRERAA 1
((EXERRE])

Cathay International Changchun Biotechnology and
Pharmaceutical Limited ("CIC")

BRERENRMRER (TE)ERAA 1
((EREREMRERER (PE)])

Cathay International Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
(China) Limited (“Cl Biotech & Pharma China")

AZARBEARLA ((AREREE)) 1

Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited (“CIP")

ERERENRMARD R ((HREREMRG]) 1
Cathay International Biotech Company Limited (“CIB")

Cathay International Holdings Limited ("CIH") 1
Cathay International Enterprises Limited ("CIE") 2
Cosmos Skyland Limited ("CSL") 3
REE 4
Wu Zhen Tao
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(Long position)  (Long position)

REAEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f8) (8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REEEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f2) (r2)

(Long position)  (Long position)

RELBER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f12) (ff2)

(Long position)  (Long position)

RELEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (fr8) (fr8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

RELEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (f8) (fr8)

(Long position)  (Long position)

REEEER 209,820,000 209,820,000 51.44%
Interest of a controlled corporation (H#8) (fr2)

(Long position)  (Long position)

EnlEa 66,440,000 66,440,000 16.29%
Beneficial interest (178) (178)

(Long position)  (Long position)

FEETABARERREA 209,820,000 276,260,000 67.72%
Founder of discretionary trusts and (r2) (72)
beneficiary of a trust (Long position)  (Long position)
XprEER 66,440,000
Interest of a controlled corporation (4r8)

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by CI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by CI Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) CIH is held as to 100% of Common Shares by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to
be interested in the shares held by CI Pharma China.

(3) CSL is 100% held by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao.

(4) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and
Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2022 that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected
transactions of the Company. The Company regulates and manages
such transactions in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“Lansen (BVI)”) entered into the
cross guarantee agreement, pursuant to which the parties may,
provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees
to banks in relation to the bank facilities of each other during the
period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019.

On 3 May 2019, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) entered
into a new cross guarantee agreement (“2019 Cross Guarantee
Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties may, provide or
procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees to banks in
relation to the bank facilities of each other during the period from
1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 (the "Effective Period (I)").

On 26 May 2022, CIH, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI)
entered into a cross guarantee agreement to extend the cross
guarantee arrangement (“2022 Cross Guarantee Agreement”),
pursuant to which Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) may, provide or
procure its subsidiaries to provide certain guarantees to banks in
relation to the banking facilities of Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and
Lansen (BVI) from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2025 (the “Effective
Period (Il)”). In addition, CIH has agreed to provide a counter
guarantee (secured by the cash deposit and without any charges)
under which CIH has agreed to indemnify Lansen (BVI) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Lansen (BVI) Group”) fully
for all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, costs and taxes (if any)
as a result of any default in the repayment of the bank facilities
obtained or to be obtained by Jilin Haizi during the Effective
Period (Il) and Lansen (BVI) Group becomes responsible for such
repayment.

Cross Guarantee Agreement
Terms under 2019 Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
3 May 2019

Parties
(a) Jilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(b) Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

(c) Lansen (BVI),
Company.

a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the 2019 Cross Guarantee Agreement, Jilin Haizi has
agreed to provide guarantees for the obligations under the bank
facilities obtained or to be obtained by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin
Haizi Guarantees”) during the Effective Period (I). Pursuant to the
2019 Cross Guarantee Agreement, on a reciprocal basis, Lansen
(BVI) has agreed to procure its subsidiary, as appropriate, to
provide guarantees for the obligation under the bank facilities to
be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen (BVI) Guarantees”) during
the Effective Period (I) (the Jilin Haizi Guarantees and the Lansen
(BVI) Guarantees, collectively, the “Guarantees”).

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined
and agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the
commission charged by guarantee service providers, which is
around 2% per annum, after taking into account of the factors
such as reasons for, and benefits of the 2019 Cross Guarantee
Agreement.

Effective Period (1)
The effective period of the 2019 cross guarantee agreement
commenced on 1 July 2019 and expired on 30 June 2022.

Terms under 2022 Cross Guarantee Agreement

Date
26 May 2022

Parties
(a) CIH;

(b) Jilin Haizi, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH;

(c)  Ningbo Liwah, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

(d) Lansen (BVI), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the 2022 Cross Guarantee Agreement, Jilin Haizi has
agreed to provide guarantees for the obligations under the bank
facilities (in respect of the facility amount covered) obtained or to
be obtained by Ningbo Liwah (the “Jilin Haizi Guarantees”) during
the Effective Period (Il). Pursuant to the 2022 Cross Guarantee
Agreement, on a reciprocal basis, Lansen (BVI) has agreed to
procure its subsidiary, as appropriate, to provide guarantees
for the obligations under the bank facilities (in respect of the
facility amount covered) to be obtained by Jilin Haizi (the “Lansen
(BVI) Guarantees”) during the Effective Period (Il) (the lJilin Haizi
Guarantees and the Lansen (BVI) Guarantees, collectively, the
“Guarantees”).

In addition, under the terms of the 2022 Cross Guarantee
Agreement, CIH has agreed to provide a counter guarantee
(secured by the cash deposit and without any charges) under
which CIH has agreed to indemnify Lansen (BVI) Group fully for
all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, costs and taxes (if any)
as a result of any default in the repayment of the bank facilities
obtained or to be obtained by Jilin Haizi during the Effective
Period (Il) and Lansen (BVI) Group becomes responsible for such
repayment.

Guarantee Commission

The annual guarantee commission rate of 0.5% is determined
and agreed with reference to the prevailing market rate of the
commission charged by guarantee service providers, which is
around 1.5% per annum, after taking into account of the factors
such as reasons for, and benefits of the 2022 Cross Guarantee
Agreement.

Effective Period (Il)
The effective period of the 2022 Cross Guarantee Agreement
commenced on 1 July 2022 and will expire on 30 June 2025.
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Annual Caps
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the approved annual caps
and the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing

connected transactions under the cross guarantee agreements are
set out below:

BE-_T-_—F+-A-1+-HLFENFELR BEZZ -+ _A=1+-HLFENERRSEHE
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2022 (sEaEReERAER)
EMEEER Actual transaction amounts (i.e. maximum amount of guarantee

Jilin Haizi Guarantee
AR #130,000,0007C
(HER#18,666,000%7T)
RMB130,000,000

(equivalent to approximately US$18.7 million)

REGBV)RREMNEE

The maximum commission fee payable by Lansen (BVI) (equivalent to approximately US$18.7 million)

AR #650,00070

(#8% 7 #796,000% 7T )

RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$96,000)

BA A (BVI) 1R

Lansen (BVI) Guarantee

AR #130,000,0007C

(HHE R #18,666,000% 7T)

RMB130,000,000

(equivalent to approximately US$18.7 million)

EMEBERRENAE

The maximum commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi (equivalent to approximately US$18.7 million)
AR #:650,0007T EMEERENBE
(18 E 7 4796,000% 7T) The commission fee payable by Jilin Haizi
RMB650,000 # N\ R #555,0007C
(equivalent to approximately US$96,000) (18 E 74 4782,000% L)

and commission fee) for the year ended 31 December 2022
EMEEER
Jilin Haizi Guarantee
AR %130,000,0007C
(1 E 7 4718,666,000% )
RMB130,000,000

BRVERMNES
The commission fee payable by Ningbo Liwah
# AR #650,0007C
(FE & 72 4796,000% L)
approximately RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately US$96,000)
B34 (BVI) 1R
Lansen (BVI) Guarantee
AR #130,000,0007T
(18E 1 #918,666,000% L)
RMB130,000,000

approximately RMB555,000
(equivalent to approximately US$82,000)
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions
of the Group. The auditor has reported the factual findings on
these procedures to the Board. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
the report of the auditor and have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
the terms of the agreement governing such transactions that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board
confirming that the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been priced in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
related party transactions disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements either did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, or only constituted fully exempted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions by
virtue of the de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has compiled with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional
qualifications, experience in the industry and relevant market
trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’'s
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profit with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the following issues:

—  the Articles of Association of the Company;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

— the Company’'s results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows;

— operating, capital expenditure and investment requirements
of the Company; and

— other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.
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Indemnity of Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
liabilities of the Directors and executive officers in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

A permitted indemnity provision (within the meaning in Section
469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)) that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by Directors and executive officers of the Group is
currently in force when the Report of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022 for the benefit of the Directors.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Wu Zhen Tao
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board of Directors are devoted to achieving
and maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance as
the Board believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly,
the Company has adopted sound corporate governance principles
that emphasise a quality Board, effective internal controls, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except with a deviation from paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code for
the period from 1 January 2022 to 23 March 2022. The Company
has established the nomination committee on 23 March 2022 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision B.3.1
of the CG Code. Prior to the establishment of the nomination
committee, the Remuneration Committee of the Company has
been delegated the functions of a nomination committee since
the Company’s listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
2010.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions adopted by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the
Group. Management manages the businesses of the Group,
including the decision making of daily operation within the
delegated power and authority given by the Board. Management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking
minutes of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft
minutes and written resolutions will be circulated to all Board
members or Board Committees members for review and comment
within a reasonable period of time. Final version of the minutes and
written resolutions will be provided for record within a reasonable
period of time and the signed copies are kept in the Company’s
minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary for Directors’
inspection.

As at 31 December 2022 and at the date of this report, the
Board was comprised of one executive managing Director, two
non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors. A description of the Directors is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
from pages 72 to 77 and on the Company’s website.
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was comprised of the following members:

As at 31 December 2022 and at the date of this report, the Board

HREZE RE-REREF
REESREMNBEH REZNARY
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
BEE Directors to the Board as Director
EBBTES: Executive managing Director:
BRNEE (TTHAEE) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) —E-\E=A-A8 —Z-—-€HA=+—H
1 March 2018 31 May 2021
kHTES: Non-executive Directors:
REBRE(FE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) —+&ZA=+H —Z--#~A-1+=H
30 March 2017 23 June 2022
Stephen Burnau Hunt4t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt “E-ZTEMAAR —Z-EFENA-t+H
(RZE-_—FWMANBET) (resigned on 9 April 2022) 9 April 2010 22 June 2020
AE2m+ Ms. Liu Xuezi —E-RE=A=1tH ZE--5RA=1+—H
30 March 2016 31 May 2021
BYFHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
PR & Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael “E-ZENANHE T -FANA-1+=H
9 April 2010 23 June 2022
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher%t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher “T——FZA+H ZT-ETFSA-+=H
(RZZE_ZS£-A+AET) (resigned on 10 February 2022) 10 February 2011 22 June 2020
151208 %% & Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen —N\F+ARH ZE--—FRA=+—H
6 October 2018 31 May 2021
BREExt Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza “EZ--F-fA+H —Z--—FX A-t+=H
(W=ZE-=—F=-F+HEZME) (appointed on 10 February 2022) 10 February 2022 23 June 2022
KAETL Dr. Zhu Xun —E--FEAA=-+=H —

R=F-__FNA-T=REZE)

AEEETRBRHNEZTENRERAK &
TEEELMAANER  ARANEKER
BREE NRREFENRERN  BU
TRZTEHN O WIFHAMRKE -EFHA
TRAEE ARG BEMMERBERS
BB M o AR B AT b B X P 48 A
HEESEEHMAE HBRHAE LB -

BYFHBTES
BUFATESFAAEE GRS T EA KM
REGRR RENEBEFEEZLESF
ZEegd UXBEE RRLERED
L RF A

(appointed on 23 September 2022)

23 September 2022

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time, taking into account the requirements under the Listing
Rules and the scope and nature of operations of the Company, to
ensure that the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity
of views and facilitate effective decision making. The Directors
come from diverse background with varied expertise in finance,
information technology and pharmaceutical business fields. The
Company has maintained on the Company’s website and on the
website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk
through their contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board
Committees’ meetings.
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In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are four
independent non-executive Directors, exceeding one-third of the
Board. Among the four independent non-executive Directors, one
of them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

According to Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, if an
independent non-executive Director serves more than nine years,
any further appointment of such independent non-executive
Director should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the Shareholders. Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director for more
than nine years. The Company has received from Mr. Chan a
confirmation of independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Mr. Chan has not engaged in any executive management
of the Group. Taking into consideration of his independent scope
of work in the past years, the Directors considered Mr. Chan to
be independent under the Listing Rules despite the fact that he
has served the Company for more than nine years. Mr. Chan has
confirmed that he will continue to devote sufficient time for the
discharge of his functions and responsibilities as an independent
non-executive Director. With his background and experience,
Mr. Chan is fully aware of the responsibilities and expected time
involvements in the Company. Based on the foregoing, the Board
believed that Mr. Chan’s position outside the Company will not
affect him in maintaining his current role in, and his functions
and responsibilities for, the Company. The Board also believed
that Mr. Chan’s continued tenure brings considerable stability to
the Board and the Board has benefited greatly from the presence
of Mr. Chan who has over time gained valuable insight into the
Group. Based on the abovementioned and in accordance with
Code Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, the re-election of Mr. Chan
was approved by the Shareholders by way of a separate resolution
at the AGM of the Company on 23 June 2022.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. With reference to such
confirmations, the Company, to its best knowledge, considers that
all the independent non-executive Directors fulfill the guidelines on
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all to
be independent.
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The Board has reviewed and considered that the following
key features or mechanisms under the Company’s Board and
governance structure are effective in ensuring that independent
views and input are provided to the Board.

— There is a separation of the role of the chairman and the
chief executive officer which ensures that there is a balance
of power and authority;

— The Board is comprised of a majority of non-executive
Directors. The Chief Executive Officer is the only executive
Director on the Board;

— Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for
their role as members of the Board;

— In assessing suitability of the candidates, the Nomination
Committee will review their profiles, including their
qualification and time commitment, having regard to the
Board’s composition, the Directors’ skill matrix, the list of
selection criteria approved by the Board, the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy;

—  The Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to
assess the Directors’ independence annually with regards to
all relevant factors related to the independent non-executive
Directors;

—  The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director’s
time commitment to the Group. Directors’ attendance records
in are disclosed in the annual report of the Company;

— To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors
are entitled to seek advice from the Company Secretary or
independent professional advisers at the Company’s expense;

— The chairman meets with the independent non-executive

Directors regularly without the presence of the executive
Directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The positions of chairman and the chief executive officer
are held by separate individuals. The chairman is responsible for
managing the Board, steering the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development plans, ensuring the receipt
of sufficient, complete and reliable information by each Director
and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues raised at
the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible for
managing the business of the Company and implementing policies,
business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.
The senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive
officer of the Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive managing Director Mr. Chen Li has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 1 March 2021. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of two years
commencing 30 March 2022. Ms. Liu Xuezi, Mr. Chan Kee Huen,
Michael, Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and
Dr. Zhu Xun have entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing 30 March 2022, 9
April 2022, 6 October 2021, 10 February 2022 and 23 September
2022 respectively. All Directors appointed by the Board either to
fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and
be eligible for re-appointment at the first general meeting after
appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chen Li, Ms. Liu Xuezi, Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen
and Dr. Zhu Xun will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.
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Continuing Professional Development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates and
provides training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the
latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided
with a comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior
executives. Continuing education and information are provided to
the Directors regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised
of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
organised a training session on amendments to main board listing
rules. All Directors, namely Mr. Chen Li, Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, Ms. Liu
Xuezi, Mr. Chan Kee Kuen, Michael, Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen,
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Dr. Zhu Xun, attended the training.
In addition, individual directors also participated in other courses
relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director or further enhancement of their professional development
by way of attending training courses or via online aids or reading
relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the
inclusion of the following corporate governance duties into the
terms of reference of the Board:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

—  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and the Directors; and

—  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual
Report.
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Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed
and revised the Board diversity policy to the effect that, inter alia,
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy
shall be reviewed by the Board annually and measurable objectives
have been set. At the Board level, there shall be a mixed gender
Board with at least one Director of a different gender at any given
time. The Board currently has two female Directors and as such has
achieved gender diversity in respect of the Board.

We will strive to achieve appropriate balance of gender diversity
with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and local
recommended best practices. We will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting staff and we are committed to
provide career development opportunities for all staff so that we
will have a gender diversified workforce.

From the Group’s perspective, as at 31 December 2022, the
male-to-female ratio of the Group’s employee is approximately
52%:48%, reflecting a gender equality principle generally adhered
by the Group. The Group is determined to maintain gender
diversity and equality in terms of the whole workforce and expects
the above is achievable with suitable effort in promoting the
gender diversity culture, which the Group has been advocating for
so.

Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a
year. Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of
the Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
regarding the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The Directors have full access to information on the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.



BT -_—_F+-_A=t+t—BILtEE &
EERTTARESZSHEMMARERE -

TEERBRE

Corporate Governance Report

The Board held six board meetings, two general meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each

EEEMEFEBEROT Director as follows:
HE/ BT HE/ BT HE /BT
ESEERRY BREFRE BRREIAE
No. of
No. of board No. of annual extraordinary
meetings general meetings general meetings
BEE Directors attended/held attended/held attended/held
ERETES: Executive managing Director:
BROE&E(TTEAER) Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 11 171
kBTEES: Non-executive Directors:
REBRE(FE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 6/6 1/1 11
Stephen Burnau Huntt &
(RZZE=— Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
M AN EEHE) (resigned on 9 April 2022) 212 THERAN/A TEANA
ElE- 3 Ms. Liu Xuezi 6/6 1/1 11
BYEHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BRECE T A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 6/6 n n
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher?t 4
(RZF== Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
ZATHREM) (resigned on 10 February 2022) i FAN/A T ANA T ANA
151208 %% A& Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 6/6 1 0/1
BEELL(M-F-—-4%  Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza
“ATHEZRT) (appointed on 10 February 2022) 6/6 171 171

AABLT(R-T——
NAZ+=ZBEZE)

REFENEHEEME EFHEL R
tTHXRESEEEZBARESHN IR
CREGEZEHRRELABEXH -HEME
EmE ERERINENBILT EFEH
ERBTHRENBAN -RARBNERMAR
FIBRFNZEBRIN REFAEGH -5
ZHIXMEFTSRZARERNEIMEME
PlEBETREEARGZNES  HAER
REENERE BABMEETEWA AR
EABUA

Dr. Zhu Xun (appointed on
23 September 2022)

Al AERANA A ANA
With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
Except for those circumstances permitted by the articles of
association of the Company, a Director who has a material interest
in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other kind of
proposal put forward to the Board for consideration, will abstain
from voting on the relevant resolution and such Director is not
counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include
the following:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

— to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving
the financial statements and appointing and liaising with the
Group’s external auditors;

— to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

—  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual
Report;

— to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on
all matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in
their policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

— to ensure accountability towards and sufficient
communication with the Company’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other directors and
senior management was held to discuss the performance of the
executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board
Committees (see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee. Please see below for the composition and
responsibilities of the committees. Each committee shall provide
their recommendations to the Board based on their respective terms
of reference. The decisions of the Board on such recommendations
shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of reference of
these committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan Kee Huen,
Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee include the following:

— to oversee the relationship with the external auditor,
including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor and address any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

— to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements contained
therein; and

— to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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REBERITTZREH SHKENLES

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022. The attendance of each member as follows:

s
HEET
BERE
No. of meetings
ERZEERENKSR Name of Audit Committee members attended/held
FRECIE & (£ /E) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher%t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on
(RM=—B-—F-A+HET) 10 February 2022) EFAN/A
15BN T A& Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 3/3
BREExT (KT Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza (appointed on
—“R+tREZMT) 10 February 2022) 3/3

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HULEFE =

— REXEFgHAENMEEEERINEZ —

R ENTHNEENFEXENUNER
RNE BEEEEERE MBERENH
STEMNAREMRANGETEE

— HBERENRTEAKESEAMBHRER —

BB K HI

— BHIERBOOFMERZEGR A —

RBLINEZBEN R ERNEE SR M
BaEE

— ZFERAFRARERRS B
NHEFAMIRLNEZNERIER &

— FHALRFEAEEALEZELERERE —

TR MR

FMEES

mELE— —

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
RZE88E: had:

reviewed with management and external auditor on the
interim results and annual results and related announcements
including the related disclosures, integrity of financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group
prior to submission to the Board for approval;

discussed with management on significant judgements
affecting the Group’s consolidated financial statements;

reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and recommended the Board on the
appointment of the external auditor;

reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports including
the status of implementing recommendations from the
previous reports; and

reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

AKANBNEHFWNEESH =B IEHITEZE The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three

AP o B IFTTE FIHIEE K AR S H

independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen,

ZECeXE -FNZECSTEHRTHSHE an independent non-executive Director, currently serves as the

FEL—R -

chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration

Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once per year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out the duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The major
duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

— to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and placing such recommendations
before the Board concerning the total remuneration and/
or benefits granted to the Directors and senior management
from time to time;

— to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

— to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; and

— to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
the Listing Rules or any applicable law.

HE2—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE % The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
MEES@BRITT— A28  EXEWHEE ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each member as
SR follows:
HE BT
BEIE
Name of Remuneration No. of meetings
THEESHER R Committee members attended/held
HiER kA () Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen (Chairman) 1/1
Stephen Burnau Hunt’t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
(RZZFZZFMANHEHE) (resigned on 9 April 2022) 1/1
PRECAE 7 A Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 1/1
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher’t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(RZZE-_—_F_-_A+HEMT) (resigned on 10 February 2022) T E FAN/A
KABE(R T == Dr. Zhu Xun (appointed on
NAZ+=HEZE) 23 September 2022) N AN/A
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee:

— assessed the performance of the executive Director and the
senior management;

— pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code,
reviewed the remuneration structure/package of the Directors
and the senior management, and made recommendation to
the Board on their remuneration; and

— made recommendation to the Board on the proposed
reelection of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

As the Company does not have any share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, there were no matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules for the
Remuneration Committee to review nor approve during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23
March 2022. It consists of one non-executive Director and
two independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, a
non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board, currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once
per year.

The Board has established the Nomination Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

— to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

—  to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors;

— to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors;
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— to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually;
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

— to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
the Listing Rules or any applicable law.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each member as
follows:

HE BT

SBREY

Name of Nomination No. of meetings

REZESHENRSR Committee members attended/held
REELEE (FEF) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 11
PR LB 7 A Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 1/1
15 5 Mr. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 1/1

BHE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HLLFE &
2EEE:

— ETRBEFNOHE X

— FWREFEZIICEERNETER -
RABBE
ARBCRAREZEGRMEZERE U=

BREBRRRERAGLEREZHERT
HERBERTRNES -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee:

— determined policy for the nomination of Directors; and

— discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy.
Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders

for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(M

(2)

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
factors in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

(M

The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information in a prescribed form by the
Nomination Committee;

The Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting to
consider the nomination of candidates;

For the appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board'’s consideration and approval;

For the re-appointment of any existing member(s) of
the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting; and

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
a general meeting.
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HE-_T-_—#+-A=+—HBItEEEZE The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’

B RRARN T - remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022:
Hitr g
Other emoluments
Fe 2R mEELR
we  NEVEA WiERe BATELR st
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
Tin TR Tin Tin Tin
Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Uss'000 US$'000
Bz-8-—F Year ended 31 December 2022
tZA=t-BLEE
FENNES: Executive managing Director:
RN Chen'Li - 532 233 - 765
FuiEs: Non-executive Directors:
REF Wu Zhen Tao - - - - -
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt
(RZZ-ZFEANBEA) (resigned on 9 April 2022) 10 - - - 10
5% Liu Xuezi - 213 216 2 431
BUFNTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
B E Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
(RZZ-ZZFZA+HEF) (resigned on 10 February 2022) 4 - - - 4
HER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - - - 35
BEEL+ (N -ZE-= Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza
“ATREZA) (appointed on 10 February 2022) 31 - - - 3
FRBL (W5 Dr. Zhu Xun (appointed on
NAZ+=REZH) 23 September 2022) 10 - - - 10
125 745 449 2 1,321
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022:

—s=-=
2022
AE

No of individuals

£ 21,000,000 7T

1,000,001/ 7L %1,500,000/8 7T
1,500,001/ 7T 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,00178 7L £2,500,0007% 7T

BITEESE
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MEFNTEER —RIFEEMAN - FFHTT
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EFeCYATZE S HIE EMBER
R EFEETHORYE BELED -
HWOTZEENTIERBLBRAERRENMH
LB HEREE BT FERPREAR
AIERHES - B RETE LEMUATEIAR -

HWITZEENERREBARTEE BT
BASEEMOEEB/RAMEERE > AR
ERTYHREEEBETESEMIIUNAM
R R

k3
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Nil - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

_ N =

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
managing Director, two non-executive Directors and one non-
Director. Mr. Wu Zhen Tao, a non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Executive Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Executive Committee include reviewing the
financials and financial related matters, assisting in developing
annual and medium- to long-term corporate strategies, reviewing
and approving new business development plans, and reviewing and
approving research and development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and
to monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions
and strategies set by the Board.
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The Executive Committee held eight meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The attendance of each member as
follows:

BT
EE VN

No. of meetings

HITEESHER R Committee members attended/held
RBFRE (LE) Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman) 8/8
BRN%EHE Mr. Chen Li 8/8
EELL Ms. Liu Xuezi 7/8
(b g Ms. Tao Fang Fang 8/8
BEREX Accountability and Audit

M| E Financial Reporting

EENBREFARBEICERNETZER
RASEPBREIOET  THNERF AR
RAEBEMBHRREFTENEL -

BBV EERSAMESMAERAMEE
ABAEEHEE T -_—_F+-_A=+—H1
FEZIGAUBEHREROBAET -

EERRYMBEBEATBRENETE
AR ESISEI22E [ B I AZHAIRE ] -

EEEBARNESERNBRHENEH
HASINBEBEARENRR LM - BEF
B FRIEBOFTGE -

o BB B

REFE BELERISAMEBMER
NRAEZEASANEEZEE  EHETERK
RBFRGERKL -

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also
acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its responsibilities for the audit of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 118 to 122 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group’s auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid/payable
to BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as
follows:

B EHER

PR 7% 1 E Services rendered Fee paid/payable
TER

US$'000

RER T Audit services 266
FZERT Non-audit services 85

FEBRGEEBRET MR LEMEER

REME
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BEEZRFR BREFTNEAGIERBER
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YR
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FAEHRANEI29EMRE -

B BE 4 I AL B BT A
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The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Pang Kai Fai, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and
professional development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company Secretary
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for monitoring the risk management and
the internal control system of the Group and on an ongoing basis
has the responsibility for reviewing their effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's
assets.

Several department heads of the Group met with the internal audit
department regularly to ensure a sound internal control system is in
place and maintained. To enhance the knowledge of relevant staff
of the Group, training will be provided to them in the matter of
relevant rules and applicable laws as and when appropriate.
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The risk management and internal control system of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed
a bottom-up approach for the identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at all business unit levels and across all functional
areas.

During the process of risk assessment, the Board together with
management is responsible for identifying the risks of the Group
and deciding on the risk levels. An external consultant was engaged
to provide advice and support to the risk assessment process.
The Board is also responsible for assessing and determining the
nature and extent of the risks that are acceptable to the Group
when achieving its strategic objectives. After discussing and taking
into consideration the risk responses, the relevant departments
and business units have been assigned to implement the risk
management solutions in accordance with their respective roles and
responsibilities. The identified risks together with the risk responses
have been recorded in the risk register and the updating and
maintenance of which is subject to the supervision of the Board.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and document identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

The internal audit department has performed annual internal
control reviews on certain important areas of monitoring including
the functions of finance, operations, compliance and risk
management respectively covering the period from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2022 in compliance with the requirements under
Code Provision D.2.1 of the CG Code, according to the scope of
review agreed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and
risk assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and
agreed with the Board on the scope of review over the system of
internal controls. The approach of the review includes discussing
with relevant management and staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control system, evaluating
findings on any deficiencies in the design of internal controls and
developing recommendations for improvement, where appropriate.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting
to the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and the Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled with its
own observations and with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
the present internal control and risk management processes are
satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review
of the systems and procedures is being carried out by management
from time to time to maintain a high standard of internal controls
and will make appropriate changes to the internal control system,
if necessary.

Inside Information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

— is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the
SFO and the overriding principle that information which is
expected to be inside information should be announced once
it is the subject of a decision;

— has set up an inside information control team to supervise
inside information matters and report to the Board in a timely
manner;

— has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission; and

—  has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year 2022/2023. The insurance covers them
against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out
of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:
roadshows or site

— meetings (one-to-one/group meetings,
visits) with analysts and investors;

— conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

— the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;

— the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual
reports and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites; and

— the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website.

On 23 June 2022, the proposed amendments to the articles of
association of the Company were approved by way of special
resolution at the AGM. Such amendments deal with matters
relating to implementation of a scrip dividend (without cash option)
scheme. For details, please refer to the Company’s AGM circular
dated 13 April 2022.

The Company reviewed the Group’s shareholders and investor
engagement and communication activities conducted during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and was satisfied with
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policies of the Group.

Shareholder’s Rights

The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and
raise questions to our Directors, management and the external
auditor.

The Company will arrange for the chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend
the AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their
questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to
all shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days
(whichever is longer) before the meeting.
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The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2022
annual general meeting (2022 AGM"), held on 23 June 2022
at United Conference Centre (UCC), 10/F, United Centre, 95
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2022 AGM.

At the 2022 AGM, separate resolutions including the re-election
and election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares and the amendments to the articles of association of the
Company were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2022 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Link Market
Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, was appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting. The results
of the voting by poll were declared at the meeting and published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles
of association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of such of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites
1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include
the resolution in the agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months
from the said date.
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The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or
EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or any
resolution of the Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and
the public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to
the Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone (852) 2828 9206

By post Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone (86) 574 8804 6316

By post 228 Xinfeng Road, Gaogiao Industrial Park, Haishu
District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, PRC
(Postal code: 315174)

By e-mail ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the
Company’s website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 221,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and goodwill

(Refer to Notes 5, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements)

The Group had intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
of US$21,213,000 and goodwill of US$6,824,000 as at 31
December 2022. Management has performed an impairment
review in accordance with International Accounting Standards 36
“Impairment of Assets”. Recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on value in use calculations, which
include significant assumptions and judgements made by
management concerning the estimated future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and goodwill as a key audit matter because
of its significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because this area involves a significant degree of judgements and
estimation made by management, in particular the estimation of
future cash flows and discount rate. Key assumptions used in the
impairment model have been disclosed in Notes 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment
assessment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill included:

—  Discussing cash flow projections with senior management of
the Group;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the sources of data and key
assumptions used by management based on our knowledge
of the business and industry and by considering the historical
accuracy of budgeting;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the impairment calculation;
and

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of
a reasonably possible change in discount rate and cash flows.
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
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our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

3 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Or Ying Ying, Anita
Practising Certificate Number: P07424

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—TEC-—fF T
2022 2021
Bt 5 FET F=T
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
KA Revenue 6 65,558 54,180
5 A AR Cost of sales (21,263) (19,771)
EF Gross profit 44,295 34,409
H A YA Other income 6 1,193 722
HENDHA Selling and distribution expenses (19,458) (17,366)
THRX Administrative expenses (9,630) (9,538)
iff 25 B AR Research and development costs (2,132) (2,686)
SRMEERNEBEE Loss allowance (recognised)/reversed
(HER) /#m on financial assets (110) 17
FEE i Profit from operations 14,158 5,558
H M IEAE & A & Other non-operating income and
R expenses, net 8 (1,250) (4,618)
Hith 2B EN Fair value gain on other
N E W= financial liabilities - 47
BRI Finance income 9 875 3,938
B T BN Finance costs 9 (2,968) (1,532)
FEMGEt S AT 2B Hi%  Share of post-tax result of associates
E ¥ (900) (989)
R Fi7 18 B¢ A % R Profit before income tax 10 9,915 2,404
TS i X Income tax expense 12 (1,318) (1,501)
F & i A Profit for the year 8,597 903
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HEZZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—TEC-—F T
2022 2021
Bt & FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 US$'000
Hh 2 mEU = Other comprehensive income
HZ e EF D2 Item that may be reclassified
BmHE : subsequently to profit or loss:
— BREBINEREE — Exchange differences arising on
HY B 5, = 58 translation of foreign operations (7,234) 788
HEMBARKEHR DA Exchange difference reclassified to profit
EEnNERESE or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries - 143
FEHM2E K Other comprehensive income for
(HMBrBiIE) the year, net of tax (7,234) 931
FE2HWSAHE Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,363 1,834
AATEE AEERZF  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 8,597 903
AABEEAEERE  Total comprehensive income
WA attributable to owners of the
Company 1,363 1,834
ET 1l
US cents UsS cents
R EF Earnings per share
—EAXREE — Basic and diluted 14 2.12 0.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M-_ZT-_—_F+_-_H=+—H Asat31 December 2022
—TEC-—fF T
2022 2021
Bt 5 FET FXT
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
ME - BE MK Property, plant and equipment 15 19,553 23,242
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,698 1,950
& &Y Investment property 17 555 627
EmAE Intangible assets 18 21,213 22,850
Bk Goodwill 19 6,824 6,824
RIEFIEE & Deferred tax assets 28 859 -
REERA 2w Interests in associates 20 813 2,196
51,515 57,689
RENEE Current assets
78 Inventories 21 10,032 7,391
B 5 NE M E WA Trade and other receivables 22 37,132 49,876
) — B E A FREZ  Loan to an associate 23 8,974 8,855
FEUHL & Tax recoverable - 12
B RITER Pledged bank deposits 24 9,814 15,944
Z R HIER1TIF K Restricted bank deposits 24 15,165 -
HeRIHEEEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 24 51,326 32,545
132,443 114,623
HMEE Total assets 183,958 172,312
ERERAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEXKHE Capital and reserves
ADNTEEAAEL#EZE  Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
P& 2 Share capital 25 4,204 3,773
1% 15 7% (B Share premium 26 17,204 11,299
B 7 B 1n Treasury shares 26 (2,350) —
HINGEE {5 1 Foreign exchange reserve 26 (2,396) 4,838
ETEEE Statutory reserve 26 11,549 10,621
R B O A Retained profits 93,739 86,070
R Total equity 121,950 116,601
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZBE-_—F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2022
—TEC-—F T
2022 2021
Bt 5 FET FXT
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 35 31 204
ELEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities 28 2,012 2,032
2,043 2,236
REBAE Current liabilities
=R Borrowings 27 18,235 24,687
HEBE Lease liabilities 35 330 336
mEHEAE Current tax liabilities 777 539
B NEMENFIE Trade and other payables 29 39,148 26,589
EHEaE Contract liabilities 30 168 77
Hbepasd Other financial liabilities 31 1,307 1,247
59,965 53,475
HBEE Total liabilities 62,008 55,711
BERREE Total equity and liabilities 183,958 172,312
REEEFRE Net current assets 72,478 61,148
BEERABER Total assets less current liabilities 123,993 118,837
FI123ZN1EMEEH KRR N —_ZE=_= The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 221 were

FE=ZHA TR EESESHE LT approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

THUTATRAEREE March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
EE EE
Director Director
BR 5 ZER
CHEN Li LIU Xuezi

126 Annual Report 2022 4 £



MEERZER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

kA ROEE ERRG HERE LERE REEA BRR
Foreign
Share Share  Treasury exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve profits equity
Txr Tin Tx5r TEn Tin Tx5r TZn
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000
(Ms25)  (Frsk2e)  (Bigk26)  (MisE2e)  (Fitskze)
(Note 25)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)
HZE-2--F+-A=1—HLEE VYearended 31 December 2021
W-F--%-f—H At 1 January 2021 3,972 16,750 — 3,907 10,228 162,425 197,282
M (313) Dividends (Note 13) - — — - — (76,865) (76,865)
Mf3 B85 (B E26) Shares repurchase (Note 26) = = (5,650) = = = (5,650)
HHERBHRR (H20) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 26) (199) (5,451) 5,650 — — = =
BEEAETRS Transactions with owners (199) (5,451) — — — (76,865  (82,515)
FEEF Profit for the year — — — — — 903 903
FEEM2ENE (MEHE) Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax
— BERNEBELZELERE — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations — - — 788 - — 788
HERBARBERIES Exchange difference reclassified to profit or
BamELEE loss upon disposal of subsidiaries — — — 143 _ _ 143
FERENREH Total comprehensive income for the year = = — 931 = 903 1,834
ERTLTRE Appropriations to statutory reserve — — — — 393 (393) —
RZB--F+-f=1-H At 31 December 2021 3,773 11,299 - 4838 10,621 86,070 116,601
BE-B-_F+-B=1-HLEE Yearended 31 December 2022
W-ZE-—F—f-H At 1 January 2022 3,773 11,299 - 4,838 10,621 86,070 116,601
EEFR D (F325() Placing of new shares (Note 25(a)) 495 7,123 - - - - 7,618
R 1n EIEE (i3E26) Shares repurchase (Note 26) - - (3,632) — — — (3,632)
FHEEER RN (F7E26) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 26) (64) (1,218) 1,282 - - - -
BEEAETRS Transactions with owners 431 5,905 (2,350) - - - 3,986
FREF Profit for the year - - - - - 8,597 8,597
FEEpEENE CNRTE) Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax
—REENEBEE EAER — Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations - - - (7,234) - — (7,234)
FEXANGEER Total comprehensive income for the year — — — (7,234) — 8,597 1,363
BRTLERE Appropriations to statutory reserve — - - — 928 (928) -
WZE-—F#+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2022 4,204 17,204 (2,350) (2,396) 11,549 93,739 121,950
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—EC-fF = = =
2022 2021
FEx F=7T
US$'000 Us$'000
REREERCEHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
& FT 15 B4 BT A Profit before income tax 9,915 2,404
FHEE . Adjustments for:
EsN= Interest expense 1,149 1,532
IRITH BULA Bank interest income (875) (1,470)
BB SRR 2 RBBEE Share of post-tax result of associates 900 989
EEERERE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets 1,409 232
M= BE REERE Provision for impairment of property,
B plant and equipment 94 17
EREEERERE Provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets — 78
REEE N T 2 ERBRMERH  Provision for impairment of interests in
associates 295 3,801
PRETERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 182 383
MBEEREANEBREERD Loss allowance reversed on financial
guarantee contract (454) (515)
SR EEREIERE Loss allowance recognised/(reversed)
R, (#mE) on financial assets 110 (17)
M- WEREHETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,194 2,347
WEMERE Depreciation of investment property 20 21
FEREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 444 522
HEME  BMEEZEN Loss on disposals of property, plant and
&8 equipment 177 7
7 &5 Write off of inventories 2 464
& mhE E S Write off of financial assets 24 18
HithemaENA TEKE Fair value gain on other financial liabilities — (47)
AR IEH Em e Gain on early termination of lease (72) (198)
=P N L= oy Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — (18)
ZAFEGFAER Realised loss from financial assets
(MZAFEFAEZR]H at fair value through profit
CRMEENZHER or loss (“FVTPL") — 1111
HEERATEFAERHN Transaction costs and other tax in
TREEI D EREEN connection with partial disposal of
RGN E A 1E financial assets at FVTPL — 7

128 Annual Report 2022 4 £



BHE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE

GEHRTRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2022

—TE-CfF T
2022 2021
FEx F=7T
US$'000 Us$'000
LEESEHA 2 KB Operating profit before working capital
changes 15,514 11,668
FE®EMN Increase in inventories (3,550) (1,361)
B 5 N H b fE WERIE R A Decrease in trade and other receivables 8,596 3,454
B 5 K H A fE R R IEE Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other
R A) payables 312 (101)
aSHaEREN S CRhd) Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities 100 199)
AW EL S Cash generated from operations 20,972 13,461
BB Interest paid (1,089) (1,469)
2 TS iR Income tax paid (1,771) (2,975)
RS TEELE T FRE Net cash generated from operating activities 18,112 9,017
RERETHZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
REE I RITER Withdrawal from pledged bank deposits 41,608 27,609
FRE ERIRITEK Placement of pledged bank deposits (36,679) (29,061)
FE AL X PR #l SR 1T 7F X Withdrawal from restricted bank deposits 4,490 —
TSR EIEITIEER Placement of restricted bank deposits (19,555) —
BEYE  BENKXE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (603) (678)
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (922) (1,031)
KEHERAFEZ AEZEA  Proceeds from partial disposal of financial
TREEH DR CFTSKIA  assets at FVTPL — 31,604
B ER A FEE A B S F Transaction costs and other tax in
BEMHERBENZTSHKA  connection with partial disposal of
R EAB I financial assets at FVTPL — (7)
WEZ A EFTAEZRN Dividends received from financial assets at
TRLEERE FVTPL — 56
LEVE  BEREEMS Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
I and equipment 11 52
[ — A B & A Bl 2 B Advance to an associate (569) (68)
W ZAERARNIERES Deposits received from ultimate holding
company 19,655 —
REWEI SRR A T/ Return of deposits received from
B ultimate holding company (4,490) —
HEN B QRTS8 Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries — 209
B U F| B Interest received 875 1,470
REFEELE T FEE Net cash generated from investing activities 3,821 30,155
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HERTRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

—TEC-—F T
2022 2021
Bt 5 FEx F=T
Notes Us$'000 US$'000
REMETHZ2RERE Cash flows from financing
activities
BTS2 3 Proceeds from borrowings 27 29,450 36,570
BEER ZFE Repayment of borrowings 27 (33,948) (43,944)
Hic & 37 A% 10 P 15 SR E H K8 Net proceeds from placing of
new shares 7,618 —
BT E Dividends paid 25(a) — (76,865)
% 17 [ 88 =k 38 Payment for repurchase of shares 26 (3,632) (5,650)
EEMEAGENASHH Repayment of principal portion of lease
liabilities 35 (420) (481)
BETEATH % FEE Net cash used in financing activities (932) (90,370)
BHeRERSZEEM 2 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
AN Gk d) cash equivalents 21,001 (51,198)
FUNReRBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 32,545 83,409
EREE) 7 & Effects of exchange rate changes (2,220) 334
FRESRBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 51,326 32,545
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010.
The Company’s registered office is located at Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P. O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place
of business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun
Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and trading of pharmaceutical products. The
principal activities of the Group are carried out in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and are set out in Note 33.
There were no significant changes in the Group’s operations
during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda. The
directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding
company to be Cathay International Pharma Manufacture and
Distribution (China) Limited and CIH respectively.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as “IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each
of the reporting period. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in United States Dollars (“US$"”), which is the
same as the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

REVBBRREREE (&) 2. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

RBEFE - 84 492,686,000% T In prior year, research and development costs of

EREETHEEY BT -_—_Fi " approximately US$2,686,000 were included under

MBERAEGEAESZREME2E KSR administrative expenses. From 2022 onwards, research and

MR B E I R 0 DA S B 7N £ (B AT 3 OE B development costs are presented as a separate line item

RN At b REBIBEEEF D BN on the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other

HEAFENEY AR REFT - comprehensive income in order to reflect the Group’s inputs
for research and development activities. Thus, the comparative
figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

B 4 B PR B 7% R & %E B 3. Adoption of IFRSs

3.1 BRAN S ET B BR B 7% 3R o5 22 A
RAFE AEEFH AEABRES
FTERZ B2 HMA TSR
Ry sHmE 2R ZFEAEAE
BR-_ZT-_—_F—HA—BRBHFE
EHERAR & B 5 3R 2= AR RE N A R

3.1 Adoption of amended IFRSs
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended IFRSs issued by the IASB,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2022:

il S nNE BERRE Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

F16HRAEET — {ERE R RA — Proceeds before Intended Use
oliiges0r]

Bl @t BiEaN Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts
BIVHMER] —BROAHHRE — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

I B B e 2 4 2 B U ERRE R Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
FIRMET

BRGEREEN S —-F A=1H Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19 — Related Rent Concessions beyond
165008 f&MCovID-194A B 30 June 2021

PER

BEREHHREEN  HEMEREENEIR Annual Improvements  Amendments to IFRS 1 — First-time Adoption

“E-\%52 g — RRBE to IFRSs 2018-2020 of IFRS; Amendments to IFRS 9 — Financial

“EIREZEE RMBEEERA:

Wi R A 5 5 2 A B 0%,
RET — 2BIA
BRM BRSNS
16T RERE
R EAIRNEET

B2

R S T A KB K & BT
BELBEATE -
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Instruments; Amendments to IFRS 16 and
Amendments to IAS 41 — Agriculture

The adoption of these amendments have no material
impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. RHEBEEEREER (&) 3. Adoption of IFRSs (Continued)
3.2 EEMEMKREROTETREEET 3.2 New or amended IFRSs that have been issued but

I PR B 7% 3 5 2R A
AEELEERRATIERME
) AR A RO ¥ 5T S AR B R T B B 75
WEER (BRANEB NGRS TR
RATREMRRE) -

BREEARIRSN RBAFRDEEND
gl ﬁzgé?ﬁz’%%@%m#

BREENZIRR  BHBRRE
B R 2 A
BBREEIRH
Bl

BR@:HERIEGSRA ittt TR

£l

BEeHEANENE B-RSMELNEE
il %ﬁ/’%ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
A

BREMBASEN  EREDHREARE
S16RMERT

1 R-ZB_=F—H—-BRZEMABKRZ
FEHBER

2 R-ZE-MFE-F—BR2EABRZ
FEHRE AR
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are not yet effective

The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants’

Amendments to IAS Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of “settlement” to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Except for those mentioned above, these amendments
are unlikely to have material impact on the Group’s
consolidated results and consolidated financial position
and/or the disclosures to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group upon application.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses, if any.
The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the end
of the reporting period. All dividends whether received out of
the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU")
is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

BAAE BE B2 iR iR B PR A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 135



mEVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHEZ

T-__F+-A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

TESTBEME (&)

A& (&)

R — BB FEEETREREEDE
ms KHoEBENRSELELEN
% B R R AR E TR E R - IR
TELBEMHAKRESREREREE -
APREBESEREREEAIEEZ
BUMHENKREE HRANRZEM

leﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]tt% D B E % E AL
MEMEE - AN PEEEEENE

BreR @ EEMNRAESRRE
RPERBERAN (HAFHE) HEERA
BE(WEEE) (ABRSELRE)  -BHE
MEREBESER RN ERRER
REEERNBRESRETERER AR
Bm o

HEMBERSEEENE  mENEN
SR ARLEREEMNERSR -

AEBEERBEBBMEARMELREN
BRR N BE QR — 8L -

WM/‘\—J
BERRAAEEHEREEATER
VHRHBARIKBRELNER
EARFERZ2ERRETOM B REE
REAB I SRR B B KRR B % F R
‘-

o

BENFMEEREERA B FAR
HERAALSERATBRE - BRE
ERE REBE QR Z BRI FERA
RERE B ARR KRR - BB AFHEL
HRAEBEABE QA ANER R HEM
2EMNE EAEEEMLEEARERE
BEHANEBRZBE A ARNER (B
EHEE FAKRAEERZEHZ QA
REFE—PomEHEDS)  BIAE
ERRILEREREGE—TEER - WA
EERRZEHE QN RELEETRET
EAEKEHARE  heRRE—TE
o

136 Annual Report 2022 4 £

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described below in the section heading
“Associates”.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interests in associates are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of associates
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associates (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associates.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes
associates. On acquisition of the interests in associates, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36"”) as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had impairment
loss been recognised for the interests in associates in prior
years.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be associates, or
when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as
held for sale. When the Group retains interests in the former
associates and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of partial
interests in the associates is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associates on
the same basis as would be required if that associates had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associates would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interests in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if
that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associates that are not
related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below) are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of major categories of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation but not for sale in the ordinary
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful life of investment property is 40 years.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the assets (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially
at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.



mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FREHBERME (B
m AR (HEBRN) RFRRE ()

YN
EREERERTELNELEEREN
B AT HERR AR E B RERR

. BRHEABEANHENEERA
BT A7 1

s AEBEEEKERFERNLEER
BE

s AKEBRTARNEAILEET
BE

. ERAEBEANBEARLEN
B T B AT 35

s ARHARM  UHREREMERF
BVEENTK &

e RENZEWEEMRXEANSE

HE -

AR L iR R 5 3B X & A BB IR B
EREBRNFAXRELRERSER -

AERFHARNE ENMMEABERAR
Em Al HERRRERERN G AR
FHEE BEMANBERNER A
EREHERNCENMEARKANESF
EITRER -

ERREREE (BERI) WEE

AERFMERNELEE K ARAH
ERMETEEZBLREREESRR
Bl BEBFETRERNZ w2
SHEBRBREARERE -

HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on
an individual project is recognised provided they meet the
following recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life
are amortised on straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, when the products are available for use.
The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.
Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that
have a finite useful life to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset (or CGU), discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets
or CGU.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
However, the decrease shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The
decrease recognised in other comprehensive income reduces
the amount accumulated in the equity under the heading of
revaluation reserve.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of any
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately. However, to
the extent that an impairment on the revalued asset was
previously recognised as an expense in the profit or loss, a
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in
the profit or loss.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instrument

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit
or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and other
debt financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting period and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. For
other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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ZT-_F+=-H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrate otherwise.

Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more
than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Definition of default

The Group classifies credit risk on financial assets
as disclosed in Note 37. The internal credit risk
ratings are estimated based on qualitative (such as
customers’ operating conditions, financial positions,
etc.) and quantitative factors (mainly includes past due
information of the receivables).
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HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)
The Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources which indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full. Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off of the extent that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECLs reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECLs is estimated as the weighted
average of the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses
is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the

holder, the debtor or any other party.

Where ECLs is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments

are grouped on the basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
other receivables and finance lease receivables are

each assessed as a separate group.);
o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part
of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other
financial assets (including borrowings, lease liabilities,
trade and other payables) and are recognised when the
Group becomes party to the contractual obligations of
the instrument. They are initially recorded at fair value,
net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when

the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at FVTPL is initially recognised at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECLs
provision measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in above; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee

period.

(v) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.

(vi) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after

deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at costs, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs
and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.



mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TESTBEME (&)

Frigm
FAMBHEREYHELELERIEA -

ERRERBEAREGASED (EH
BABAAERIX T ERRMFHANIER
BEHHAR) BERHEMRERMKE
HLERMOBERTH -

EERBAEAERBRERNENEE
FEEREAEERFERBERENEES
BNERZRER BKRERITFES
AARERTEN N R EENME GBI
ERMEEREZRBERELHIEAE -
EENIAEER B A L8 A B R DR A
A HURE B Z R RER o BT IR
RERREREREENEFRERT
ENTAAERBERREBHHEE
FEBMOBREE -

RN ERRNER BERSRIR
REME2EKEANERNERR - 56
MIBIRREMEE RS AER - KEH
GRS EERNERAERNIER K
BRARBETE RN S NRER -

Fik
EEREBUERBEEMENETEZLE
REER ([MEER ) NI ERETT
MR 5 WETRXSRNBEREXARR -
SNEEREERBBIAREHRNE
K o UINEFIEL IR A FETIRD
FERHEREETATFEAHERER
EHRE - MINEAESE ARG EHIE
SEWMIEBBASHRE -

HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the assets
or liabilities is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. US$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Leases

The Group as lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which
at the commencement date have a lease term of 12 months
or less and do not contain purchase option. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under cost
model, the right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or
the maximum mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll costs, subject to a certain ceiling, as stipulated by
the relevant regulations.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions. The contributions recognised in respect to
defined contribution benefit plans are expenses as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if underpayment
or prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short
term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are included in liabilities as deferred government grants
in the consolidated statement of financial position and are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable and are recognised as
“Other income”, rather than reducing the related expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

BAAE BE B2 iR iR B PR A &) Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 157



mEVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

TESTBEME (&)

BRER
HEBATAL  BIZALTHZAL
MRS AR ERED

(a)

A

2 i) Sk HE R P il AN SR )
HAKEBEERTE &

RAEEXARREFRFH
2EEEKSE -

THMERME - AIZERR

AEBERBEER

(i)

(viii)

ZEREAEEER —£E
WKERR (AIZEBWNER
A -MEBARKRERNEB R
BITSEAARRE) :

*Fﬁiﬁfﬁ%*% BH B 2
REHEERE (HEEKE
NEMBERRHAERE

ME—BEBNSZEEANK

ZEERBYRRA-F=TH
BELE

B X(a)A P a8 Bl A 2 5l
S RS

(@QOAMBEIALTHERS
KE/@‘JZ%' B (HHE
RADWEIEEBEK
FREF-—TFTHNEBIAE

EEMEMKERF  BA
SEXANRAHFRAFRHEE
B ABRT

m

158 Annual Report 2022 4 £

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member to that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party,

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company’s parent.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segments under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
consolidated financial statements prepared under IFRS, except
that:

o share of post-tax results of associates accounted for
using equity method;

o other non-operating income and expenses;

o finance income;

. finance costs; and

o certain income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due
for grouping of various customers that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’'s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default are
adjusted. At the end of each of the reporting period, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customers’ default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables
is disclosed in Note 37.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group writes down its inventories to net realisable
value when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
obsolescence requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the estimate is different from the original amount,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and net realisable value for the periods in which such
estimate is changed. Management assesses the net realisable
value of the inventories and considers that the provision for
inventories impairment is adequate and reasonable at the end
of each of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2022,
accumulated provision for obsolete inventories of US$989,000
was made against the carrying value of inventories (Note 21).

Useful lives of intangible assets

Management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated
internally in pharmaceutical industry and technical knowhow
with perpetual royalty-free license with no termination,
have indefinite useful lives as they believe that there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which these
intangibles are expected to provide cash flows and these
intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period of
time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets
and the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations,
changed customer behavior and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives, or
will recognise impairment loss when future cash flows are less
than expectation and fall below the carrying amount of the
intangible assets.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises taxes based on estimates of the likely outcome
with reference to current tax laws and practices. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill was
US$6,824,000. Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in Note 19.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use, are determined with
reference to the best information available at the end of
the reporting period. Changing the assumptions selected
by the Group’s management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the operating and growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and financial
performance. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of intangible assets was US$21,213,000 (Note 18).
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment comprise a
significant portion of the Group’s total assets. Changes in
technology or industry conditions may cause the estimated
period of use or the value of these assets to change. Property,
plant and equipment, subjects to depreciation, is reviewed at
least annually to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. The recoverable amount is estimated whenever
events or changes in circumstances have indicated that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent
consideration of purchase of intangible assets as disclosed
in Note 37(b) based on the forecast of future performance
results of the related pharmaceutical product and terms
of acquisition agreement. The fair value of contingent
consideration will be revised upward or downward where
future performance results are different from previous
forecast and as a result, the change of fair value of contingent
consideration will affect the Group’s financial position and
financial performance. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration/other financial liabilities
was US$1,307,000 (Note 31).

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate for lease
liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate to measure lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing
rate is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
incremental borrowing rate therefore reflects what the Group
“would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the incremental borrowing rate using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s standalone credit rating).
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WA & H A A Revenue and Other Income
AEBRENEEFESAOMERHRA R An analysis of the Group's revenue which are generated from
HEMmARNDTET : contracts with customers and other income for the years are
as follows:
—E-= T —F
2022 2021
FEx F=T
US$‘000 US$'000
HEEmKA Revenue from sales of goods 65,558 54,180
Hig A Other income
AR L Er Gain on early termination of lease 72 198
BT B (BT AE) Government grants (Note) 449 104
Hit Others 672 420
1,193 722
B o Note:

AEBBEREM T RTERLAEERE DR B
iR B o WOER RO BY & T MY RS AR R AR 1 o

v RBE=ZZE=_=—F+=-A=+—HLLFE "
N6 B R B S A B AT IR BT HE A B R R
S TRRFEE (RS BERBUSH B €
120,000/ 7T ([T ]) (& 115,000 ) (=&
Z—F:E)ARINAEBREEFHM - RERG
2itE AEEAAERNBEERBEANEZSHIA
REBFEX - ETABKIEE ASURD EIEEKFL
T o B & DL E4R A 18 25 DA B2 A A9 #E BB Ak AN 0T
fd o NEE WA E M EAREI G KRBITEL -
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The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as recognition
of the Group’s development of high-technology pharmaceutical products. The
grants received were not subject to any conditions.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
government grants of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"”) 120,000 (equivalent to
US$15,000) (2021: Nil) from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under
the Anti-pandemic Fund launched by the government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC supporting the payroll of the Group’s
employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on
payroll expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels
for a specified period of time. The grant was allocated to the consolidated
profit or loss to match the relevant costs incurred. The Group did not have
other unfulfilled obligations relating to this programme.
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Segment Information

Information reported to the executive managing director,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance based on the types of goods delivered.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8

Operating segments (“IFRS 8") are as follows:

— Pharmaceuticals: development, production and sale
of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the
field of rheumatology and dermatology and other
pharmaceuticals

—  Cosmetic products: sale of cosmetic products

—  Healthcare products: development, production and sale
of healthcare products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from operations by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

ga £RER BEER @t
Cosmetic Healthcare
Pharmaceuticals products products Total
TER TER T%n T%x
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BF2HDHBIRA Reportable segment revenue 63,571 70 1,917 65,558
BIRHDBEF Reportable segment profit 24,671 58 108 24,837
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BHEZ

7.

DEER (E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
B8 _E_-_—F+-HA=+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
B eI RER @
Cosmetic Healthcare

Pharmaceuticals products products Total
TEn Tin TEn TET
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
BATERFBKA Reportable segment revenue 51,359 252 2,569 54,180
BIZHALERN/ (BI Reportable segment profit/(loss) 17,641 (812) 214 17,043

J:YFfr W FRAR KB IMNER P AT
BEOWA - RFEERBEFELEDF
Fﬁﬁﬁ%°

REBELEDMEENRBREGES UK
BREFWAKE T EM K EIENE R
W

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in the current year and prior year.

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciled to the Group's key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

FEx F=T

US$'000 Us$'000

BATERD I aF EE BT Total results of reportable segment profit 24,837 17,043
LB E AR RT e EE Share of post-tax result of associates (900) (989)

H iR 2 U A R %%  Other non-operating income and expenses,

net (1,250) (4,618)

R B g A Unallocated income 1,193 769
ROMHAZ Unallocated expenses (11,872) (12,207)
51 75 W A Finance income 875 3,938
B 76 AR 7N Finance costs (2,968) (1,532)
& BT 15 %5 B i 7 Profit before income tax 9,915 2,404
BREf TS R B8 N D EH The accounting policies of the operating segments under IFRS
= AT BUR B Y FE4 AT i AN & B A = T I 8 are the same as the Group's accounting policies described
BB -ATEFRHIEF, (EE) in Note 4. Reportable segment profit/(loss) represents the

)
%%a‘%ﬁ’]%?’rl/(%ﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁ%&%%ﬁ
X DAEZEERRAERIEERD
@E&%Ei%u*fﬁﬁﬁ ?E’]n‘l’iﬁ/ﬁ

FEMREEE R AR KA -
%'IEHSU\&%?SE?‘%%E*EM‘%H&U\‘EJNF%
PRAS - HBERAFE FRARZHERD
RERETEHRIEH  DEAREMABRE
EIE**LJ%%}\%EMHE“*E%ZEE’]
/,\?' /\JB¥ZEE/]H+EEP

H A IERE
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gross profit/(loss) less selling and distribution expenses by
each segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Share of post-tax result of associates, other non-operating
income and expenses, net, finance income, finance costs,
research and development costs and certain income and
expenses are not allocated to the reportable segments as they
are not included in the measure of the results of reportable
segment that is used by CODM for assessment of segment
performance.
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Segment Information (Continued)

No external customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts that
have an original expected duration of one year or less.

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by primary geographical market and timing
of revenue recognition:

—E—-= —E-—F
2022 2021
TEx F=E=T
Us$'000 US$'000

FTEHET S Primary geographical markets
R () The PRC (domicile) 63,899 52,037
BB Hong Kong 1,659 2,143
65,558 54,180

PN = Timing of revenue recognition
£ 7 s D B At a point in time 65,558 54,180

EPMHBEUENNEEMNUERE
o RRAR/NFASEHSEMKILAK
B AR mAKEEE I &I
X  AEENTEZENRTEBBKL
R E it - B B R B s
AIFESRAT M EMWEN 5 WRIEAE
EOEHER -

RMEFE  N"EBENMEFRRBDEE
BFHLRE -

MR EERRAETELERRAERD
MEEXADHBABES  HAE2IE

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location to which the goods were delivered. The Company is
an investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands where the Group does not have any activities, the
Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in
the PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s
country of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as
required by IFRS 8.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were
located in the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they
are not regularly reported to the CODM.
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Hib FEEMBMARBSFEE 8.

Other Non-Operating Income and Expenses,

net
—E-F —E -
2022 2021
FTxx FE7T
US$'000 Us$'000
mvEERERE (HE18) Provision for impairment of intangible
assets (Note 18) (1,409) (232)
REEE QR 2= Provision for impairment of interests in
B B (FTRE20) associates (Note 20) (295) (3,801)
IS ERE LB Loss allowance reversed on
& [ financial guarantee contract 454 515
& B A A A U a Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 18
BATVHESABRENSFEER Realised loss from financial assets at
B35 Es 18 (P 5E) FVTPL (Note) — (1,111)
HEERATEFAERN Transaction costs and other tax in
TREEI D EREEN connection with partial disposal of
R 5 BN [ H At A T8 financial assets at FVTPL — (7)
(1,250) (4,618)
B & - Note:

REBEE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HItEE Xx&£H
REBBELR BB ERILERMBHTHES
893,252,493 T AIA L R ER KB AR A A ([A
A BR#D FHERRERARE [ARE]D
63.4370 - EXZBEE (IR SMAREMFEIE)
1,118,000% 7T - R EEHRE  AEELTEFHE
R B AR AR D ©

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had disposed of all
the remaining 3,252,493 shares of Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
(“Starry”) via on-market sales on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, at the average
price of Renminbi ("RMB”) 63.43 per share and resulting in a realised loss of
US$1,118,000 (net of transaction costs and other tax). After the disposal, the
Group did not hold any shares of Starry.

Bt 7 A R B SRR AR Finance Income and Finance Costs
—E-—F T
2022 2021
FTEx FFET
Uss$’000 Us$'000
U 31 N Finance income
RIT A B A Bank interest income 875 1,470
B 5 Uz 5 58 Net exchange gain — 2,468
875 3,938
B 75 B 2R Finance costs
R1TE T A Interest on bank borrowings 971 1,321
HEBEFE (MsE35) Interest on lease liabilities (Note 35) 22 47
FEA R Z B B & R A 4B B 42 Cross guarantee commission fee payable
REeZH (H7E36) to a fellow subsidiary (Note 36) 96 101
SARE R IR B (H7E37(b)) Unwinding of discount on contingent
consideration (Note 37(b)) 60 63
b X 1855 Net exchange loss 1,819 —
2,968 1,532
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10. Profit before Income Tax
The Group’s profit before income tax has been arrived at

e R R
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HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

A) I BEEH - after charging/(crediting):
—E-F T
2022 2021
FEx F=T
US$’000 Us$'000
A G Auditors’ remuneration
— ZERB — Audit services 266 274
— JEZHARTE — Non-audit services 85 47
BRAERINEFEENA (M) Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses (Note) 21,263 19,771
FREEEFRE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 444 522
KREWMERE Depreciation of investment property 20 21
mE - BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,194 2,347
mLEERERE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets 1,409 232
Mz BERZERE Provision for impairment of property,

B 5 plant and equipment 94 17

ERAEEERERE Provision for impairment of right-of-use

assets — 78
PRREGFERMERE Provision for impairment of obsolete

inventories 182 383
HEIERE D EERE Loss allowance reversed on financial

#[a guarantee contract (454) (515)
SHEEMNEEREER Loss allowance recognised/(reversed)

($&Mm) on financial assets 110 (17)
FEH B R (Uh2) F 5 Net exchange loss/(gain) 1,819 (2,468)
WEMERNHES WA Rental income from investment

property (22) (23)
i 2% Bk 2N Research and development costs 2,132 2,686
HEDE BEMRENEE Loss on disposals of property, plant

and equipment 177 7
AR IEHEm 2 Gain on early termination of lease (72) (198)
7 &M Write off of inventories 2 464
% Bh & 7= e Write off of financial assets 24 18
ETIRA (BEESFHM Employee costs (including directors’

(Fr5E11)) remuneration (Note 11))

— TEEFS — Wages and salaries 16,323 14,400
— A B8 FOR ARG 81 K — Contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans 2,892 2,693

19,215 17,093

B &

BRRAXNTEERACEREISKA EAEE
EFE DE BERXBNE REFERER
WARMEFEEBORIE  ZEFANEEEL

MEIAFMI A

Note:

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included amounts relating to
employee costs, depreciation of right-of-use assets, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, provision for impairment of obsolete inventories and

write off of inventories, which are also included in the respective expenses

disclosed separately above.
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1. EENHEEBERSHF A LT E M 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest
Paid Individuals

EEHHM Directors’ emoluments
ENSENTARRRIESNETMAREN The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to
T 3 the directors of the Company are as follows:
gt
Other emoluments
420 M B L
ik NENEH KEke  BAHEER @t
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits  Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
xR =T T T S
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE-®_C% Year ended
TZAT-ALEE 31 December 2022
FRHTES: Executive managing director:
) Chen Li - 532 233 - 765
FRTES: Non-executive directors:
REE Wu Zhen Tao - - - - _
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt (resigned on
(M=Z-—FMANBRE) 9 April 2022) 10 - - - 10
A% Liu Xuezi - 213 216 2 431
BUERNES: Independent non-executive directors:
Rk Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher (resigned on
(WZTZZ#-F+HEME) 10 February 2022) 4 - — - 4
BER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - — - 35
BEE(R-E--#-A+H Chan Ching Har, Eliza (appointed on
EZ(T) 10 February 2022) 31 - - - 31
KA(AZBZZ£AHA=1= Zhu Xun (appointed on
HEZ) 23 September 2022) 10 - - — 10
125 745 449 2 1,321
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1M1. EENREEBESEHFE AT HEMH

HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest

(&) Paid Individuals (Continued)
EEEHH (&) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
H o 5
Other emoluments
e 2H RE B
ik NENEH Kiske  RIGTEEAR &zt
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
and benefits Discretionary retirement
Fees in kind bonus plans Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 Us$'000
HE-E--F Year ended
TZAT-ALEE 31 December 2021
FROTEES: Executive managing director:
9 Chen Li - 553 132 12 697
FRTES: Non-executive directors:
RER Wu Zhen Tao = - - - -
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 38 - - - 38
ASZ Liu Xuezi - 200 87 2 289
BUERTES: Independent non-executive directors:
Rile Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - = 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 - - - 32
BER Yeung Tak Bun, Allen 35 - - - 35
140 753 219 14 1,126

MEEEREIRERNEHE_T ==
ER-EBE-_—E+-A=+—RHILEE
& T Bk o

FMIEREBURREZNRER

BHE_Z_—_F#RkKR-_ZF-_—F+_H
=+—HLEFE ASEMERTHENE
EREMARREHFA TS ERBE
EBMAREB S INARSEEZ B EZE
HE AR E o

R-_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&H
I 48 B 58 UK 65 70 AT B A H R oK 2R 4F 2 AY
BRBEHE (=T =—F &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Discretionary bonus are determined on directors’
performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2021: Nil).

BAAE BRI AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 171



mEVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. EENTEESFHA LM 11. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest

(£8) Paid Individuals (Continued)
EEBREHAL Five highest paid individuals
hEBERFATEREARRMBES (= The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors
T —F NBEE) HEBEEE (2021: two directors) of the Company, details of whose
REXFIROMARB - T=% (= emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
T —F:ZRA) T ATHEHMF Details of emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three)
(=R O highest paid individuals were as follows:
—_E_- —_F-—
2022 2021
TEx F=T
Us$’'000 Us$'000
e EMMEMEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 479 393
[l Efan Discretionary bonus 324 195
[A) JE B8 ft TR IR ET 3 i 5k Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 34 30
#Et Total 837 618
YRNFLEMZIEEE A THEHFBN FIA The emoluments paid to each of the above non-director
T & : individuals were within the following bands:
—ZE_-= —E-—%F
2022 2021
A N
No of No of
individuals individuals
£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 —

1,000,001% 721,500,000  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 — 1
1
1

1,500,001% 7t £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007% 7t HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2
12. FTEEBIHX 12. Income Tax Expense
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
TEx F=7T
US$'000 US$'000
EHMEHIE Current income tax
— KEE — Current year 2,050 2,749
— BEFERETIR/ — Under/(Over) provision in prior years
(EBEE R R) 6 (24)
2,056 2,725
TEEF B (i 5E28) Deferred tax (Note 28) (738) (1,224)
P15 %4 5 2 Income tax expense 1,318 1,501
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Fﬁ ﬁrﬁﬁi(nﬂ
FERH AR BERAEBEELEMER
Bal AR EAREGTHE -

RIS FI 15 B A W AR I 45 Rl R B il
A B % ¥ 455t 52,000,000 7T 5F
JFE SR B A1 1528.25% K Bt R G 4y 77 18
I 145 $216.5% B B 2 8 452,000,000
LA LGB EREEFZ2HE - TF4
AR 15 56 2 B8 1l A 1 25 00 ) S A AR 4%
16 5% BHEMB - BHE_T__F R
B+ _A=t+—BIFEANH
HAEHEBHEANRAEER -

BIERECERSHEE((LCERESH
FEDREERMA  PEMNE QAR
R AI5% (ZE=—4 :25%) o

R-_E-_ZTF+_F—H AN&EHE—
MNBAREE el ERS
—F REFEME EB-T=-2F
+ZRE T =—F+ AN =FHRK
AIZH15%MERFE -

FAMGHAXEGEBRENEMBEE
Yat & FTRBRFTTS %'#‘\'%JEﬁTﬁEQDT:

12.
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Tax on assessable profits has been calculated at the applicable
rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which the
Group operates.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime for Hong Kong
profit tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated assessable
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
the estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates
regime was applicable to the Group for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%).

On 1 December 2020, one subsidiary of the Group renewed
the "High Technology Enterprise” status for 3 years that
entitled them a preferential tax rate of 15% for a period of
three years starting from December 2020 to December 2023
according to the PRC tax law.

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E-F —E -
2022 2021
FEx F=7T
US$'000 US$'000
B P15 354 Al 4 A Profit before income tax 9,915 2,404
LEARE B ERERE R Tax on profit at the rates applicable to
TR T E /) i 18 the jurisdictions concerned 2,273 609
A AT RS E Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 1,527 702
HEZRRUWA BT &2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (849) (712)
BAEFEERETR, (HB5EE4ME)  Under/(Over) provision in prior years 6 (24)
AERERUEEZENT T E Tax effect of temporary difference not
recognised (565) (1,224)
AERHEEEBNRIGETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 235 2,526
B) A e R AR FE R B TR B 18 Ultisation of tax losses previously not
recognised (963) (159)
Hth Others (346) (217)
FT 15 %4 5 2 Income tax expense 1,318 1,501
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13. B2 13. Dividends
—E=-= —FT-—F
2022 2021
FER TET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BRARBDIKHRE : Dividend recognised as distribution:
:;fifi%%ljﬂn 8 — 2021 Special dividend — HK$1.55
FA%1.555% 7T (B A% #)0.203 7T)  per share (approximately US$0.20
per share) — 76,865
R-TE-——FEAA-+/\B AAFD On 28 September 2021, the Company paid a special dividend
;‘fmqﬁ\;g;—iﬂﬂ +—BEZEH of HK$1.55 (equivalent to approximately US$0.20) per
R B ER%1.558 7T (M85 R 40.203% share, totally amounting to approximately HK$598,551,000
) - gg £+ 49598 551,0007% ¢ (452 7 (equivalent to approximately US$76,865,000) which was
4976,865,000Z 71) ° proposed on 31 August 2021.
RS -—=FE=F—+mE 2= % On 24 March 2023, the directors have resolved to declare an
SREANR —ZS =M A +m B ([4 5% interim dividend of HK5.0 cents (equivalent to approximately
B ZXRHEREZIAQAGRER US0.64 cents) per share, totalling approximately
69 IR 3R =k & A AR B & RR5.095 L (48 HK$20,396,000 (equivalent to approximately US$2,616,000)
R 40.64Al) - é#%@zo,waooo;‘% to the shareholders listed in the register of members of the
T (FHE R 492,616,000 7T) - E = JF Company at the close of business on 14 April 2023 (“Record
AR EA AR B 18 2 2B LA BE 35 A Hﬁﬁljﬂz@,@ Date”). The declared interim dividend will be satisfied wholly
RS ([ ERRG B R85 1) E«jﬁﬁggﬁ m in form of an allotment of shares to be credited as fully paid
T\%ﬁ%é}iéﬁffgﬁiﬁﬁ}gqﬁzﬂxiﬁﬁﬂ 8 A up (“Interim Dividend Shares”) without offering any right to
RS D B E R ([R5 \‘ﬁ the eligible shareholders to elect to receive such dividend in
Z]) o cash in lieu of such allotment (“Share Dividend Scheme”).
R RE Bt 2 BEB S FTHE S €t The Share Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing
AR B2 IS 1 B BT 2 ¥ F 25 1T Hy b B RE Committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of, and
BlRHD ETRESE S HA{EE - (& permission to deal in, the Interim Dividend Shares to be
FEREEER - BRMDIE BRI e AR issued under the Share Dividend Scheme. If the condition is
M B Te AR S « B HR B8R not satisfied, the Share Dividend Scheme will not become
e E T RN FRLERR L5 ARA effective and the Interim Dividend will not be paid whether
B E R e Al e in cash, in Interim Dividend Shares or otherwise to any of the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the Record Date.
EMHIE BRI BT A IS EER% 0 T Subject to the fulfilment of all conditions of the Share
B HAPE B IR D ¥ 31T F A B &R EE - Dividend Scheme, it is expected that the Interim Dividend
AP HARERNDOBREFR T _= Shares will be issued to the eligible shareholders and the
A=+ /\BaaiEE3sTEERAEE o share certificates for the Interim Dividend Shares will be
despatched to the eligible shareholders on or around 28 April
2023.
WINENE R EAIR B IR (D BB st E R Details on the calculation of the number of Interim Dividend
EREROBEEXIFEFENSMAEHR Shares to be received and the closure of register of members
[EEeRE |RHMESERDEIEM - are set out in the Results and Appropriations under section
Gy — D E ARG IR B RIS headed “Report of the Directors”. In addition, a circular
BRHENERAITIBE L TRRSREFA which gives full details of the Share Dividend Scheme will
NTPEE o be sent to the shareholders of the Company as soon as
practicable.
EERTHREMANRBE_T __F The declared interim dividend has not yet been accounted for
+ - FB=+—BIEENGEASUER in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
EABE HERHBEE-_=E—_=%+—H4 31 December 2022, but will be reflected in the consolidated
=+ HILEEN A M RER R - financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023.
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14. Earnings per Share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of US$8,597,000 (2021: US$903,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 406,331,000
(2021: 389,748,000), after adjusting the treasury shares held
or cancelled by the Company, outstanding during the year.

The Group had no potential dilutive shares for both years.

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

EE T HeE RE  BRARRE REIR @t
Furniture
Building Motor and  Construction
and plant  Machineries vehicles  equipment in progress Total
S TEn TET TET TEn S
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
RZE-—%—F—H At 1 January 2021
KA Cost 28,634 14,161 696 3,067 — 46,558
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (10,315) (8,982) (379) (2,491) — (22,167)
REEE Net carrying amount 18,319 5,179 317 576 — 24,391
HE-Z--F1+=A Year ended 31 December
= = Nl 2021
FARE R E Opening net carrying
amount 18,319 5179 317 576 — 24,391
BEHAE Exchange adjustment 467 132 8 15 — 622
NE Additions 193 283 1 197 4 678
e Depreciation (1,208) (981) (31) (127) — (2,347)
A Impairment — (15) — 2) _ (17)
HeE Disposals (1) (43) — (5) — (59)
LENBEAR Disposal of subsidiaries = (18) = ®) = (26)
FEREERE Closing net carrying
amount 17,760 4,537 295 646 4 23,242
WZE--%+_§ At 31 December 2021
=1+-H
B Cost 29,314 13,339 678 3,202 4 46,537
ZirERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (11,554) (8,802) (383) (2,556) — (23,295)
REFE Net carrying amount 17,760 4,537 295 646 4 23,242
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15. W% - BERRE (&)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

BPRERE W RE  BRARRE ERIE @5
Furniture
Building Motor and  Construction
and plant  Machineries vehicles  equipment in progress Total

TER TEn TEL TER TER TER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

HE-_E-_—F+-H Year ended 31 December

=t-AL%E 2022
ENERERE Opening net carrying
amount 17,760 4,537 295 646 4 23,242
fE AR Exchange adjustment (1,370) (367) (24) (55) - (1,816)
NE Additions - 486 13 104 — 603
e Depreciation (1,129) (971) (29) (65) — (2,198)
WA Impairment (@) (90) — _ _ (94)
HE Disposals (170) 3) (2 (13) - (188)
#)\/(4) Transfer in/(out) — 4 _ _ @ _
ERERFE Closing net carrying
amount 15,087 3,596 253 617 — 19,553
WZE-__%+_H At 31 December 2022
=+-H
KA Cost 26,660 12,657 603 2,939 - 42,859
ZMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (11,573) (9,061) (350) (2,322) — (23,306)
REFE Net carrying amount 15,087 3,596 253 617 — 19,553
B & Note:

BE-ZT--F+-A=1+—HLLFE ' ARBK -
BELRENRMRE W% BRERIERERE
£94,000E T (ZF = —4 : 17,000 70) E £ 8=
FRERAATHAIH -5 RiEWE  BE KK
EOREEERSEARESEE -
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, provision for impairment of
property, plant and equipment of US$94,000 (2021: US$17,000) was
recognised in profit or loss as part of administrative expenses to reduce the
carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment to their recoverable
amounts as a result of outdated, physical damaged and technical obsolescance.
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16. ERAEEE 16. Right-of-use Assets
AREBEHEHKLSHN A AEER (S The Group leases a number of office premises, motor vehicles,
BEEE)  HEZEBRALHT - 5E prepaid land lease and office equipment in the jurisdictions
FEMNLHEERRARE - WEEERN from which it operates, including the PRC and Hong Kong.
HERPREEHERRNMNEBE MK - The leases of these assets comprise only fixed payments over

the lease term.

—E-= —E-—4F
2022 2021
SEEEPT F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
FYERE FE Opening net carrying amount 1,950 2,450
PE 5, 5 B Exchange adjustment (155) 53
NE Additions 347 266
e Depreciation (444) (522)
B E Impairment —_ (78)
HEWB QA Disposal of subsidiaries — (219)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 1,698 1,950
BN Cost 3,059 3,489
ZFtITERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (1,361) (1,539)
IREDVFE Net carrying amount 1,698 1,950
BB EES S E2ERAEEEEREmEE The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets
oMW by class of underlying asset is as follows:
—EBE-_F —EF=-—
2022 2021
FEx F=ET
USs$’000 Us$'000
TEN T E - IRITERASIEE  Prepaid land lease, carried at
depreciated cost 1,359 1,536
WERIGET -~ BRI AR Office premises, motor vehicles
LI ERK AT BR and office equipment carried at
depreciated cost 339 414
BREDF (A Net carrying amount 1,698 1,950
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17. REY=X 17. Investment Property
—E-F —E -
2022 2021
FEx F=E=T
US$'000 Us$'000
FYERE FE Opening net carrying amount 627 633
PE 5, 5 B Exchange adjustment (52) 15
e Depreciation (20) (21)
FORREFE Closing net carrying amount 555 627
DN Cost 858 937
REE Accumulated depreciation (303) (310)
BREFE Net carrying amount 555 627

AEENREMER/URTENEEY
X UIRAFERETHEIE=7 -

HEEN T -——F+—-_H=+—H
HIAFEX)A790,000E T (— T = —4F:
957,000%7t) - AFENREEE AR
MBI EEE R T ERTHEREDEN
7 B FNAE 5 75 M A 7 85 9 98 5T (4 A
AT EZRNERARETNEESH -

REEFEDRENSE B AF
B ABERLELBOEETA  AER

ERDEUREFHRALEUARZEMSE
BRALHEERS TEHARELE
FHARTZER MHEERCEBRE

ELRH/THR -REMENHNLTEAE
BEERM GRS ERF13R [ FE
EIRENRTFEERE=H -
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The Group's investment property is a commercial property in
the PRC which is leased to an independent third party during
the year.

The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December
2022 was approximately US$790,000 (2021: US$957,000).
The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Ascent Partner Valuation Service Limited, an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has experience in the location
and category of the investment property being valued.

The fair value was determined based on the market approach,
where the fair value is estimated by the direct comparison
method on the assumption of the sale of the property interest
with the benefit of vacant possession and by referring to the
asking prices and comparable sales transactions as available
in the market. The key input was the market price per square
metre. A significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the investment property. The fair value measurement of
the investment property falls into level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement".



mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. B &EE 18. Intangible Assets
AERER
ERNR
BRO#RE HNEXAR BERAA EE JiF FAE #st
Indefinite
Exclusive lived
distribution Technical Development technical
right know-how costs know-how License Total
TET TET TET TER TER TER
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

(Mizk@) (HizE(b)) (M7H0) (M3E(d)
(Note (a) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note (d))

W-Z--%-f-H At 1 January 2021
K Cost 307 6,282 18,203 9,370 1,185 35,347
2HEHRAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (307) (6,282) (5,880) (63) (1,185) (13,717)
FEFE Net carrying amount — — 12,323 9,307 — 21,630
HE-Z_—-F Year ended 31 December 2021

TZRA=T-BIEE

ERESE Opening net carrying amount — — 12,323 9,307 — 21,630
iR Exchange adjustment — — 418 3 — 421
NE — WEPR % Additions — internal development — — 1,031 — — 1,031
HE Impairment - = = (232) = (232)
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount — — 13,772 9,078 - 22,850

RZZZ—F+=-A=1—H At 31 December 2021

B Cost 314 6,430 19,212 9,377 — 35,333
2HEHRAE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (314) (6,430) (5,440) (299) — (12,483)
FEFE Net carrying amount — — 13,772 9,078 — 22,850
BE-_Z--% Year ended 31 December 2022

TZRA=T-BIEE

ENRESE Opening net carrying amount — - 13,712 9,078 — 22,850
EHHEE Exchange adjustment - - (1,150) - - (1,150)
RE — RHBAE Additions — internal development - - 922 - - 922
# paiment - — () - — aw
EREEFE Closing net carrying amount — — 12,135 9,078 — 21,213

WZZE--—F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022

R Cost 287 5,886 18,431 9,352 - 33,956
ZBERRE Accumulated amortisation and

impairment (287) (5,886) (6,296) (274) - (12,743)
FEFE Net carrying amount — — 12,135 9,078 — 21,213
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18.

BEEE (&)

BOREREMS  BXBTEM BFEE
KB AR B EE - M5
PRESI 2 - BE Mt LM 160
I ZERREECRBEMEEIEER
TELEN -

ARESRENEREBEFEEZET - %
ATEAERAENETEEBH ERRAT
BB SIEERNIR S RE=TERL16.81%
£2381 %M AR KR (Z T = —F -
14.57%%20.69%) - BBAAFHHIRE
MERBAEERO%BEE - £FRAEENE
FHEMEFBREDERREESRA R
EEEE ERREEEHEREFX -
BRAMHDERZBEMNBERBANARE
BEHMBERENESH - EEEMHE -
FREEBREANELROGEZHET
SEYREmFEBBETIE B -

BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE -
HREEERMMSHERKTER &
& EREREEA1,409,000k T (=&
— —4 :232,000% )  WEREZEF
e TR 5 L FE A A U A K2 B ST ER (B
FE8) —EH UG EF EEM R EER
EEEINEE-

B RE

(@) R-T—=F+-f AEEE—-HHER
RIVBR G ARG BERETESH
10 Y 20 $HAE © b 70 SHAE IR B AR B 1R 10%F
FHENE -ZF-—MF—-A— BRGNS H
REE) B RNBEFE BROFHED
2HEHRE -

(b) RWMEXNBEIBERREREEET R
i e B B B Al R e 75 o

BE-T——FtA—Bk BHROEHER
B F 0T 5 35 0 38 A R #540,993,0007T 12 B 4R
ERp+—FFHEE REEFE B
FEABCEERE -
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18. Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment assessment, intangible assets
related to cosmetic products, healthcare products and other
pharmaceuticals, property, plant and equipment set out in
Note 15 and right-of-use assets set out in Note 16 have been
allocated to CGUs according to the nature of projects.

The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and pre-tax discount
rate of ranged from 16.81% to 23.81% (2021: 14.57% to
20.69%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the five-year period is 0%. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/ outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate net carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, provision for
impairment of intangible assets of US$1,409,000 (2021:
US$232,000) was recognised in profit or loss as part of
other non-operating income and expenses, net (Note 8) to
reduce the carrying amounts of the intangible assets to their
recoverable amounts as a result of the unsatisfactory market
demand for the corresponding products.

Notes:

(a) In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one
pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right was amortised on
a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution
rights, starting from 1 January 2014. The exclusive distribution right was
fully impaired in prior years.

(b) Technical know-how mainly represented techniques and formulae
acquired for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical
products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets amounting to RMB40,993,000 has been amortised
on a straight-line basis over 11 years. The technical know-how was fully
impaired in prior years.
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BEEE (&)

(&)
FBRAEBEIRHERIE hAMELNA
AER((AMBERE]) -

EERRAFTHNBERRERERFSH R
HAEREHEXNAMERBRAIRIRST
EMHRYER R ot FAMBER AR
— BB P ARR R P A A 7 E G T A AR AR
& o

MAMERELBERE EEFREERELZ
WA MEEFER BEREAFHD
MBERTGETEE IRSEIBSF
EFERETFERENS  MHETRE
TEAEREAEHNMNBEEATERE -
EERETRMETRENR BE_T=_—F
+ZA=+—8 CEBZHHERIREEE
1,409,000( T (ZZ=—F : &) °

EEREAFHARMEXNZEEEAR
Novartis AGFINovartis Pharma AG (£t#E [ 55
) WEH T LKA REF BT (M
FH31) RABARERAEEAFEEDE MO
RBLF e

BE_ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—H ®i4EEFx
REGHNAERFERAFHORMTEXEMME
fE18 % P SRR (B # 5232,0003E 7T ©

BE_ZT-_—_F#+_A=1+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider that these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as
there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPRs
in pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPRs
can be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products
are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should
be written down or written off immediately to profit or loss. IPRs with
indefinite useful lives are not amortised and are tested for impairment
annually at each financial year end or more frequently if there are
indications that IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, provision for impairment of
US$1,409,000 was recognised in profit or loss (2021: Nil).

Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence acquired from Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively
known as “Novartis”) with no termination (Note 31) and techniques and
formulae for the development and production of skin care products.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for impairment
of US$232,000 was recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
indefinite-lived technical know-how for skin care products.
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19. &

19. Goodwiill
—E_-— —EF - —
2022 2021
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
BREE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEERESEMBEEF RN ELET
HAE - S E SRR M E TR ERIA -

PREAANS BERERENER
MAEERAE T EE—EARSELEN
(ZZ2-—F: —ARSELEM) B
BRIEXBAREREEEN EmnMHK
B EEMAZKEDEFBE] -

tiREeELEBEM AT KESENEER
HEXZMHEBEHEEBADT

ZERCEEBEMMATKE S REIAER
BEMEEIET ZEAEEFEAER
EEEEHERRAFHNPEBER
e = T8 R PA R AT AR IR X 75320.67%
—T - — 4 :1831% ) ° {BiB f F Hf
MNIRERERABELRIR (ZE=_—F:
0%) 88 - EABETEZNEMEE
BEDERRESRA RENMGET &
FEEBEEHERERNE - G@MHTD
ERZEMNBERANUREEREHMS
BRMNEH BEEMERE EALHER
RAGERENSESEE IS ERAR
HEBBE U E B -

BE_Z__F+-_A=1+—HLFE"
ARFRESET HBEBYEME (=
ESfE)
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The Group assesses goodwill annually for impairment at each
financial year end, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
development costs related to specialty pharmaceuticals have
been allocated to one CGU (2021: one CGU), including
subsidiaries with principal activities of manufacturing and
trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which are included in the
“Pharmaceuticals” under operating segment.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGU and
its major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined
based on the value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and pre-tax discount
rate of 20.67% (2021: 18.31%). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is
0% (2021: 0%). Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of
the Company determine that there is no impairment on its
goodwill (2021: Nil).
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i N 20. Interests in Associates
—E=-= T —F
2022 2021
FTER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EEEEFE Share of net assets 5,371 6,822
Z25HRE Accumulated impairment (4,558) (4,626)
813 2,196
BREANEBRRE RGBS N TS Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
mE period are as follows:
LT B 3L 3t B TE AEERERARELSR
£% REXMH Rewd REEHLLH TEXK
Place of Principal Proportion of ownership
incorporation and  place of interest and voting power
Name operation business held by the Group Principal activities
—E-CE —E-—F
2022 2021
ERERAERAR ([XR])) RERLES e 30.0% 30.0% EEREEEMRERRRRER
([RBRIFES])

Natural Dailyhealth The British Virgin The PRC Production and trading of plant extract
Holdings Limited [slands (The "BVI") and healthcare products
("Natural Dailyhealth”)

RER G E MR HE HE 20.0% 20.0% REHAT XREHE -

BRAR(TRHE])

Tianjin Robustnique The PRC
Biotechnology Co., Limited
("Robustnique”)

DFENSIAR (LhmEMEYL

B mEREmm R EMEZE

The PRC Engaging in the research and
development and industrialisation of

new industrial enzyme preparations,

molecular biology tool enzymes, and

bioactive factors for cosmetics and

biological skincare products

i B AT AR ENAEE The above associates were accounted for using the equity

HEMBHRERAR -

method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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20. ABENTF 2= (&)

R

RZZEZZF+=-A=+—H ' AQF
BEERAEE N E) A REEE AU
ElEEERERAE ¥EEZNATF
B DA 250 78 78 X FR 98 S 5T 1 B 3L AT
BERANERABETTMG XEEEH
e BEEREQFEREDEKX
KHETEREABEEN  ZAHAEAER
10F B BEE MRS RIEA - BRIR
& TR F R 12 BE 3R K B13.86% (= F
Z—F 1 14%) c BRHEET10F B LA &
BEREMNERER2 06% (T - —F:
1.95%) ' REBBREERE - R 25T
WEREER  AIKESESENEREE -

20.

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Natural Dailyhealth

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company
are of opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of
the interest in an associate, Natural Dailyhealth, was less
than its carrying value while a valuation was performed by
an independent valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service
Limited, to determine the fair value of Natural Dailyhealth by
using income approach. The recoverable amount of interest
in Natural Dailyhealth is determined based on a fair value less
costs of disposal calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a ten-year period. The
post-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections is
13.86% (2021: 14%). The growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows beyond the ten-year period is 2.06% (2021:

R ERA N E BB EE — P RIE - 1.95%) which does not exceed the long-term growth rate.
AT REFIBRFTERERAND EH A Following the accumulated impairment loss recognised,
BIABRBABENRE : the recoverable amount was equal to carrying amount, any
adverse change in a key assumption would lead to further
impairment. Below is a summary of the key unobservable
inputs used and categorised within level 3 measurement:
BERATUEBEGAZKE EAXATATBEEQOAREEE TABERABBEAFENREEZR
Significant Range of significant Relationship of unobservable

unobservable inputs unobservable inputs

inputs to fair value

EH H24%Z45%
= _*E EEZSCVO;I:‘I-Z%)

Gross margin Ranged from 24% to 45%

(2021: Ranged from 25% to 42%)

REERE
Long-term growth rate

2.06% (ZEFE=—%% :1.95%)

2.06% (2021: 1.95%)

i 1% Bh 3R = :14%)

Post-tax discount rate

13.86% (ZF = —
13.86% (2021: 14%)

BHE_ZT_—_F+-_HA=+—HLHF
E-UEARAERGE #BHE_T = —
F+_A=Z+—BHLFE BRERE 2021,
2,035,000 e 182 A ERR (BT EE8) o
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EMIEINE R FEE N

The increase in the gross margin would result
in an increase in fair value.

i B2 & SR 38038 BN FEIE N
The increase in the long-term growth rate
would result in an increase in fair value.

Bt 1& BRI R IE NG HA FER D
The increase in the post-tax discount rate
would result in a decrease in fair value

No provision for impairment was made for the year ended
31 December 2022. During the year ended 31 December
provision for impairment of US$2,035,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss (Note 8).
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20. REE QT 2= (&)

e CE

RZZEZZF+=-A=+—H ' AQF
BERABE N E) A E SR AR A
Llﬁzlil SRR EREE B ERSN

20.

BE_Z_—_F+_A=+—BHLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Robustnique

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company are of
opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of the interest
in an associate, Robustnique, was less than its carrying value

BB AN 5505 B TE & BB 98 AL AT 18 A 3 while a valuation was performed by an independent valuer,
FEHEZAER A RETE o 58 M Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, to determine the
Emm A B REAFERAL fair value of Robustnique by using income approach. The
EXRANGTEFEAEERN  ZAERER recoverable amount of interest in Robustnique is determined

ERN A FHUKEENE S RER - B
RIBEREBAMTZIIE X A13.83%

based on a fair value less costs of disposal calculation which
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets

—E - —F 11122%) c AREE R covering a five-year period. The post-tax discount rate applied
FHUBRSREMNIEREE2.06% (= to cash flow projections is 13.83% (2021: 11.22%). The

T —F:251%) AmBEEBE R
X MRARFREEEEZ  JRESHE
EREREEE  BRESNTHESHG
EHE—SLRE -NTREFIFT=
REEAM D EMNBERET SR E AR
R E

growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2.06% (2021: 2.51%) which does not
exceed the long-term growth rate. Following the accumulated
impairment loss recognised, the recoverable amount was
equal to the carrying amount, any adverse change in a key
assumption would lead to further impairment. Below is a
summary of the key unobservable inputs used and categorised
within level 3 measurement:

ERATAEERAYE EATITEHERARESEE FABERABBEAVFENREZR
Significant Range of significant Relationship of unobservable

unobservable inputs

unobservable inputs

inputs to fair value

E7

Gross margin

46.6%

RHERX
Long-term growth rate

— = —

- =

46.6% (2021: 48.9%)

2.06% (==
2.06% (2021: 2.51%)

—&E ; 48.9’%)

—4F 1 251%)

ENIE NG R FELE N
The increase in the gross margin would result
in an increase in fair value.

i B3E & 230 08 BN FEIE N
The increase in the long-term growth rate
would result in an increase in fair value.

Tiig BE IR = 13.83% (ZF=—%F : 11.22%) & ALIR RIL B EH QA FER D
Post-tax discount rate 13.83% (2021: 11.22%) The increase in the post-tax discount rate

would result in a decrease in fair value

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIFE
/WE%H%Z%OOO%EWE SHER(Z
T — —4 : 1,766,000 7T) (Hi5£8) o

During the year ended 31 December 2022, provision for
impairment of US$295,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss (2021: US$1,766,000) (Note 8) .

BAA BB IR AR A &l Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 185



mEVBHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-__F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. ABtE AT 2= () 20. Interests in Associates (Continued)
JEEE KRB N A A B 755 & RHEE 2 51 40 Summarised financial information of the immaterial associates
e are set out below:
—=E=-= T —F
2022 2021
FEx TET
US$'000 Us$'000
R+t=-B=+—H At 31 December
REMBRERPHERETDE Carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements 813 2,196
Bz BHE
—E-— —E-—%F
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
ILEFE IHEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
FEx F=T
Us$’000 Us$'000
EEELFEERBEQTSHE Amount of the Group’s share of
immaterial associates
— [E(REE — Share of loss (900) (989)
— EHEMEE RS — Share of other comprehensive income - —
— EhHEzEKRREE — Share of total comprehensive income (900) (989)
21. & 21. Inventories
—E-CF T —F
2022 2021
FEx TET
Us$’000 Us$'000
B Raw materials 2,489 1,304
ER M Work-in-progress 1,561 1,379
2K Finished goods 5,982 4,708
10,032 7,391
N—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H' ' Bk As at 31 December 2022, accumulated provision for obsolete
EHEEEEEL989,000E T (ZFE = — inventories of US$989,000 (2021: US$1,485,000) were made
£ : 1,485,000 ) R ERFE 25 & against the carrying value of inventories.
&
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EZREMEWRTIE 22. Trade and Other Receivables
—E=-= T —F
2022 2021
TX7 FET
Us$’000 Us$'000
25 EIEIE Trade receivables 16,430 15,954
L 1R B Less: loss allowance (772) (683)
15,658 15,271
e Zix Bills receivables 19,429 23,612
25 W E K EREE Trade and bills receivables 35,087 38,883

& 1~ 3k 18 K E At e U ZE Prepayments and other receivables

(FB BB ) (net of loss allowance) 2,045 10,993
37,132 49,876

EEZRA B REMEBKFAENEKE

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

BHEEANFEREE - other receivables approximate their fair values.
AREEBNRERRAERZPIRZETIHIOKR The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period

HEEH - of 90 days to its customers.

AEEW ERZSERFTHTMERR -

REZEZAH RHREHR 25EHH

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade

B orEWZE L EREE (1K &R and bills receivables (net of loss allowance) of the Group as at
&) BREe DR - the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-F —E %
2022 2021
FEx F=x
Us$'000 US$'000
90K AT 90 days or below 20,146 19,551
91£180K 91-180 days 7,006 7,397
181E365K 181-365 days 7,935 11,935
35,087 38,883
R—_ZTE-——-—®+—-F =+ — As at 31 December 2022, certain bills receivables of
15,456,000FE 0 (=& — — ¢ US$15,456,000 (2021: US$19,249,000) were pledged to

19,249,000% 7T) W& TRKREERCZE
BTRITAR—HRRK B QR ZHRIT
fESRIEHE R (M1 aE36(e)) ©

36(e)).

secure for bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note
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23.

24,

[ —-EBEQATNER
ZHRARELN 2R HARENRERE -
EZRnuAESRNREEREE A FER

4
o

+

e

R—E - —F+_-_A=+—H ' 2HnMA
—REI A D B B A BRI E 1 8 4E
H 2 EERERER 5925,000% T (=
T — —4 : 964,000%7T) °

BEABRTER SRHRTE
% BeRELZEY

23.

24.

Loan to an Associate

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
this balance approximates its fair value.

As at 31 December 2022, accumulated loss allowance
recognised on loan to an associate of US$925,000 (2021 :
US$964,000) were made against the carrying amount of loan
to an associate.

Pledged Bank Deposits/Restricted Bank
Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents

—E-= —E-—F

2022 2021

FT=x FET

US$'000 Us$'000

5 & KIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 76,305 48,489
o BEEERITER Less: pledged bank deposits (9,814) (15,944)
o R BRI Less: restricted bank deposits (15,165) =
HEeRIRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 51,326 32,545

RelREFEVEERTRTFERS
AFRIPEE=EA KA THEHRE
R - RITEESREE B RITHERA
RZFHNRAR - BREEBMERFA
RITI IR T 45 7 R BRERA B,

RZEZZFRZZFEZ—F+=A
=+ —HNEERRITERELAEE A
BMEAEEETHRITHME (HE27) &—
R RH B AR 2 R17fE 5k (M zE36(e))
MK R TIER °

SZRHIBITFERIEREAEERBEL
CIHIR B 17 A8 ERITER F 1EBCIHR
BEOEANREHER R _T ==
+—A=+—8 ZBRHETEREH
B HAEERBRET —HRREMNER
A ZRITERE E (KIEE36(e)) °

R-_ZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—H K&EH
H)35 & &R 1T 45 82 B 4553,455,000% 7T
(Z= = — £ :48,189,000% 7t ) By iR 17
e REBRUARESE AR
FEBHEBHNE -
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, and short-term time deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term
time deposits are placed with banks and earn interest at
market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure for certain banking facilities of the Group
(Note 27) and bank borrowings of a fellow subsidiary (Note
36(e)) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Restricted bank deposits represent the cash deposits received
from CIH placed in designated bank accounts as security
under the CIH's counter guarantee pursuant to the cross
guarantee agreement. As at 31 December 2022, the balance
of restricted bank deposits was correlated to the bank
borrowing of a fellow subsidiary under this cross guarantee
agreement (Note 36(e)).

As at 31 December 2022, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group was bank balances of US$53,455,000 (2021:
US$48,189,000) denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency.
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B% 7 25. Share Capital
RHEE |
Number of shares Amount
FET
US$'000

N Share capital:

ETE ¢ Authorised:

RZE-_—%—A—B8" At 1 January 2021,

—E-—F+-_A=+—AkK 31 December 2021 and
R+ HA=1—H 31 December 2022 20,000,000 200,000

BRETRART Issued and fully paid:

W-Z-—F—F—A At 1 January 2021 397,172,000 3,972

EEE mERMRA Cancellation of shares repurchased (19,858,000) (199)
R-ZB-_—-5+-F=+—-H8BEK At 31 December 2021 and

—E-=f—H—H 1 January 2022 377,314,000 3,773

IR A 1D (Kt 7E(a)) Placing of new shares (Note (a)) 49,520,000 495
FHEE CEARG (ME26) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 26) (6,400,000) (64)
R=-B-—-+-A=1+—-A At 31 December 2022 420,434,000 4,204
Bk Treasury shares:

\ZF=—F—Hf—H At 1 January 2021 — —
W17 188 (BisE26) Shares repurchase (Note 26) 19,858,000 5,650
EHE B ER R (KsE26) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 26) (19,858,000) (5,650)
R=B-_—-%+=-HA=+—-HERK At 31 December 2021 and

—2--f%-8-8 1 January 2022 — —
W17 188 (FisE26) Shares repurchase (Note 26) 18,478,000 3,632
P BB RD (K sE26) Cancellation of shares repurchased (Note 26) (6,400,000) (1,282)
R-EBE-_—_H#+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 12,078,000 2,350
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25.

26.

R (%)

B RE

(a) REZFT=Z=FWAtAH " ARAEAREAT
YREGE B ARAEBBRHRER
BMARARBEKHRERERETAL
49,520,000k EL E ik fn - MM EEBAEBREE
f% 19 1.207% JT ° Bd ©49,520,0000% f% 19 B 1
—E-_—FMA-t+HTEK- KB IEREF
¥ 1% BT15 3E R B 49 559,154,000 7t (18
B R 497,618,000 7T) ° A It AN A AR A
3 N 49495,000% 7 ' FTS RIEFEHHELN
7,123,000E T B R IR D 5= B R AR ©

]
EE
M55 BRI BB N EENEHE -

SINEE % 5 4 12 S SNE B BB % R B S R
MEESR ZHR -

AERBERERBRTEBEBEIRE &
o B BfY /B & B 69 ) A o3 B 2= 1 A 93 UK ek
BEk-

EFERMDEERBERTHERD BHE
—E-—EFE+-A=+—HItFEE K
7~ B) BB 22 P DA 48 £X. 828,504,000 7T
(FEE M #493,632,000F L) (=T =—F :
43,897,000/% 7t (18 & X 495,650,000
7T) )@ B£18,478,0000% (Z & = — 4 :
19,858,000% ) H AN & L @BA% (fizE25) ©

#91,282,000% L (=& = — F :
5,650,000 7T ) #16,400,0000% @ B8 A% (5
ER T - —F+-_A=+—HILtFE

RERE B RE - ANDRE— R AT
[B] f£430,000f E AR & L@k - BRE
£645,0007% 7T (FHE R 483,000 7T)
WHHEZEL2BARAFEEFERGH
12,508,0000% f% {7 °
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25. Share Capital (Continued)

Note:

(a) On 7 April 2022, the Company and the placees entered into the
subscription agreements, pursuant to which the placees conditionally
agreed to subscribe and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and
issue a total of 49,520,000 placing shares at a placing price of HK$1.20
per placing share. The placing of 49,520,000 shares was completed on
20 April 2022. The net proceeds after deducting the related expenses
amounted to approximately HK$59,154,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$7,618,000). Accordingly, the Company's share capital increased
by approximately US$495,000 and the remaining balance of the net
proceeds of approximately US$7,123,000 was credited to the share
premium account.

26. Reserves

Group
Share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

Foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
required by the relevant PRC statute.

Treasury shares represent the shares repurchased but not
yet cancelled. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company repurchased 18,478,000 (2021: 19,858,000)
shares of its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of HK$28,504,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$3,632,000) (2021: HK$43,897,000
(equivalent to approximately US$5,650,000)) (Note 25).

6,400,000 shares of repurchase shares amounting to
approximately US$1,282,000 (2021: US$5,650,000) were
cancelled by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
further repurchased 430,000 shares of its own ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of HK$645,000 (equivalent to approximately US$83,000) and
all of these 12,508,000 treasury shares held by the Company
were cancelled.
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26. f#E (&) 26. Reserves (Continued)
FiN/NE | Company
13 %8 EFR 4G REBEF @t
Share Treasury Retained
premium shares profits Total
TET FTEn TET TET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
HBEZZT-—§+-A=1—HILFE VYearended 31 December 2021
A—E-—%—H—H At 1 January 2021 16,750 — 7,422 24,172
B8 (FiEE13) Dividends (Note 13) — — (76,865) (76,865)
% 7 [l 85 Shares repurchase = (5,650) = (5,650)
B B ARG Cancellation of shares
repurchased (5,451) 5,650 — 199
HERANETRS Transactions with owners (5,451) — (76,865) (82,316)
FE & Profit for the year = — 101,290 101,290
FEEMEZEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year — — — —
FEZENERSE Total comprehensive income
for the year — — 101,290 101,290
RZE-Z-F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2021 11,299 — 31,847 43,146
BZE-Z_"_54+-F=1+—HLFE VYearended 31 December 2022
R-ZE-_—_%—H—H At 1 January 2022 11,299 — 31,847 43,146
REFR M (FF250) Placing of new shares
(Note 25(a)) 7,123 — — 7,123
{7 B8 Shares repurchase - (3,632) - (3,632)
B BB RN Cancellation of shares
repurchased (1,218) 1,282 - 64
BHEEANETRS Transactions with owners 5,905 (2,350) — 3,555
FEERF Profit for the year — — 173 173
FEHEMZAEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year — — — —
FEZEUNRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year - — 173 173
R-ZE-_—_&+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2022 17,204 (2,350) 32,020 46,874
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27. &R 27. Borrowings

—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
FEx TET
US$'000 Us$'000
E B MEMMFIEITER Fixed-rate and unsecured bank
borrowings 18,235 24,687

The Group’s bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost
and due for repayment within one year. There were no
borrowings contain a repayment on demand clause as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

N5 B A SR 1718 BUR 85 Ak A B BR
WTE—FAEE R_T=-_=_F+=A
=+—H8 UTEEXRBSEREKEE
BER(ZZTEZ—F : |) °

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain banking facilities
are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain

%:%::i&:;:*¢+‘ﬂ
E+ A ZETRITMEBSEAEH

HETHBIRR L R AN REEREITR
HAEE - ﬁ%kﬁﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ
ZHTBER - HAKEERR
B EBZBEREE -

AEETEHEEE@ERALSNETIE
MR EHERNEERBERER
AEBREREASEEEFTEZENR
m RITTPRATRETFEENBEZKE

CRIEZZFRZZT=—F+=A
:+ B WEEXERINEE N HERE
2

RITERNEEENATIIEEE

financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group breaches the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, up to date, makes repayments in accordance
with the repayment schedule of the term loans. The Group
does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand repayment for as long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

—E-—_— —F-—%F
2022 2021
TEx F=T
US$‘000 US$'000
UTE&BERR : Represented by:

ARBEHER Borrowings in RMB 18,235 24,687
—E-CF T
2022 2021
TEx F=7T
US$'000 Us$'000

ERFR X : Effective interest rate per annum:
RITER Bank borrowings 4.02% 4.68%
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27. & (&)

RZE-_—_F+_A=+—H K&EH
%A B K R 17 17 389,792,0003 7t (=
T — — 4 :13,136,000% 7T) fE AR &
ERITRVE MK IR (M RE24) °

KT FE36(e)FT il - AEEE AR B[R R
WBARR_ZE—XRFA~A  ZF2—N
EFRAR_E-__FRHAGIAEE
RpZE LRAERBESTHRITER
REER RZE_—_F+-_A=+—
H ' 14,646,000% ¢ (=& = — & :
19,135,000 7T ) B 8 K 48 8 17 18 5K &
RARME QA REER- T &K
R 1718 F3,589,000F T (ZE = — £ -
5,552,000 70) AA R Al sk A& B E T
M A RIER -

BERBELEZAEHEROT

HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. Borrowings (Continued)

The Group had pledged certain bank deposits of
US$9,792,000 (2021: US$13,136,000) to secure for the
banking facilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (Note
24).

As explained in Note 36(e), the Group and a fellow subsidiary
of the Company entered into cross guarantee agreements in
June 2016, May 2019 and May 2022, and agreed to provide
guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of
each other. As at 31 December 2022, the unsecured bank
borrowings of US$14,646,000 (2021: US$19,135,000) was
guaranteed by the fellow subsidiary. The remaining balance
of unsecured bank borrowings of US$3,589,000 (2021:
US$5,552,000) were guaranteed by the Company or certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

—EC-_F —E-—F

2022 2021

FER F=ET

US$'000 Us$'000

R—HA—H At 1 January 24,687 31,424
ReERELD : Changes from cash flows:

BRET1E 2 KIA Proceeds from borrowings 29,450 36,570

BEBRZNIE Repayment of borrowings (33,948) (43,944)

(4,498) (7,374)

bE 5 2 Exchange adjustment (1,954) 637

R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 18,235 24,687
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28. EEBREE A

28.

AT R BRE M S BTN IHERR

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

The following is the analysis of deferred tax

balances for

AT financial reporting purposes:
—E-—F T
2022 2021
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EETRIBE &= Deferred tax assets 859 —
R IAEE Deferred tax liabilities (2,012) (2,032)
(1,153) (2,032)

ATRARAEERBEFERRIER

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

EENMIBEEREENRESS) recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:
ROKEHH BE FEH
PERE BERE  AZRET REFSE it @t
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred  Unrealised
undistributed development  profits on
earnings costs  inventories  Tax losses Others Total
TEn T£n F£r TE TEL TEL
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BE-E-_-F+-A=+-HILEE Yearended 31 December 2021
RZE=-£-f—-H At 1 January 2021 181 1,584 — — 1,462 3,227
AR Exchange adjustment — 39 — — (10) 29
RE&EME/(ZA) (F&F12) Charged/(Credited) to profit or
loss (Note 12) — 193 — — (1,417) (1,224)
R-B--%+-fA=1+-8 At 31 December 2021 181 1816 — — 35 2,032
BE-S-"H+-A=t+-HLEE Yearended 31 December 2022
W-E-—%-8—-H At 1 January 2022 181 1,816 — — 35 2,032
JE 5 AR Exchange adjustment - (159) 13 5 - (141)
REZEME/(ZA) (Kz12) Charged/(Credited) to profit or
|oss (Note 12) - 174 (704) (173) (35) (738)
R-B--—%+=-A=1+-H At 31 December 2022 181 1,831 (691) (168) — 1,153
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EFEERBEE &E (&)

BERBREEXMBHRE BT\
F—HA—H# gt RN B R R T
BaFmERORKEAZMEN -
MEMBRRANL RS B A
A H)54,674,000% T (=& = — F :
46,640,000% 7T) E2sta MATEEN Y
REBRELEEHREREG  REEREK
SEAEFEREBENBOKRE BZ
S EERE TR Al T8 A A5 2R B -

AAREEBEREE —BEBRN—EEEIE
R BRARHIR  LUERABRKFET
AIEAEERT - E L H RS AR B
BERGHVEREERAELTEHRIE
BE - ASERTBENBRREENEK
AR IEE B4 56,411,000 T (= F
——4 :15,199,00037T) ° FiIAFIER
BT R A FRRAAESE -

B RHEMENRIA

HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

28. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to US$54,674,000 (2021: US$46,640,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences, it is probable that the temporary differences will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been
recognised in these consolidated financial statements as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and the unpredictability of future profits
streams. The Group has unused tax losses of approximately
US$6,411,000 (2021: US$15,199,000) incurred by the
subsidiaries in the PRC, which can be carried forward for 5
years from the year in which the losses were incurred.

29. Trade and Other Payables

—=E=-= T

2022 2021

SFEER F=T

Us$’000 Us$'000

=Y AN Trade payables 1,791 3,188

JET R B Bills payables 12,004 14,547

PIEEREH Financial guarantee contract — 481
WR HAEER A RIHER 2 Deposits received from ultimate holding

(Pt 5E36(e)) company (Note 36 (e)) 15,165 —

Hth & {5 5008 K B 5T 5RIE Other payables and accruals 10,188 8,373

39,148 26,589
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29. EF R HMESRE (E) 29. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
BEZEZAH RBEHRR AEEH Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade
2o EMNFIBRESTHOT ¢ payables of the Group as at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:
—E-F —E %
2022 2021
xR FE7
US$'000 Us$'000
90H AT 90 days or below 1,505 2,848
912180H 91-180 days 14 40
181£365H 181-365 days 3 3
HiEm365H Over 365 days 269 297
1,791 3,188
EERA B NHEMEMNTFBENER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
BHEEANFEREE - other payables approximate their fair values.
30. BHEE 30. Contract Liabilities
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
TEx FE7T
US$‘000 Us$’000
LTIBEEEANSLYARE Contract liabilities arising from:
E s Sale of goods 168 77
AHEBERE Movements in contract liabilities
—_E—-C —E-—F
2022 2021
TR FET
US$'000 US$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 77 296
AFERNERWZMERF YA Decrease in contract liabilities as a
EHNEENEHEERD result of recognising revenue during

the year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of

the year (68) (293)

AiRAIHEMEZHNEG L Increase in contract liabilities as a result
=Rie il of billing in advance 169 70
M i, 3 B Exchange adjustment (10) 4
Wnt+=—BA=+—H At 31 December 168 77
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HhemasE 31. Other Financial Liabilities
—E-F —E %
2022 2021
FEx F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
FARE —ERAFE Contingent consideration, at fair value 1,307 1,247

R-ZZE—mE=/A=+N\H8 A2 aH
BE2EWNBRARIBLEEE (FE) AR
AR ((BREEE]) (VEEEIVEER
EnE Bl HERERPAEEES
BXZEE (PEHEESE QAR
fit - EERTEH BEHE BEEE
MEBEEE ZEBEEEMBSREEMNE
MEYK D EARERESEEERR
(BB (TRIEES BFIREE)) #
BEREEN —RARABERELRENEHE
(] B [ I ) 4% 1M B2 B8 J7m ) 4 B35 R 2
FLE) ¢« R()ETMFF Al ek - DA(E 38 RS
NEEERERANGTT  RRSNRE
#$8,000,000E T HHAS 51 - BB E&E S
/1,500,000 7T # 58 70 BB 2 8 1< 51 (E2
BB XIS MEHESEES) ([RARK
&l -

AREBRBHXAREBELZHAEEAL
MEBARARNANBERGERESEN T
0% 7t & 1,500,000 7T °

FARAREBERVIEERRIEEAZATE
HABE R-E-_—ER-_T=-—4%&
T A=+ —HHKAREZRAFER
= FEREME37D) °

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited
("LMHK™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into (i) the asset purchase agreement
with Novartis pursuant to which Novartis agrees to transfer
to LMHK the transferred assets (including know-how, books
and records, specified trademarks, commercial information
and medical information relating to the pharmaceutical
product which contains specific active pharmaceutical
ingredients, and it is marketed and sold as a cream under
trademark of Sicorten Plus in the territory (i.e. the PRC,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) for the treatment
of certain corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin
diseases secondary infection), and (ii) the licence agreement
to grant the licences, relating to the pharmaceutical product
in the territory for a total cash consideration comprising an
upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone
payments of a total maximum US$1,500,000, which are linked
to sales achieved by LMHK (the “contingent consideration”).

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this
contingent consideration arrangement is between US$0 and
US$1,500,000.

The contingent consideration was designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL. Refer to Note 37(b) for details of the
fair value measurements of contingent consideration as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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32. ZERDAAHBRR R

32. Holding Company Statement of Financial

Position
—E-F T
2022 2021
B 5 TXxx FET
Notes Us$’000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—EH B A E RS Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
EREEE Right-of-use assets 30 30
25,050 25,050
REBEE Current assets
NG E Amount due from a subsidiary — 12,582
E i fE W kI8 Other receivables 67 _
SR HIRITER Restricted bank deposits 15,165 —
HEeERRE2ZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19,531 9,591
34,763 22,173
BEE Total assets 59,813 47,223
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEARK #E Capital and reserves
AATERE AEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
fi% < Share capital 25 4,204 3,773
B 1 )% B Share premium 26 17,204 11,299
[EE 17 B 1D Treasury shares 26 (2,350) —
1R % F Retained profits 32,020 31,847
s Total equity 51,078 46,919
mENEE Current liabilities
JE B B A Bl FRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 8,425 —
HEAE Lease liability 30 30
&5t R IE Accruals 280 274
e E Total liabilities 8,735 304
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 59,813 47,223
REBEEZFE Net current assets 26,028 21,869
BEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 51,078 46,919
RREZE On behalf of the directors
EFE EZE
Director Director
B 5 g ER
CHEN Li LIU Xuezi

198 Annual Report 2022 4 £



mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

33. XQAMEQAFE 33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
B 2 B B9 — AR E F General information of the subsidiaries
KRB AR RRERROFEBOT : Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out follows:

EMRL/ AREFERARERR
£R R E TEEERY CIM/ROREAHE REENLA E:3 3
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
—B-CF —E--—%
2022 2021
ERBARE
Interests held directly
BEBERRAERARA RERLES 3 29,491,360 ZREE 100% 100% HARK
LG 1XTHERR
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings  The BVI Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Lansen (BVI)") of US$1 each
BREAER
Interests held indirectly
Brilliant Manufacture Limited RERNES 0 \REEIETHERR 100% 100% RAER
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Flash Universal Limited RERNES b \REEIETHE AR 100% 100% RAER
Flash Universal Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Horizon Network Limited RERNES b \REEIETHE AR 100% 100% RAEMR
Horizon Network Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Magnificent Worldwide Limited ~ RERZES Bk IRAEIETHEAR 100% 100% RAEMR
Magnificent Worldwide Limited ~ The BV Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited ~ XERZEE BE 1REEIETR L ER 100% 100% HEZR
Beauty Sparkle Holdings Limited  The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEBXEABVERLA EBRAMS & IREEIETHEBR 100% 100% REZK
Lansen Medicine Consulting (BVI)  The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BEEZBVIEBRAR EBRAMS & 1REEIETHEBR 100% 100% REZK
Lansen Medicine (BVI) Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
LYERAA &8 (He) i IREBVETHL AR - 100% REEK
Full Keen Limited Hong Kong (Note (e)) ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
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33.
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

EMEL/ AEEfEREREER

28 R 5 TEEERY DM/ ROREAHE REEMLLA E:3 3
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal

Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities

“E-Cf -—E--F
2022 2021

HEsAER

Interests held indirectly

BERE(BR)ARAH &R &R 100RAE100E T & & 100% 100% HEZR

&

Lansen Investments Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$100

BEBE(BE)ERAT &b B TREEBTHERR 100% 100% REER

Lansen Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited

UEENRR(FR)BRAR  FE &b \REEETHEBR 100% 100% REZR

Liwah Plant Extract Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited

REERARAA &b B TREEIBTHERR 100% 100% REER

Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

REER i BB 1REEETHEBR 100% 100% BEEH

LMHK Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical

business

REMERERAA & &t \REETETHEBR 100% 100% HREZK

Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

ERUEREERAA P (M EEb) HEl AR 236,000,000 100% 100% BEXHK
=5 k-3)

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited business
("Ningbo Liwah")’

ERVEENRABZMERAE  HE (Hib) HE AR %28,000,0007C 100% 100% BEXHK

Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Limited” business




33.

RFHERBFE (&)

Mo RN —RER (&)

BE_ZT-_—_F#+_A=1+—HILEE

mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

Rl aYe rEEMBRERERR
28 R FEEENY CHM/RORAHE REEMLLH FTEEEK
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
—E__F -—ZE-—%
2022 2021
BEEEER
Interests held indirectly
ERAEREERAT e () e AR #35,000,0007C 100% 100% BEEH
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (c)) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Company Limited” business
ERRERERRERAR w8 (3 (b)) e ARH1,000,0007 100% 100% BEEXEK
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited® business
REERZS(LE)BRAR B (fib) el AR 10,000,0007C 100% 100% BEEHK
Lansen (Shanghai) International ~ The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
Trading Co., Ltd.* business
REERES (AR EBRAR  FE (K@) P AR2,000,0007 100% 100% XBEH
Lansen (Beijing) International The PRC (Note (a)) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Cosmetic business
Trading Co., Ltd.”
VHERBR A RERIAHE BE 1REEIETR L BR 100% 100% HEZR
Allied Choice International Limited The BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
PEBBEEZARH (BA) B5 e TREBIBTHLER 100% 100% REER
BRARA
Lansen Medibeauty Tech Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
IR EEBRAR i (Ft (b)) e AE105,000,0007 100% 100% BEEE
(BB RAEBEZAR
BBRARF)
Zhejiang Langli Medicine Limited ~ The PRC (Note (b)) The PRC RMB105,000,000 100% 100%  Pharmaceutical
(formerly known as Ningbo business

Lansen Medibeauty Tech
Limited)*
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33. XATMKHERQEFE (&) 33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
MEATN—RER (&) General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
EMEL/ AEEfEREREER
28 R 5 TEEERY DM/ ROREAHE REEMLLA E:3 3
Place of Principal Particulars of Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of registered/issued interest and voting power Principal
Name establishment business share capital held by the Group activities
“E-Cf -—E--F
2022 2021
MiEGrt) BERNARAA T (WED) Wt 100,000 L £ 100% 100% EEEZ
Lansen (Swiss) Medicine Switzerland (Note (d))  Switzerland Swiss Franc100,000 100% 100% Inactive

Consulting Limited

ERERERIMBERRR  TRAMWZORE) HE AR¥5,000,0007 — 100% XB%%

Ningbo San Parietti Medibeauty ~ The PRC (Note (b) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Cosmetic business
Tech Limited” and (e))

FREBEXAMBERAR  HE(WE@ke) #E A& %500,0007T - 100% =A%

Beijing San Parietti Beauty Tech  The PRC (Note (a) The PRC RMB500,000 - 100%  Cosmetic business
Limited” and (e))

’ EHZFZ ! For identification purpose only

Bt 5 Notes:

(@ RPABEKIZRERRAR (a)  Established as a limited liability company in the PRC

(b) RFBKIAIINEBEDE (b)  Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

(0) KRB AFINGEDE (c) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC

(d) MImETKIZRERRAA (d)  Established as a limited liability company in Switzerland

(e) ZERAIBRAFE W EH (e)  These companies were de-registered during the year

A = 4= BA S5 45 4 (T (a] (Y B D B BT AL (] None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

BB o end of the reporting period.
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

Composition of the Group

A AR LB L it B
Place of incorporation/
establishment

ENBLARHE
Number of wholly-owned
subsidiaries

—E-C ===
2022 2021
BEXK H 6 5
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
LR BB 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
EAHE s 1 4
Cosmetic business The PRC
KREZER BB 6 7
Investment holding Hong Kong
A& AR KBRS 9 9
Investment holding The BVI
TmEE It 1 1
Inactive Switzerland
24 27
AE 34. Commitments
B RIE Capital commitments
—E-F T
2022 2021
TR FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
U BE DA & T8 B9 A HE Commitments for the acquisition of:
EEE Intangible assets 116 179
Y% -~ WENE&E Property, plant and equipment — 37
116 216
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35. HEERE
WABFT - SERBARME

35. Lease Liabilities

Office premise, motor vehicles and office equipment

—E-CF T —F
2022 2021
FEx F=ET
US$'000 Us$'000
NE Additions 347 266
FERZ Interest expense 22 47
HEN Lease payments 442 528
ARBEENZWRNBFBERLOT : Future lease payments are due as follows:
REREMNR FIE R{E
Minimum

lease Present
R-ZZE--_F+=-H=+—H At31December 2022 payments Interest value
FEx FEx FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
—F R Within one year 340 10 330

il —FETHBAMRE Later than one year and
not later than two years 31 — 31
371 10 361
SR &3 A2 RE

Minimum

lease Present
RZZTE-_—F+=-_H=+—H At 31 December 2021 payments Interest value
FET F=7T F=T
Us$'000 UsS$'000 Us$'000
—F R Within one year 353 17 336

BiE—FETBAMRE Later than one year and
not later than two years 209 5 204
562 22 540
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HEEE(E) 35. Lease Liabilities (Continued)
WABAT - RERBARE (&) Office premise, motor vehicles and office equipment
(Continued)
METHEECBEHERAT : Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:
—E-CF T —F
2022 2021
FEx F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
m—HA—H At 1 January 540 1,176
ReERELH : Change from cash flows:
EEHEAENEAS M Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities (420) (481)
EEHEAENHEMD Repayment of interest portion of
lease liabilities (22) (47)
Hip & : Other changes:
N Additions 347 266
B (F3E9) Interest (Note 9) 22 47
AR IERE Early termination of lease (72) (198)
& M E A R Disposal of subsidiaries — (243)
bE i 28 Exchange adjustment (34) 20
Rt+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 361 540
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36. BEALXRS 36. Related Party Transactions
FERN - NEFHEBEFEN N EEAR During the year, the Group entered into the following
2 material transactions with related parties:
—_E_-— —_EF-—
2022 2021
FEx FE7T
USs$’'000 Us$'000
BEEX G - Trading transactions:
SN EEE M (MFE@Q)) Purchase of goods from associates
(Note (a)) — 64
MR R E A FHEEm Sale of goods to a fellow subsidiary
(Bt 3 (a)) (Note (a)) — 113
FENTEEE R AR E (K7 (Db)) Entrusted fee payable to an associate
(Note (b)) 65 185
JFE Wi Bt 2 N &) A0 T & (B 55(c)) Processing fee receivable from
an associate (Note (c)) 68 44
HEK5 - Other transactions:
ENRARHBARESH Rental expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 11 58
HERRMBARHEESRE Settlement of lease liabilities to a fellow
subsidiary 123 31
ENEBE R RBAE Consultancy fee paid to an associate
(Bt 3E(d)) (Note (d)) 171 93
JEUESE & A RIFE A E Consultancy fee receivable from
an associate 21 2
JEUL R Z BB A Bl RS & Service fee receivable from
fellow subsidiaries 77 67
FE 1< B B 8 A Bl e A B 4R Cross guarantee commission fee payable
B<ER (KiEe)) to a fellow subsidiary (Note (e)) 96 101
JE U R R B8 A | Y #E B HE IR Cross guarantee commission income
e A (KiEEe)) receivable from a fellow subsidiary
(Note (e)) 82 101
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36.

mE M BHRRHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

T3 &6 (MR EERE) RBEERWE The following balances (net of loss allowance) were
RBE outstanding at the end of the reporting period:
—_E_- —EF - —
2022 2021
FEx FET
USs$’'000 Us$'000
B 42 N &) R 3 (B 55(f)) Amounts owed by associates
(Note (f)) 309 —
m—REEE AT EZ (MT:E23)  Loan to an associate (Note 23) 8,974 8,855
EEANIEPNGIESCiIETG)) Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries
(Note (f)) — 8,828
R—ER R B R RBFKIA Amount owed to a fellow subsidiary (14) —
UG B &% 4% 4752 f 2 B O IR 1 Deposits received from ultimate
(Ff=£29) holding company (Note 29) (15,165) —
B EE - Notes:

(a)

(b)

BHE_ZT-_—&F+-_A=+—HB A£EM
BN B 464,000 THE G °

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H8 A%EHRA
ARANRAZAWNB AR REEREELEYR
AR AR HEL113,000E T E M °

RIBEZZ—RNFNA -+ BEEFBAEBVI)
FRIMEREMITERGZ ([REMIER
ek l) » ZERAZSKEAEBVIR A B A
B ([BAEBV)EE) BEFPEZEMIATER
#) e [AEPWERZ & M E I TE R 20K
RIN0%E DR IE 2 ZRBX N ERIERRF
# o

BIEZXMIER G XEIEZTHE
(BVI) & B pn THE W IR BUE @ o I T & LA
ANMEF X ABEEER  SERAERNIE
h Y 2 FBA S AN 10% &I AN AK

BE AR G R A IR & R
R -

(a)

B A 8

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired goods of
approximately US$64,000 from Robustnique.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold goods
of approximately US$113,000 to Changchun Botai Pharmaceutical
Biotechnology Co., Ltd, a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the entrusted processing framework agreement signed
between Natural Dailyhealth and Lansen (BVI) on 20 September 2016
(the “Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement”), Natural Dailyhealth
may request Lansen (BVI) and its subsidiaries (the “Lansen (BVI)
Group”) to enter into the processing order contracts with customers.
An entrusted fee was payable to Natural Dailyhealth for the difference
between the amounts received from customers and the costs incurred in
relation to the processing of the products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

Pursuant to the Entrusted Processing Framework Agreement, Natural
Dailyhealth may entrust Lansen (BVI) Group for the processing of the
plant extract products. The processing fee is charged on a cost-plus
basis, representing all costs incurred in relation to the processing of the
products plus a mark-up rate of 10%.

Consultancy fee was paid to Natural Dailyhealth for the consultancy
services acquired for the plant extract products.
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36. BELXZ (&)

B e

(e)

(%)

RZFE—R"REANAZ+MWB - E|KIE-
EMNEEEMIRERMARRQR ([HHKE
A]) - RARRRME A B R EAAEBVIET L
BEERRBZ Bt RZF—R"EF+H—
HE-_Z-AFRAA=ZTHERBEZT TR
TEFUR HAE IR LR 62 H KB R AR AHER -
BEBABHS —FERONERR S F K
HY o

—NFREA=H BERILE HWNE
& B A (BVI)AT SLAR B 3 2 LASE R A B #E IR

ZH Bt RZT-NFLA-—HEZZ
::iﬁﬁlEJrEIFJﬁTﬁ%S%%EE’UiEﬁ%?M%
HERIEEEWBRARDREER B &
FﬁH#Tf;‘j 77 PR FE AR B B R A 3% 75 KB ©

RZE_—_FHAA=+/"H CH - FKL
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e) On 24 June 2016, Ningbo Liwah, lilin Haizi Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Jilin Haizi”), a fellow subsidiary of the Company
and Lansen (BVI) entered into a cross guarantee agreement, pursuant
to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of each
other from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. Commission fee would be
charged to a party in respect of a loan which is guaranteed by another

party.

On 3 May 2019, Ningbo Liwah, lJilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) entered
into a renewal agreement to extend the cross guarantee arrangement,
pursuant to which the parties may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to
provide certain guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities
of each other from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022. Commission fee is

charged on a loan which is guaranteed by another party.

On 26 May 2022, CIH, Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) further
extended the cross guarantee arrangement, pursuant to which Jilin Haizi
and Lansen (BVI) may, provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
certain guarantees to banks in relation to the banking facilities of
Ningbo Liwah, Jilin Haizi and Lansen (BVI) from 1 July 2022 to 30 June
“Effective Period”). In addition, CIH has agreed to provide
a counter guarantee (secured by the cash deposit and without any
charges) under which CIH has agreed to indemnify Lansen (BVI) Group
fully for all liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, costs and taxes (if any)
as a result of any default in the repayment of the bank facilities obtained
or to be obtained by Jilin Haizi during the Effective Period and Lansen
(BVI) Group becomes responsible for such repayment. Commission fee is

2025 (the

charged on a loan which is guaranteed by another party.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings with carrying amount of
US$14,358,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB100,000,000) (2021:
US$20,390,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB130,000,000)) drawn
by Jilin Haizi was guaranteed by the Group together with the collateral
including bill receivables of US$15,456,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$19,249,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB122,727,000)) (Note 22) and bank deposit of US$22,000 (equivalent
US$2,797,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB17,836,000)) was pledged. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group received deposits of approximately US$15,165,000 from CIH
as security (Note 29) and placed in designated bank accounts (Note
24) under the CIH's counter guarantee pursuant to the cross guarantee
agreement. On the other hand, banking facilities of RMB130,000,000
was guaranteed by Jilin Haizi and an amount of US$14,646,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB102,000,000), was drawn down by the
US$19,135,000 (equivalent to

RMB107,643,000) (2021:

to approximately RMB154,000) (2021:

Group as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately RMB122,000,000)).

Loss allowance of financial guarantee provided by the Group is measured
by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the banks for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from Jilin Haizi. During the
loss allowance of US$454,000 (2021:

year ended 31 December 2022,
515,000) was reversed.
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HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f) The amounts due represented the advances by the Group on the
goods to be purchased or processing services to be acquired. The
amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
and included in other receivables. The Group did not give or receive
any guarantee during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 for
the related party transactions. As at 31 December 2022, loss allowance
of US$32,000 (2021: Nil) was recognised against the amounts owed
by an associate. In addition, no loss allowance was recognised against
the amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries, which has been fully settled
during the year (2021: loss allowance of US$149,000 was recognised
against the amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries).

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in Note
11.

Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of loss allowances of
receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on
historical credit loss experience and their assessment of the
forward looking information i.e. economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

No external customer contributed 10% or more of total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022 (2021: one).

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.
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37. Risk Management (Continued)
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and loss allowance for trade receivables
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

R-E-——_F+=ZF=1+—-H

At 31 December 2022

FREAE FEHEEX EEEE
sSSP % FEx
Gross

carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate allowance
US$'000 % us$’000

RV EA K %0 HA1 290K Current and past due
over 1-90 days 15,617 1.17 183

BHA91 2= 275K Past due over 91-275
days 375 40.27 151
B AR B275K Past due over 275 days 438 100.00 438
16,430 772

R-F-_—#+—-H=+—H At 31 December 2021
FEaE T8 B 5 18 = RS
FET % FET
Gross

carrying Expected Loss
amount loss rate allowance
Us$'000 % Us$'000

RIVEA K %0 HA1 290K Current and past due
over 1-90 days 15,392 1.10 169

BHA91 2= 275K Past due over 91-275
days 75 36.00 27
B R 275K Past due over 275 days 487 100.00 487
15,954 683
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37. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are estimated based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables and forward-looking
information.

Trade receivables that were not past due related to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables that were past due related to a number of
independent customers that had a good track record with the
Group. Based on available information, management believed
that there had been no significant change in credit quality of
these customers and their balances were still considered to be
recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account of trade receivables
during the year is as follows:

F=7T
US$'000

BE_Z-_—S+-HA=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2021
R=—ZE=——F—H—H At 1 January 2021 758
PE & 88 Exchange adjustment 17
e R Reversal of loss allowance (92)
R-TBE=-—FE+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2021 683

BE-ZE--_F+Z-A=+—-BLHFE Year ended 31 December 2022
R-—ZFE-_—F—H—H At 1 January 2022 683
VE 5, o B Exchange adjustment (62)
B Loss allowance 174
5 1~ BT W [2] i i SR Written off as uncollectible (23)
R-ZB__F+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2022 772
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37. BBERE (&) 37. Risk Management (Continued)

FEHF?E(*E) Credit risk (Continued)
B b fE W 75 B Other receivables

$'§lﬁz121lﬁ%ﬁﬂsﬁﬁfﬂ’éﬂé%iﬁ@
FBUREERER (BEBERR/F
EMBRERK)

E GRSk B iE R ER 27 -
RZE-_—F+=-—A=+—8 2R
FEEFEANEETR  ZSHMEKR
HER R BB EE71,000E T (=2
Z —4F : 276,000 70) ° AN & B I & 5h
ZEEHFTETAERR -

F RN ER B H & Wk R B B 1R B R

The Group measures loss allowance for other receivables
(including amounts owed by associates/fellow subsidiaries)
based on 12 months ECLs:

Other receivables are shown net of loss allowance. As at 31
December 2022, accumulated loss allowance of US$71,000
(2021: US$276,000) was recognised for other receivables
with reference to the corresponding debtor’s credit rating.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement in the loss allowance account of other receivables
during the year is as follows:

F=ET
Us$'000

BE-E-— S+ =-B=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2021
RZZE-_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 445
BE 5, 58 2 Exchange adjustment 8
EEEER D Reversal of loss allowance (177)
R-_E_—F+-_H=+—8H At 31 December 2021 276

BE-E-_—#+=-BA=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2022
RZE-_—_F—H—H At 1 January 2022 276
bE H 3 & Exchange adjustment (18)
EEEERE Reversal of loss allowance (108)
R E S AT 45 13 i 3 8 Written off as uncollectible (79)
RZE_—_F+_A=+—H At 31 December 2022 71

BRORE R RSN - Ll E SR B B SOR
B LiEBRABEN SR E E ETH
I R KRR EMKIEB -
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Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to receivables for which there was
no recent history of default.
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37. Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan to an associate

The Group measures loss allowance for loan to an associate
based on lifetime ECLs.

Loan to an associate is shown net of loss allowance. As at 31
December 2022, accumulated loss allowance of US$925,000
(2021: US$964,000) was recognised for loan to an associate
as the loan is not expected to be fully recovered. The Group
does not hold any collateral over the balance.

Movement in the loss allowance account of loan to an
associate during the year is as follows:

F=T
Us$'000
BE-_ZE-_—F+-A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 693
PE H A Exchange adjustment 19
B 18 B Loss allowance 252
R—FE-——E+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2021 964
BE-E-_—F+=-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2022
W-_ZTE-—F—H—H At 1 January 2022 964
PE H, 3 2 Exchange adjustment (83)
B 18 B Loss allowance a4
R—FE-——&E+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2022 925

BB E SRS - bl E A IR H SR
B> LiiESRABREN SR E E ETH
W \ARREENERER -

B B HER

RIFERR  BEAANEE KA R TE
LG ERANGAGERRAARE
100,000,0007T (48 & 7 414,358,000
L) (ZZE=—%F : AR¥130,000,0007C
(}EE M #120,390,000%7T)) - bt HER
REEREAEBERAQARAL T
= &8 (ffizE36(e)) °

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is
either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in
the above balances related to the loan for which there was
no recent history of default.

Financial guarantees

At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk in respect of financial guarantees issued by
the Group and Company was RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately US$14,358,000) (2021: RMB130,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$20,390,000)) which
represented the maximum amount the Group and Company
could be required to pay if the guarantees were called on
(Note 36(e)).
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37. ElREE (E) 37. Risk Management (Continued)

EER K (&) Credit risk (Continued)
BB ER () Financial guarantees (Continued)
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At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have assessed the past due status of the debts
under guarantee, the financial position of the counterparty
as well as the economic outlook of the industry in which the
counterparty operates, and concluded that there has not been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group is measured at an amount equal to 12 months ECLs.

The amount of loss allowance is lower (2021: lower) than
the premium less cumulative amortisation, therefore, loss
allowance of US$454,000 (2021: US$515,000) was reversed
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the year, there was no transfer
between stages.

Liquidity risk

The directors of the Company have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.

—E-=
2022

1FAT BHREER

RER 1226 REeREBET

Within Total

one year Between contractual
or on one and undiscounted

demand  two years cash flows

SFESom e SREETT

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000

B & Borrowings 18,785 — 18,785
HEBE Lease liabilities 340 31 371
ZORNZERENEZR Trade and bills payables 13,795 — 13,795
EH i FE 1 3108 N B AT RUA Other payables and accruals 23,395 — 23,395
HitemAE Other financial liabilities 1,500 — 1,500
57,815 31 57.846

BETHBER Financial guarantee issued
o ERE Maximum amount guaranteed 14,358 — 14,358
—E-—fF
2021

1E AN S HRIE

REK 1822 Ren=HE

Within Total

one year Between  contractual

or on one and undiscounted

demand two years cash flows

FET FTET FE

Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

&k Borrowings 25,207 — 25,207
HEBE Lease liabilities 353 209 562
BHRNRERENTEE Trade and bills payables 17,735 — 17,735
H A JE 5 3B R AT FRIR Other payables and accruals 6,213 — 6,213
MBERE QD Financial guarantee contract 481 — 481
Hite@aBd Other financial liabilities 1,500 — 1,500
51,489 209 51,698

BREITHBER Financial guarantee issued

REERE Maximum amount guaranteed 20,390 — 20,390

BB EZERARLAR
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Liquidity risk (Continued)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within one year or on demand” time band in
the above maturity analysis.

The balance included above for the non-derivative financial
liabilities bear variable interest rate is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in
the respective functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations
with floating interest rates. The interest rate and terms of
repayment of bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 27.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no cash
flow interest rate risk as there are no bank borrowings which
bear floating interest rates. The Group has not used any
financial instruments to hedge potential fluctuation in interest
rates.



37. EkEE (&)

mE M BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

37. Risk Management (Continued)

REFESTHERHEERABHE Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
EEMBEIRART 2% AR EE T The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

TREERERAEEMNAH

statements of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities.

—=E-= T —F
2022 2021
FEx F=T
Us$’000 Us$'000
EMEE Financial assets
REHEK AT ENSREE ¢ Financial assets measured at amortised
cost:
B 5 K H b k1A Trade and other receivables 35,861 45,134
A —EEE AR E R Loan to an associate 8,974 8,855
DR ITER Pledged bank deposits 9,814 15,944
ZBR B SRITIE K Restricted bank deposits 15,165 —
B RBRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 51,326 32,545
121,140 102,478
EWmas Financial liabilities
128 S K AN B BR B9 Financial liabilities measured at
SREBE amortised cost:
B Borrowings 18,235 24,687
B NEMENFE Trade and other payables 37,190 24,430
55,425 49,117
FEERE R Financial guarantee contract — 481
BAFEFAEBEZANERAME ©  Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL:
HEtepgtaEd Other financial liabilities 1,307 1,247
EMemT A : Other financial instrument:
HEAE Lease liabilities 361 540
57,093 51,385
ERTHBEER Financial guarantee issued 14,358 20,390
(a) YFEAFEFENEMIA (a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

YHFBRAFEAENESHRTEER
R85 M HEAMEURIA - [ — B
ERBMER  SHEMRTENR
XRHRTER RERBRESEE
vofER - HERE MHERS
KA KB 5 R B AN 5R0R e

ENEFHEENEE - RHEKRE
BEAFERES -

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade and other receivables, loan to an associate,
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, borrowings, lease liabilities,
financial guarantee contract and trade and other
payables.

Due to their short term nature, their carrying values
approximate their fair values.
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37. BkxEE (&)
(b) BAFEFENSHBIA
Tﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂlﬂ@%ﬁm
TRAE -  ATFEEFZNDTHT

(b)

At MR EH L FlEE

TEREWRZ=ZZEZ=_Z_F+=H
=+t —HNREMBKRAERA B
Fﬁ%@FW&&VWﬁ%%ﬁM
AFEFENEMEMEE  AF

37. Risk Management (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Financial instruments measured at fair value include
other financial liabilities. Analysis on fair value hierarchy
is presented as follows:

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial
Liabilities

The following tables present other financial liabilities
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022 measured at fair
value on a recurring basis according to the fair value

EEREUATRR : hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:
F1Rk: HREEREBRMSHH Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
B (CREFAE) for identical assets;
F2 . ZEBERFIRFABESH Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
MBI B (AL (B within level 1 that are observable for the asset,
%) s (e ERE either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
H) B ASE & derived from prices); and
EIR/: ZBEVIEFERITBR Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
T 35 BUHE B ) A\ B8R (1 observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Al B R ag A BUR) o
F18} EPES £38 @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TERL TEx TR TER
ZZE-=%+=ZH=1+—H 31 December 2022 US$'000 Us$000 Us$'000 Us$'000
afE Liabilities
BATEFABREN Financial liabilities
SRAE measured at FVTPL
—HitemERE — Other financial liabilities - - 1,307 1,307
F1R BRI T st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T TEX TErx FTxn
—%+=-A=+—H 31 December 2021 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
=4 Liabilities
H?’AWEEH\}EE&E’\] Financial liabilities
CRIAE measured at FVTPL
—Hiswas — Other financial liabilities — — 1,247 1,247
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37. EkEE (&)

(b)

BAVEFTENESHMT A (H)
At @R EH L FlEE (F)

HE_FT-_—_F#+=-A=+—H
tFE HetmaBETEAF
B2 (T —_—F: 2FEKSR
47,000%7T) °

RZBE-_—_FR-_ZFT-_—F+=A
=+t HZHKAREBHAFEE
BEFERARRESRGHE - AFE
TERETAAERN2H (BIF
BRIR R (HEHEEZHMEREE
HEZHHM)ET - ZEEART
A B R g A\ U &z S A B
HAREAFENBEBARDOT :

BERTHABE IFUBRBAR
WA RS BEATVEW
B &

5.0%MAGIR %R BRIREMS - 8

NFEBI -
HEBRER HEBREZNH
RIMER - Al Rgs o AR
100% FEEE -
HERREZN HEEEEZNEH
HY ] MR AA

FEBS -
BRI R H11% B EMES R aE

B A {E R 4 #937,0003 7T 0 1 Bh
HERD1%  AHMESHEERN
N {EIEIN#939,000% 7T °

FRANMGHERMLELS -

FAZR 2 EAL TSR -

BHE-_T-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

37. Risk Management (Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial
Liabilities (Continued)

There was no change on fair value on other financial
liabilities during the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: fair value gain of US$47,000).

The fair value of the contingent consideration as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was estimated
by management by applying the discounted cash
flows. The determination of fair value is based on
certain parameters including the discount rate, the
probability of sales achievement and the period of sales
achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs
to fair value of contingent consideration are shown as
below:

Significant Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs to fair value
input(s)

Discount rate of
5.0%

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

Probability of sales
achievement, which
is 100%

The higher the probability of
sales achievement, the higher
the fair value.

Period of sales
achievement

The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the
fair value.

Increased discount rate by 1% would decrease the
fair value on other financial liabilities by approximately
US$37,000 whilst decreased discount rate by 1% would
increase the fair value on other financial liabilities by
approximately US$39,000.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during
the year.

There were no transfers between levels during the year.
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37. ERREE (&)
(b) BATFEFIEHNSMIA (H)

At @R EH L FlEE (F)
DREREIRNECBRBEMERDN

BESMIIRIEFERABRET S
BENERBAE - LEHEHT

37. Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value

(Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial

Liabilities (Continued)

The financial liabilities classified in level 3 use valuation
techniques based on significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data. The financial

BHAV s B HR R A SRR EI AR AT instruments within this level are reconciled from opening
to closing balances as follows:
—=== —_ET——
2022 2021
FEx F=T
US$‘000 US$'000
Bf& Liabilities
BRAFEFABZNEEEE :  Financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL:
n—H—H At 1 January 1,247 1,231
HEMmEmagEnaFrEka Fair value gain on other financial
liabilities — (47)
REZFMBEARARBEIRAE R  Unwinding of discount on
(Pt 5E9) contingent consideration charged
to profit or loss (Note 9) 60 63
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,307 1,247
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[ B B 38 (4E)

EAEE

AEBERREE  UBRRAEENE
RUREGCYE ABEZELELHE
2 T R R A B A B 4R o A
BERRATFESRBTE -

AEENEARBEREER (BEME
7HRBER)  RERRITHEHKEA
NEHEAAELEESZ (BEERTELN
b 8 R AR B ) o

AEEZAERERMERBETEATHE -
AEBREEARESH RBEEENE
LR BEEARBAYFLAR B
MR SABRERNRE  NEBARERHE
ENTFERROKREESHE ROBEAXATR
R BOFRODIHEEEARE -

BERSHRNFEERBLERNT ¢

HEZZT-__F+-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2022

37. Risk Management (Continued)

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings as disclosed in Note 27, cash and
bank balances and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its
overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

—E-F —E -

2022 2021

FEx F=T

Us$’000 Us$'000

B (FE27) Borrowings (Note 27) 18,235 24,687
B BHERREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(FfF5%24) (Note 24) (51,326) (32,545)

B B IRIRIT T AR (Y 5E24) Less: Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) (9,814) (15,944)

Wk S2PR B IR 1717 R (P 5E24) Less: Restricted bank deposits (Note 24) (15,165) =

e RIRTETFRE E %5 Net cash and bank balances/Net debt (58,070) (23,802)

T Equity 121,950 116,601

FEEERILE Net debt to equity ratio FiE A N/A i@ A N/A
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive managing Director:
Mr. Chen Li (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
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Ms. Liu Xuezi
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Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt
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Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael
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Dr. Zhu Xun (appointed on 23 September 2022)
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Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Kee Hun, Michael

Ms. Yeung Tak Bun, Allen

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Zhen Tao (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Li

Ms. Liu Xuezi

Ms. Tao Fang Fang
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Corporate Information

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Li
Mr. Pang Kai Fai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Pang Kai Fai

REGISTERED OFFICE
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN THE PRC
228 Xinfeng Road

Gaogiao Industrial Park
Haishu District, Ningbo City
Zhejiang Province

PRC

Postal Code: 315174

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 1203-4

12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers
189 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS
Stephenson Harwood (Hong Kong)
Ocorian Trust (Cayman Islands)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China
China CITIC Bank

Bank of China

SPD Bank

China Guangfa Bank
United Overseas Bank
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited

Suite 1601, 16/F, Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
503

WEBSITE

www.lansen.com.cn

CORPORATE CONTACT INFORMATION FOR
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Hong Kong

Please contact our Company Secretary at:

Telephone: (852) 2828 9206

The PRC
Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:
Telephone: (86) 574 8804 6316
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